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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended ("Securities Act"), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act"), which involve 
substantial risks and uncertainties regarding future events and future results. Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not 
historical facts such as information concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations and expenses, business strategies and 
plans, competitive position, business environment and potential growth strategies and opportunities. In some cases, forward-looking 
statements can be identified by terms such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “foresees,” “forecasts,” “intends,” 
“goals,” “may,” “might,” “outlook,” “plans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “seeks,” “should,” “targets,” “will,” “would” or similar expressions 
and the negatives of those terms.

Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, 
performance, or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the 
forward-looking statements. Those risks include those described in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The 
inclusion of forward-looking information should not be regarded as a representation by us, our management or any other person that the 
future plans, estimates, or expectations contemplated by us will be achieved. Given these uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance 
on any forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

In addition, statements that “we believe” and similar statements reflect our beliefs and opinions on the relevant subject, including, but 
not limited to, statements regarding future financial performance; implementation and execution of business strategies, including turnaround 
and restructuring plans; our future liquidity and operating expenditures; CEO transition; the impact of COVID-19 on our business; financial 
condition and results of operations; our future market position, technological advances, and competitive changes in the marketplace; 
expected consumer behavior; the outcome of ongoing litigation; our expected tax rate; the effect of changes in or the application of new or 
revised tax laws; the effect of new accounting pronouncements; and other characterizations of future events or circumstances. These 
statements are based on information available to us as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. While we believe such information 
provides a reasonable basis for these statements, such information may be limited or incomplete. Our statements should not be read to 
indicate that we have conducted an exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all relevant information. These statements are inherently uncertain, 
and investors are cautioned not to unduly rely on these statements.

The forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K relate only to events as of the date on which the statements 
are made. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to reflect events 
or circumstances after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or to reflect new information or the occurrence of unanticipated events, 
except as required by law. We may not actually achieve the plans, intentions, or expectations disclosed in our forward-looking statements, 
and you should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements. Our forward-looking statements do not reflect the potential 
impact of any future acquisitions, mergers, dispositions, joint ventures, or investments.

You should read this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the documents that we reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and have 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K with the understanding that our actual 
future results, levels of activity, performance, and events and circumstances may be materially different from what we expect.
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RISK FACTORS SUMMARY

Below is a summary of the principal factors that make an investment in our Class A common stock speculative or risky:

● Our efforts to acquire new users and engage existing users may not be successful or may be more costly than we expect, which 
could prevent us from maintaining or increasing our revenue. 

● If we are unable to promote, maintain, and protect our brand and reputation and offer a compelling user experience, our ability to 
attract new users and engage with our existing base of users will be impaired. 

● The transition to our new Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) may impact our ability to execute on our business strategy in a timely 
manner.

● If we lose the services of members of our senior management team we may not be able to execute our business strategy. 

● We rely on the Apple App Store and the Google Play Store to offer and promote our app. If we are unable to maintain a good
relationship with such platform providers, if their terms and conditions change to our detriment, if we violate, or if a platform provider 
believes that we have violated, the terms and conditions of its platform, our business will suffer. 

● Merchants on our platform may experience additional disruptions to their supply and restrictions on their ability to deliver products to 
our users in a timely manner, which could harm our business. 

● Our brand, reputation, and business may be harmed if merchants on our platform use unethical or illegal business practices, 
including the sale of counterfeit or fraudulent products or if our policies and practices with respect to such sales are perceived or 
found to be inadequate, and we may be impacted by the unlawful activity of merchants on our platform.

● The market in which we operate is rapidly evolving and we face intense competition; if we do not compete effectively, our results of 
operations and financial condition could be harmed. 

● Our company is evolving and we are in the process of executing on new business strategies and restructuring efforts; if we fail to 
successfully execute on these, our business, financial condition, and operating results could be harmed.

● We may not successfully execute or achieve the expected benefits of our restructuring and turnaround initiatives, which could 
adversely affect our business.

● The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic may adversely affect our business and results of operations. 

● We may be involved in litigation matters or other legal proceedings or regulatory investigations that are expensive, time consuming, 
and may result in restrictions in our business operations. 

● We identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting and may identify additional material weaknesses in 
the future or otherwise fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, which may result in material misstatements of our 
consolidated financial statements or cause us to fail to meet our periodic reporting obligations. 

● Economic tension between the United States and China, or between other countries, may intensify and the United States, China, or 
other countries may adopt drastic measures in the future that impact our business.

● Any significant disruption in service on our platform or in our computer systems, some of which are currently hosted by third-party 
providers, for any reason, including cyber threats, could damage our reputation and result in a loss of users, which would harm our 
business and results of operations.

● Our business and our merchants and users may be subject to sales and other taxes and these taxes may negatively impact our 
revenue and growth.
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PART I

Item 1. Business. 

Overview 

Wish brings an affordable and entertaining shopping experience to millions of consumers around the world. Since our founding in 
San Francisco in 2010, we have become one of the largest global ecommerce platforms, connecting millions of value-conscious consumers 
to hundreds of thousands of merchants globally. Wish combines technology and data science capabilities and an innovative discovery-based 
mobile shopping experience to create a highly-visual, entertaining, and personalized shopping experience for its users. 

Wish’s mission “Bargains Made Fun, Discovery Made Easy” represents the company’s commitment to a unique, discovery-based 
shopping experience, where consumers can scroll through a varied product selection that is driven by personalization technology and 
complemented by robust merchandising. Wish users engage with our app in a similar manner to how they engage with social media, which is 
scrolling through visually-rich and interactive content. To enhance user engagement, we incorporate fresh gamified features, rich user-
generated content including photos, videos, and reviews, and a wide range of relevant products to make shopping more entertaining. 

We also built Wish to empower merchants around the world. While the majority of the merchants on our platform are currently based 
in China, we are continuing to expand our merchant base around the world. Through our diversified and global merchant base, we are able to 
offer greater depth and breadth of categories and products. We provide our merchants with immediate access to our global base of monthly 
active users (“MAUs”) and a comprehensive suite of merchant services, including demand generation and engagement, data intelligence, 
promotional and logistics capabilities, integration partnerships, as well as business operations support, all in a cost-efficient manner. 

We launched Wish Local in 2019 to help local retailers increase their online reach and discovery, drive foot traffic, and generate 
additional sales by leveraging the Wish marketplace platform. Our Wish Local partners also serve as Wish Pickup locations for online Wish 
orders, which enables us to efficiently expand our fulfillment footprint around the world.

Our data science capabilities provide us with a unique competitive advantage. Our proprietary algorithms analyze a rich and growing 
data set of transactions and historical behaviors of both users and merchants to drive continuous optimization on the platform and inform key 
business decisions on a daily basis. Our machine learning technology enables personalization at the individual user level at a massive scale 
and drives significant advantages across all aspects of our business operations, including user acquisition, user experience, user-generated 
content, merchant insights, and user and merchant support. 

Our proprietary data and technology also create powerful network effects. The scale of our user base and active global merchants 
means we accumulate significant data across user and merchant activities, which we believe strengthens our data advantage, and creates 
an even better experience for everyone on our platform, which in turn can attract more users and merchants. As more users come to Wish, 
driven by the affordable value proposition and differentiated shopping experience, we can drive more sales to our merchants. Our large user 
base also drives our user-generated feedback loop of ratings, reviews, photos, and videos, which results in greater user engagement. As 
more merchants succeed on Wish, more merchants join the platform to grow their businesses, broadening our product selection which, in 
turn, improves the user experience. This flywheel effect has driven tremendous value to both users and merchants and has made Wish one 
of the largest ecommerce marketplaces in the world.

The Wish Platform 

     Our global ecommerce platform connects over 24 million MAUs in over 60 countries to approximately 170,000 active global 
merchants. We define MAUs as the number of unique users that visited the Wish platform, either on our mobile app, mobile web, or on a 
desktop, during the month.  An active user is identified by a unique email-address; a single person can have multiple user accounts via 
multiple email addresses. We determine our number of active global merchants by counting the total number of merchants who have sold at 
least one order on the Wish platform, either on our mobile app, mobile web, or on a desktop, during the preceding 12 months.
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Our vision is to unlock the vast potential of ecommerce for the underserved, value-oriented consumer by making the Wish platform 
affordable, open, and accessible to all users and merchants in many countries around the world. We do this through our relentless focus on 
product, technology, data science, and logistics. For our users, we are revolutionizing the mobile shopping experience by making it 
affordable, relevant, personalized, and entertaining. For our merchants, we offer immediate, cost-efficient access to our global user base, 
scaled data, and technology platform, as well as a comprehensive suite of merchant services to help run their businesses and drive sales. To
serve our global and diversified user and merchant base, we approach our platform development with a specific geographic focus, enabling 
an authentic, localized experience.

Value Proposition to Wish Users 

We have democratized ecommerce by making it: 

• Affordable. Price is the single most important determinant when making a purchase for a substantial portion of the global 
population, and we aim to serve the affordability needs of these value-conscious consumers. The merchants on our platform offer 
primarily unbranded products that can be deeply discounted as compared to branded alternatives across several categories. Our 
Wish Standards program, which measures the performance of merchants in areas that matter to consumers the most, promote 
higher quality merchants and products on our platform. This allows us to offer a vast selection of high-quality items at competitive 
prices, a value proposition that attracts our millions of MAUs to our platform. 

• Accessible. We built Wish to be mobile-first so any consumer around the world can easily access our shopping platform on a 
mobile device. Over 90% of our user activity and purchases occur on our mobile app.

• Everywhere. To better serve our global user base, we localize various features on our online platform and tailor our experience to 
each respective market through, for example, making it accessible in different languages and providing country-specific payment 
methods. This localization is designed to improve the engagement of our large, diverse user base, in addition to connecting our 
users with approximately 25,000 local brick-and-mortar Wish Local stores. 

We have re-invented the online shopping experience to be: 

• Mobile-First. Wish was built for mobile. Our application is image-rich, with minimal search input or text-based interactions. Over 
90% of our user activity and purchases occur on our mobile app.

• Discovery-Based. Our platform is designed to make it easy to navigate a vast selection of products when users do not have a 
specific item or brand in mind. Unlike other ecommerce platforms where consumers often visit with a predetermined purchase 
intent for specific items, our navigational and entertaining shopping experience gives us the ability to create purchase intent in our 
users across a diverse set of products and categories. Approximately 70% of the sales on our platform do not involve a search 
query and instead come from personalized browsing. 

• Personalized. Personalized shopping experience is powered by machine learning technology. The more users that engage with 
the Wish platform, the smarter and more intuitive their product feed gets, so no two interfaces are ever the same. We deliver 
personalized and curated products to our users and help them discover desired products quickly.

• Entertaining. We have transformed the user experience to make shopping on Wish as engaging and entertaining as browsing on 
social media. We utilize highly-personalized feeds with a wide range of relevant products as well as gamified, interactive, and 
social features to increase the length and frequency of a user’s sessions and drive increased engagement. 
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Value Proposition to Wish Merchants 

Accessible and Cost-Efficient Ecommerce Platform. We give our merchants immediate access to our global base of millions of MAUs and a 
comprehensive suite of merchant services in a cost-efficient manner to help them run their businesses and grow sales. We empower these 
highly capable merchants offering quality products at compelling values and unlock this supply of goods to consumers globally. 

In addition, we give our merchants the following merchant services:

Demand Generation and Engagement

• Global Reach for Online Merchants. Wish gives merchants immediate access to millions of MAUs across more than 60 
countries, with a significant user footprint in the United States ("U.S.") and Europe. We help our merchants reach these users in a 
highly targeted and cost-efficient manner.

• Promotion. Wish merchants can amplify their reach and sales by utilizing our native advertising tool, ProductBoost. We utilize 
data science to optimize ad placement, target users, and maximize the merchant’s return on ad spend. 

  

User-Generated Content Creation. User-generated content that is particular, authentic, and localized can meaningfully improve user 
engagement and increase the purchases of products on our platform. Our value-conscious users rely on user-generated content such as 
reviews, ratings, photos, and videos, rather than brand recognition, when making purchase decisions. Our data science technology prioritizes 
items with favorable reviews, higher ratings and shipping history, connecting buyers with high-quality merchants and enhancing both the user 
and merchant experience.

Data Intelligence 

• Data Insight. We provide our merchants with a comprehensive data set to run their businesses through the Wish Merchant 
Dashboard. This dashboard helps our merchants improve their performance in terms of total impressions, overall sales, product 
assortment, service quality, fulfillment, shipping needs, and refunds, among others. 

• Revenue Impact. Our proprietary, state-of-the-art data science capabilities are designed to display products to users who are 
most likely to buy them, in turn driving more revenue to merchants. 

Logistics 

• Shipping Logistics. With ongoing changes to global postal regulations and increases in cross-border sales volume, logistics 
has become paramount for small merchants to succeed in ecommerce. We have developed a number of logistics programs to 
provide a set of reliable cross-border logistics solutions at competitive costs for our merchants. We believe that ensuring a 
consistent delivery experience for our users increases value to our merchants by boosting sales volumes and minimizing 
returns.

• Wish Local Partners. Through our Wish Local partnerships, our Wish Local partners also serve as Wish Pickup locations for 
online Wish orders. These Wish Local stores effectively give us a fulfillment footprint around the world without owning any real 
estate.

Business Operations

• Optimization Tools, Services, and Education. We provide tools, services, and ongoing education to our merchant base to 
help them improve their business operations and drive greater success.

• Merchant Support. Wish assists merchants with international trade compliance, payment processing, user support, and certain 
other services. 

Data Science 

Our machine learning and data science capabilities drive all aspects of our business. Our data advantage comes from our rich and 
growing data set of historical and recent user and merchant behaviors and transactions, and deep understanding of our millions of MAUs and 
approximately 170,000 active global merchants. All of this feeds into a proprietary data science algorithm that we continuously optimize for 
more intelligent insights and decision making. 
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Key examples of how we use data science to drive our business include:

• User Acquisition: We leverage the power of our proprietary data to make decisions on what to show to whom, when, and 
through which acquisition channel, with a focus on maximizing our return on marketing investment and conversion.

• Lifetime Value Maximization: Data science plays a critical role in maximizing lifetime value (“LTV”) of our users and optimizing 
the initial user acquisition investment. We use data science to determine the allocation of marketing investment across different 
users, marketing channels, and user acquisition and re-engagement strategies.

• User Personalization: Our proprietary algorithms utilize a rich and growing data set of historical and recent user behaviors that 
includes browsing data, past transactions, reviews, and preferences noted on Wish, to display the most relevant and 
personalized content. This data-driven approach enables efficient and enjoyable navigation and discovery on a mobile screen, 
creates purchase intent across a diverse set of products, and increases conversion to sales.

• User-Generated Content: Our platform offers mostly unbranded goods. Our value-conscious users rely on user-generated 
content such as reviews, ratings, photos, and videos, rather than brand recognition, when making purchase decisions. This 
makes the user-generated content on our platform an important source of trust and quality for our largely unbranded product 
selection. 

• Merchant Insights: Our platform includes a merchant dashboard with built-in analytics to help merchants sell more products 
and track their performance. Our data capabilities help merchants better understand user behavior and preferences, enabling 
them to operate more intelligently and efficiently. 

• ProductBoost: ProductBoost is our native advertising tool for merchants, which helps them promote their products on our 
platform. We utilize data science to improve the performance of ProductBoost and help maximize the merchants’ return on their 
ad spend. 

• Logistics: We leverage data science to improve transparency and logistics operational efficiency for our merchants, while also 
reducing shipping time and improving delivery reliability for our buyers. 

• User and Merchant Support: We use data to understand what a user or merchant is likely to need help with in order to improve 
the quality of support and maximize cost efficiency of providing such support.

Our Customers

We generate revenue from marketplace and logistics services provided to our customers. We consider both the merchant and the 
user to be our customers. We provide a mix of marketplace services to merchants. We provide merchants access to our marketplace where 
merchants display and sell their products to users. We also provide a range of merchandising services including ProductBoost to help 
merchants promote their products within our marketplace. Our logistics offering for merchants, introduced in 2018, is designed for direct end-
to-end single order shipment from a merchant’s location to the user. Logistics services include transportation and delivery of the merchant’s 
products to the user. Merchants are required to prepay for logistics services on a per order basis.

Sales and Marketing

Our sales and marketing capabilities represent a core competency that is essential to the success of the Wish platform. We are 
focused on continuing to acquire and retain new users and build brand awareness efficiently. Our advertising costs to acquire new users 
constituted 77% of our sales and marketing expenses, and sales and marketing expenses constituted 35% of our operating expenses, in 
2022. We have extensive experience in cost-effective, data-driven digital marketing and user acquisition. We also design innovative 
marketing programs that help increase brand awareness by targeting people who we believe have a higher propensity to engage with our 
platform and buy from our merchants. We continue to partner with various social-media platforms to ensure we gain exposure with broader 
audiences.

As discussed below under Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Key 
Financial and Performance Metrics,” our MAUs and last-twelve-months active buyers were negatively impacted by our decision to 
significantly reduce our digital advertising expenditures in 2021 to focus our resources on other strategic initiatives that we believe will 
improve the user experience and increase retention, including (i) enhancing our product quality and selection, (ii) providing an unmatched fun 
and entertaining shopping experience, and (iii) improving the performance of the app.  We believe our continued strategy to improve users’ 
experience in our marketplace and provide a more differentiated and engaging user experience will position us for long-term sustainable 
growth.     
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We currently acquire new users through a variety of marketing channels including social media, search engine optimization, affiliate 
marketing, and brand-oriented marketing campaigns. We rely on our data to understand consumer behavior and long term value of the 
consumer which guide our acquisition strategy. We also utilize data in determining how best to engage our users and seek to optimize the 
mode, timing and frequency of interactions across our mobile app, push notifications, and emails.

We have invested heavily in building a talented in-house marketing team, while also developing proprietary technologies that enable 
us to build data-driven and highly-personalized campaigns that can scale globally on digital platforms including Facebook, Instagram, and 
various Google properties. Our marketing efforts also focus on re-targeting of existing users, building our brand, generating awareness, and 
cultivating the Wish community. 

Additionally, our user base has created additional opportunities for us to reach existing and new customers organically, a venue of 
demand generation that supplements our paid market efforts.

Finally, we also invest in efficient sales and marketing activities to identify and onboard high potential merchants around the world 
both for our online marketplace as well as Wish Local. Similar to our user acquisition strategies, we deploy digital performance marketing 
campaigns on social media and other channels to acquire new merchants. We supplement this effort with offline marketing activities that 
include attending trade shows and conducting seminars. We also leverage partnerships with third-party platforms for merchant referrals.

Research and Development

We have a technology and data-driven research and development culture that allows us to deliver a high-quality experience for our 
users and merchants. Our research and development talent is responsible for the design, development, testing, and delivery of our platform 
and user experience. The vast majority of our research and development talent is located in San Francisco and Toronto. We strive to create 
an environment that utilizes our employees’ talents and satisfies their intellectual curiosities while promoting the development of impactful 
and transformative technologies.

As a company, we invest substantial resources in research and development to drive core technology innovation and bring new 
products to market. As of December 31, 2022, 50% of our total headcount was involved in research and development and related activities.

Our Competition

We compete for both users and merchants. For users, we compete on the basis of affordability and user experience. For merchants, 
we compete on the basis of providing profitable distribution, an end to end platform and global reach.

Our online competitors include large, global ecommerce platforms such as Amazon, Alibaba, Pinduoduo, Shein, and Shopify as well 
as more traditional discount retailers such as Walmart and Target. Our offline competitors also include scaled discount retailers that offer 
heavily discounted and off-season products, such as Dollar General and TJ Maxx. We are able to compete for users based on our massive 
product selection, low prices and daily discounts, deeply-personalized and differentiated shopping experience powered by our data science 
and optimized for the mobile device, and entertainment derived from various engaging and interactive features of our platform.

Intellectual Property

We rely on federal, state, common law, and international rights, as well as contractual restrictions, to protect our intellectual property. 
We control access to our proprietary technology through a combination of trademarks, domain names, copyrights, trade secrets, patents, and 
confidentiality agreements with employees and third parties. We pursue the registration of our copyrights, trademarks, service marks, and 
domain names in the U.S. and in certain locations outside the U.S. Our success depends in part upon our ability to protect and use our core 
technology and intellectual property. We rely on a combination of trade secret, copyright, trademark and, to a lesser extent, patent laws, as 
well as confidentiality protection procedures to protect our intellectual property rights. 

See Item 1A, "Risk Factors," for further discussion of risks related to protecting our intellectual property.
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Government Regulations 

As with any company operating on the Internet, we are subject to a growing number of local, national and international laws and 
regulations. These laws are often complex, sometimes contradict other laws, and are frequently still evolving. Laws may be interpreted and 
enforced in different ways in various locations around the world, posing a significant challenge to our global business. For example, U.S. 
federal and state laws, European Union Directives and Regulations, and other national laws govern the processing of payments, consumer 
protection and the privacy of consumer information; other laws define and regulate unfair and deceptive trade practices. Still other laws 
dictate when and how sales or other taxes must be collected. The growing regulation of ecommerce worldwide could impose additional 
compliance burdens and costs on us or on Wish merchants, and could subject us to significant liability for any failure to comply. Additionally, 
because we operate internationally, we need to comply with various laws associated with doing business outside of the U.S., including anti-
money laundering, anti-corruption and export control laws. Recent trends globally toward increased protectionism and trade barriers can 
result in actions by governments around the world that may be disruptive to our businesses. 

See Item 1A, "Risk Factors," for further discussion of risks related to government regulations and other legal obligations related to 
privacy, data protection, information security, and consumer protection.

Legal Proceedings

We are currently involved in, and may in the future be involved in, actual and threatened legal proceedings, claims, investigations 
and government inquiries arising in the ordinary course of our business, including legal proceedings, claims, investigations and government 
inquiries involving intellectual property, data privacy and data protection, torts, consumer protection, securities, employment, contractual 
rights or false or misleading advertising. We are also regularly subject to proceedings, claims, investigations and government inquiries 
seeking to hold us liable for the actions of merchants on our platform.

Although the results of the actual and threatened legal proceedings, claims, investigations and government inquiries in which we 
currently are involved cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not believe that there is a reasonable possibility that the final outcome of 
these matters will have a material adverse effect on our business or financial results. Regardless of the final outcome, however, litigation can 
have an adverse impact on us because of defense and settlement costs, diversion of management resources, harm to our reputation and 
brand, and other factors.

See Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” for further discussion of risks related to legal proceedings. See also, Item 8, Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data, Note 7. Commitments and Contingencies, “Legal Contingencies and Proceedings,” for further discussion of current 
litigation.     

Cyber Security

As a data-driven company, we may be a potential target for cyber-attacks and may be exposed to a number of cybersecurity risks in 
the normal course of operations. Our success as a business may depend upon our ability to address these risks, and to keep our platform 
and internal systems secure for the benefit of our merchants, users, business partners, employees, and other stakeholders. 

In order to protect our customers’ data - and any other data we manage or handle - we have adopted a number of safeguards and 
security measures. Among these strategies is our development and maintenance of a robust Incident Response Plan (“IRP”), which equips 
our employees and managers with the necessary tools to detect, respond to, and ultimately prevent cybersecurity incidents affecting the 
platform.

Our IRP contains detailed processes and procedures to assist employees in managing cybersecurity incidents when they happen, 
including techniques for detecting/identifying suspicious activity in our data environment, response and escalation protocols to defend against 
intrusions and contain any potential data leakage, data preservation measures to ensure data integrity going forward, and remediation steps 
to diagnose root causes and secure gaps to prevent future attacks.

The IRP is supported by a multi-tier incident response team comprised of security, technical, and legal experts across our business 
who are responsible for coordinating and managing data security efforts, including incident response. This cross-functional team of 
specialists operates under the supervision of our executive management team and holds briefings to ensure the executive group is attuned to 
matters of data security impacting the Company.
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Finally, the IRP is also supported by a full curriculum of training for engineering and non-engineering employees that is drafted and 
administered under the supervision of our Director of Security. Importantly, these training sessions include several modules and quizzes for 
both technical and non-technical employees to assist our employees in comprehensively understanding the importance of data security to our 
stakeholders and our business and the various ways they can promote a security environment throughout our Company.

For further discussion of risks related to data protection, cyber security, and intellectual property, please see Item 1A, “Risk Factors,” 
below.

Human Capital

We are continually investing in the engagement and retention of our global workforce by creating a diverse and inclusive workplace, 
providing market-competitive benefits to support our employees’ health and well-being, and fostering an environment of learning and growth 
in support of employee development. 

As of December 31, 2022, we had a total of 886 full-time employees worldwide, of which 490 are located in the U.S. Our team 
includes employees in 10 countries, spread across 4 continents, reflecting various cultures, backgrounds and ethnicities. We also engage 
temporary employees and consultants as needed to support our operations. On January 31, 2023, we announced a plan to reduce our 
workforce by up to 150 employees, representing 17% of our then global workforce. This plan is intended to refocus our operations to support 
our ongoing business prioritization efforts, better align resources, and improve operational efficiencies. See the sections titled Item 7, 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—January 2023 Reduction in Workforce” and Item 
8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 13. Subsequent Events”, for further discussion of our reduction in workforce.

None of our employees in the U.S. is represented by a labor union or subject to a collective bargaining agreement. In certain 
countries in which we operate, we may be subject to, and need to comply with, local labor law requirements which may automatically make 
our employees subject to industry-wide collective bargaining agreements. We may be required to comply with the terms of these collective 
bargaining agreements. We have not experienced any work stoppages, and we consider our relations with our employees to be good.

Fostering Organizational Diversity

As a global business with users and merchants in more than 60 countries, we understand that our ability to harness the power of 
diverse perspectives within our organization is crucial to our success in serving those customers effectively. Wish is committed to 
organizational diversity in all areas of our workforce and will continue to pursue meaningful diversity, equity, and inclusion initiatives. As of 
December 31, 2022, our employee base was 57% male and 42% female, and our Board of Directors was 60% male and 40% female. 
 
Promoting an Inclusive Workplace
 

In addition to fostering diversity in all categories and across all levels of our organization, we are committed to creating and 
maintaining an inclusive workplace free from discrimination or harassment on the basis of race, color, citizenship, religion, creed, national 
origin, ancestry, gender, sexual orientation, age, marital status, veteran status, disability, medical condition, or any other status protected by 
applicable law.

As a part of this effort, we deploy a variety of different tools to ensure a welcoming workplace for employees and business partners of 
all backgrounds, including:

• Robust policies and a Company code of conduct prohibiting discrimination and harassment in the workplace;

• A clearly communicated and routinely reinforced policy that management and employees alike are expected to exhibit and 
promote honest, ethical, and respectful conduct in the workplace;.

• The establishment of Employee Resource Groups (“ERGs”) targeted at building community and fostering communication across 
cultural, ethnic, and religious lines, including those focused on people of color, LGBTQ+, and gender communities; and

• Recognition and celebration of various ethnic, religious, and cultural awareness holidays and other observances.

We have also established various training programs to promote a welcoming workplace, including:

• Annual training for employees and managers relating to topics of diversity, equity, and inclusion, as well as training to counteract 
bias in the workplace; and
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• In 2022, we incorporated elements of bias identification and approaches to reject biases in our performance evaluations such as 
writing feedback using the Situation-Behavior-Impact (“SBI”) framework. 

Employee Development and Training

Our employees are critical to the success of our company and we strive to create a supportive environment where all can contribute, 
learn, and grow in their careers. We prioritize employee development and training, and seek to foster both formal and informal learning 
opportunities inside and outside of the Company.

We provide an annual professional development stipend, which employees and managers can use for reimbursement of professional 
development expenses including seminars, courses, books, and training programs. We believe our investment in employee development has 
a direct impact on employee growth, engagement, and retention and is critical to our Company’s success.

To further support managers and individual contributors at Wish, most of whom work remotely due to the on-going COVID-19 
pandemic, we also provide virtual training and development opportunities, including:

• Writing Effective Feedback Review (offered to all employees);

• Performance Management Training (offered to all managers);

• Amazon Web Service Training for Engineering Teams; and

• Manager Handbook for Managers in Technology Organization.

Employee Benefits and Retention Strategies

We provide employees competitive benefits and additional perks to support the health and well-being of all, including:

• Comprehensive Health, Dental, and Vision Care - We offer an array of healthcare, financial, and Wellness Benefits, to 
employees and their dependents at no cost to employees. Employees can choose from a variety of two different healthcare 
providers (three medical plan offerings total), including supplemental health voluntary coverage that fits the needs of our 
employees and their families.

• Mental Health and Well-Being Support - Our Wellness services include access to services from various providers. We provide 
an annual allotment to employees to access these services and annual education reimbursements for career development.

• Competitive Parental Leave Policies - 16 weeks of parental leave for birthing parents and 10 weeks for non-birthing parents.

Flexibility and Decentralization

In the first quarter of 2022, we made a decision to shift towards a primarily remote working environment in which most employees 
will have the option to work from home even after we reopen our offices.

In 2023, we expect to begin rolling-out a more formalized “return to office” protocol for our workforce located in the San Francisco 
metropolitan area, while still providing a flexible working environment.

We believe the above flexible working policy will unlock further opportunities to source, connect, hire, and retain talent in more 
locations while also enabling us to cultivate a vibrant, collaborative office environment at our San Francisco headquarters and beyond.

Information about Segment and Geographic Areas

The segment and geographic information required herein is contained in Note 11 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Corporate Information

We were incorporated in the state of Delaware in June 2010 as ContextLogic Inc., d/b/a “Wish.” Our principal executive offices are 
located at One Sansome Street 33rd Floor, San Francisco, California 94104. Our telephone number is (415) 432-7323. Our website address 
is www.wish.com. 

We use various trademarks, trade names, and design marks in our business, including Wish™, Wish Shopping Made Fun™, W™, 
WishPost™, Wish Pickup™, Wish Local™, ProductBoost™, and ContextLogic™. This annual report also contains trademarks and trade names 
of other businesses that are the property of their respective holders. We do not intend our use or display of other companies’ trademarks and 
trade names to imply a relationship with, or endorsement or sponsorship of us by, these other companies.

Available Information

We file our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission ("SEC") electronically. The SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and 
other information regarding issuers, including ContextLogic Inc. that file electronically with the SEC. The address of that website is 
https://www.sec.gov.

You may obtain a free copy of our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and 
amendments to those reports on our website at http://www.wish.com under the Investor Relations section. Such reports and other information 
are available on our website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. Our Corporate 
Governance Standards, the charters of our Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, and Nominating and Corporate Governance 
Committee, as well as our Worldwide Code of Business Conduct are also available on our website. Information on our website is not, and will 
not be deemed, a part of this report or incorporated into any other filings the Company makes with the SEC.

Investors and others should note that we announce material financial and operational information to our investors using our Investor 
Relations website (https://ir.wish.com), press releases, SEC filings and public conference calls and webcasts. We also use the following 
channels to provide updates to the public about our business, activities, and other related matters, which could be deemed to be material 
information: www.twitter.com/WishShopping and www.linkedin.com/company/wishshopping. Information contained on or accessible through 
our websites are neither a part of nor incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K or any other report or document we file 
with or furnish to the SEC, and any references to our websites and the inclusion of our website addresses in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K are intended to be inactive textual references only.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors. 

RISK FACTORS 

Investing in our Class A common stock involves a high degree of risk. Before deciding whether to purchase shares of our Class A 
common stock, you should consider carefully the risks and uncertainties described below, our consolidated financial statements and related 
notes, and all of the other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Additional risks and uncertainties that we are unaware of, or that 
we currently believe are not material, may also become important factors that affect our business. These risk factors could materially and 
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations, and the market price of our Class A common stock could decline. 
These risk factors do not identify all risks that we face – our operations could also be affected by factors that are not presently known to us or 
that we currently consider to be immaterial to our operations. Due to risks and uncertainties, known and unknown, our past financial results 
may not be a reliable indicator of future performance and historical trends should not be used to anticipate results or trends in future periods.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

Our efforts to acquire new users and engage existing users may not be successful or may be more costly than we expect, which 
could prevent us from maintaining or increasing our revenue.

Our success depends on our ability to attract new users and engage existing users in a cost-effective manner. In order to acquire 
and engage users, we must, among other things, promote and sustain our platform and provide high-quality products, user experiences, and 
service. Our marketing efforts currently include various initiatives and consist primarily of digital marketing on a variety of social media 
channels, such as Facebook, search engine optimization on websites, such as Google, Bing, and Yahoo!, various branding strategies, such 
as our relationship with social influencers, and mobile “push” notifications, text messaging, and email. For the years ended December 31, 
2022, 2021 and 2020, we spent $254 million, $1.1 billion and $1.7 billion on sales and marketing, representing 45%, 53% and 67% of our 
revenue, respectively. We anticipate that sales and marketing expenses will continue to comprise a substantial majority of our overall 
operating costs for the foreseeable future. We have historically acquired a significant number of our users through digital advertising on 
platforms and websites owned by Meta and Google, which may terminate their agreements with us anytime. Our investments in sales and 
marketing may not effectively reach potential users, potential users may decide not to buy through us, or user spend on our platform may not 
yield the intended return on investment, any of which could negatively affect our financial results. 

In addition, during the first half of 2022 we continued to face headwinds from the rise in digital advertising costs which has among 
other things impacted new customer acquisition and conversion. In response to rising digital advertising costs, which contributed to lower 
marketing efficiency, starting in the third quarter of 2021, we decided to significantly reduce our digital advertising expenditures as we focused 
our resources on other strategic initiatives. As discussed under Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations—Key Financial and Performance Metrics,” our monthly active users and last-twelve-months Active Buyers were 
negatively impacted by our decision to significantly reduce our digital advertising expenditures. Starting in the third quarter of 2021, in 
response to these headwinds, we commenced a number of initiatives that we believe will improve the user experience and increase 
retention, including (i) enhancing our product quality and selection, (ii) providing an unmatched fun and entertaining shopping experience, 
and (iii) improving the performance of the app. Beginning late June of 2022, we began to ramp up digital advertising spend and initiated a 
number of programs which we believe could enhance the consumer experience, encourage customer acquisition, increase consumer 
retention, and position the Company for long-term sustainable growth. We believe our continued strategy to increase users’ experience in our
marketplace and provide a more differentiated and engaging user experience will position us for long-term sustainable growth, but there can 
be no assurance that our initiatives will be successful.
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Many other factors, some of which are beyond our control, may reduce our ability to acquire, maintain and further engage with users, 
including those described in this “Risk Factors” section and the following:

• system updates to app stores and advertising platforms such as Meta and Google, including adjustments to algorithms that may 
decrease user engagement or negatively affect our ability to target a broad audience; 

• ongoing changes in advertising platforms’ pricing, which could continue to result in higher advertising costs; 

• changes in digital advertising platforms’ policies, such as those of Meta and Google, that may delay or prevent us from advertising 
through these channels, which could result in reduced traffic to and sales on our platform; 

• changes in search algorithms by search engines; 

• inability of our email marketing messages to reach the intended recipients’ inbox; 

• ineffectiveness of our marketing efforts and other spend to continue to acquire new users and maintain and increase engagement 
with existing users; 

• decline in popularity of, or governmental restrictions on, social media platforms where we advertise; 

• the development of new search engines or social media sites that reduce traffic on existing search engines and social media 
sites; 

• consumer behavior changes as a result of COVID-19; and 

• products listed by merchants on our platform that are the subject of adverse media reports, regulatory investigations, or other 
negative publicity. 

As a result of any of these factors or any additional factors that are outside of our control, if we are unable to continue acquiring new 
users or increasing engagement with existing users, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of 
operations, and prospects. 

If we are unable to promote, maintain, and protect our brand and reputation, and offer a compelling user experience, our ability to 
attract new users and engage with our existing base of users will be impaired. 

We believe that maintaining our brand and reputation will be critical to attracting new users and encouraging users to transact on our 
platform. In addition to targeted online marketing, we spend a considerable amount of resources on promoting our brand and reputation. For 
example, starting in 2020, we began to invest in additional off-line marketing activities. Our brand promotion activities may not be successful 
or cost effective, and to the extent that these activities yield increased revenue, the increased revenue may not offset the expenses we incur. 
If we do not successfully drive brand awareness, we may fail to attract new users or increase engagement with existing users and our
business may not grow or may decline, all of which could harm our business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects. 

Our ability to provide a high-quality user experience is also highly dependent on external factors over which we may have little or no 
control, including, without limitation, the reliability and performance of our merchants and third-party carriers. If our users are dissatisfied with 
the quality of the products sold on our platform, the customer service they receive or their overall user experience, or if our merchants or 
third-party carriers cannot deliver products to our users in a timely manner or at all, our users may stop purchasing products on our platform. 
Our users may also become dissatisfied with their user experience if they are unable to receive timely customer service, and because we rely 
in large part on an automated customer service system, it is possible our users could become dissatisfied with our customer service. We also 
rely on merchants for information, including product characteristics, descriptions, images, and availability that may be inaccurate or 
misleading. Our failure to provide our users with high-quality products and high-quality user experiences for any reason could substantially 
harm our reputation and adversely impact our efforts to develop Wish as a trusted brand, which could have a material adverse effect on our 
business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects. 

In addition, we may be subject to unfavorable publicity that would create a public perception that non-authentic, counterfeit, 
dangerous, illegal, or defective goods are sold on our platform, or that our policies and practices are insufficient to deter or respond to such 
conduct. Even if these claims are factually incorrect or based on isolated incidents, it could damage our reputation, diminish the value of our 
brand, draw governmental or regulatory scrutiny or action, undermine our trust and credibility, or have a negative impact on our ability to 
attract new users, or discourage our existing users from continuing to transact on our platform. We may also be subject to negative media 
regarding our privacy or cyber security practices, terms of service, product quality, litigation or regulatory activity, the sale of illicit or 
dangerous goods, other unauthorized actions by merchants on our platform, or the actions of other companies that provide similar services to 
ours, which may adversely affect our reputation, business, and financial results.
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The transition to our new Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) will be critical to our success and our business may be adversely 
impacted if we do not successfully manage the transition process in a timely manner.

Our success depends, in part, on the effectiveness of our new CEO, Joe Yan. The CEO will be critical to executing on and achieving 
our vision, strategic direction, culture, products, and technology. The ability of our new CEO to quickly adapt to and understand our business, 
operations, and strategic plans will be critical to the Board and our management’s ability to make informed decisions about our strategic 
direction and operations.

Additionally, Piotr Szulczewski, our founder and former CEO, resigned from the Board, and the departure of Mr. Szulczewski as our 
CEO and as a member of the Board has resulted in a loss of institutional knowledge. This loss of knowledge and experience can be mitigated 
through successful hiring and transition, but there can be no assurance that we will be successful in such efforts.

If we lose the services of members of our senior management team or key employees, we may not be able to execute our business 
strategy. 

Competition for talent in our industry and the technology industry has become increasingly intense as the current labor market to 
build, retain, and replace highly skilled personnel has become highly competitive. We rely on the continued service of our senior 
management team, key employees, and other highly skilled personnel. The failure to properly manage succession plans, develop leadership 
talent, and/or replace the loss of services of senior management or other key employees, could significantly delay or prevent the 
achievement of our objectives. From time to time, there have been and may continue be changes in our senior management team resulting 
from the hiring or departure of executives, which could disrupt our business. We do not have long-term employment agreements with any of 
our key personnel, and do not maintain any “key person” life insurance policies. The loss of the services of one or more of our senior 
management or other key employees for any reason could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations, and 
require significant amounts of time, training and resources to find suitable replacements and integrate them within our business and could 
affect our corporate culture. Further, in connection with the announcement of our restructuring plan in February 2022 and a reduction in 
workforce in January 2023, we may find it even more difficult to recruit and retain highly skilled personnel, which could harm our business. 
See the sections titled Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—February 2022 
Restructuring Plan and January 2023 Reduction in Workforce” and Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 12. 
Restructuring and Note 13. Subsequent Events”, for further discussion of our restructuring and turnaround initiatives.

We rely on the Apple App Store and the Google Play Store to offer and promote our app. If we are unable to maintain a good 
relationship with such platform providers, if their terms and conditions change to our detriment, if we violate, or if a platform 
provider believes that we have violated, the terms and conditions of its platform, our business will suffer. 

A significant portion of our users download our mobile app through the Apple App Store and the Google Play Store, and over 90% of 
our user activity and purchases occur on our mobile app. 

We are subject to the policies and terms of service of these third-party platforms, which govern the promotion, distribution, content, 
and operation of our app on the platform. Each platform provider has broad discretion to change and interpret its terms of service and other 
policies with respect to us and other developers, and those changes may be unfavorable to us. A platform provider may also add fees 
associated with access to and use of its platform, alter how we are able to advertise on the platform, prevent our app from being offered on 
their platform, change how the personal information of its users is made available to application developers on the platform, or limit the use of 
personal information for advertising purposes. 
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If we violate, or a platform provider believes we have violated, its terms of service (or if there is any change or deterioration in our 
relationship with these platform providers), that platform provider could limit or discontinue our access to the platform. A platform provider 
may also object to content created by merchants on our platform, such as drug paraphernalia or adult content, and our perceived distribution 
or advertisement of such content may cause a platform provider to view us in a negative light or take other adverse actions against us. For 
example, platform providers have warned application developers on their platform, including Wish, that providing content related to drug 
paraphernalia or adult content could cause such platform providers to remove the apps from their platforms. While we believe that we have 
complied with platform providers’ requirements, they may introduce additional requirements in the future. If a platform provider establishes 
more favorable relationships with one or more of our competitors or such platform provider determines that we are a competitor, our access 
to a platform may be limited or discontinued entirely. Any limit or discontinuation of our access to any platform could adversely affect our 
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

In the past, some of these platforms have been unavailable for short periods of time. This and other changes, bugs, or technical 
system issues could degrade the user experience on our platform. There may also be changes to mobile hardware or software technology 
that make it more difficult for our users to access and use our platform on their mobile devices, which could adversely affect our user growth 
and user engagement. If any of these events recurs on a prolonged, or even short-term basis, or other similar issues arise that impact users’
ability to access our app or use mobile devices, our business, financial condition, results of operations, or reputation may be harmed.

If we are unable to offer features and attract merchants to list products that keep pace with changing consumer preferences, our 
business, financial condition, and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected. 

Constantly changing consumer preferences have affected and will continue to affect the ecommerce industry. We must stay ahead of 
emerging consumer preferences and anticipate product trends that will appeal to existing and potential users. Our users choose to purchase 
products due in part to the attractive prices that we offer, and they may choose to shop elsewhere if we cannot match the prices offered by 
other websites and platforms or by brick-and-mortar stores. If our users do not find our platform entertaining and are not shown desired 
products on our platform at attractive prices, they may lose interest in us, which in turn may materially and adversely affect our business, 
financial condition, and results of operations. 

We rely on our merchants to provide a positive experience to our users. 

Negative publicity or sentiment as a result of complaints about merchants selling on our platform could reduce our ability to attract 
users, discourage users from making additional purchases on our platform, or otherwise damage our reputation. A perception that our levels 
of responsiveness and support for our users are inadequate could have similar results. In some situations, we may choose to reimburse 
users for their purchases to help avoid harm to our reputation, but we may not be able to recover the funds we expend for those 
reimbursements. 

Disruptions in the operations of a substantial number of merchants on our platform, to the extent they are caused by events that are 
beyond their control, such as interruptions in order or payment processing, transportation disruptions, natural disasters, pandemics, 
inclement weather, geo-political conflicts, including the current conflict between Russia and Ukraine arising from the invasion of Ukraine by 
Russia, terrorism, public health crises, or political unrest, could result in negative experiences for a substantial number of our users, which 
could harm our reputation and adversely affect our business. For example, if there are additional COVID-19 outbreaks in China or elsewhere, 
merchants on our platform may experience additional disruptions to their supply and restrictions on their ability to deliver products to our 
users in a timely manner, which could harm our business. 
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Our brand, reputation, and business may be harmed if merchants on our platform use unethical or illegal business practices, 
including the sale of hazardous, counterfeit, fraudulent, or illegal products, or if our policies and practices with respect to such 
sales are perceived or found to be inadequate, and we may be impacted by the unlawful activities of merchants on our platform.

It is important that both merchants and users have confidence in the transactions they are completing on our platform. Merchants 
on our platform have in the past, and may in the future, engage in illegal or unethical business practices. Allegations or findings of such illegal 
or unethical business practices by merchants on our platform could harm our brand, reputation, and business. Our policies promote legal and 
ethical business practices, such as prohibiting false or misleading seller or product information, the listing or sale of counterfeit or otherwise 
infringing goods, and the listing or sale of hazardous, fraudulent, or illegal products. For example, our merchant terms explicitly prohibit any 
illegal activity by merchants and require compliance with our policies. We maintain a suite of policies that educate merchants regarding items 
and practices that are explicitly prohibited from the platform, as well as the penalties for violations of our policies. We enforce these policies 
through the use of human and machine reviews as well as penalties for merchants if a violation of the policies is discovered. However, we do 
not control merchants or their business practices and cannot ensure their compliance with our policies. 

If merchants on our platform engage in illegal or unethical business practices or are perceived to do so, we may receive negative 
publicity and our brand and reputation may be harmed.

Additionally, while we do not control merchants and cannot ensure their compliance with applicable law, we nevertheless frequently 
receive and respond to inquiries and demands from regulators and law-enforcement agencies around the globe, and we expect to continue to 
receive more inquiries and demands in the future. If our policies are violated by merchants, or if our policies and practices or responses to 
such conduct are perceived as or found to be inadequate by regulators or law-enforcement agencies, it could subject us to government 
inquiries, investigations, or enforcement actions, as well as potential civil or criminal liabilities, or requiring changes to our policies and 
practices with respect to illegal or unethical business practices that could lower our revenue, increase our costs, make our platform less user-
friendly, or otherwise adversely impact our business. This has been the case in France, where regulators are attempting to hold Wish 
accountable and responsible for the purportedly illegal or hazardous listings created by merchants; we are currently responding to and 
challenging these claims in French courts.  Separately, during the initial outbreak of COVID-19, a small number of merchants created listings 
of personal protective equipment and other health-related products that regulators deemed to violate consumer protections related to pricing 
and advertising. Though these listings were posted by merchants in violation of our policies, Wish has received and may continue to receive 
inquiries and demands from regulators regarding these listings. 

Our merchants are subject to regulation by the U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission and similar state and international 
regulatory authorities in the United States (“U.S.”) and abroad, and their products sold on our platform could be subject to involuntary recalls, 
takedown notices, and other actions by these authorities. Concerns about product safety, including concerns about the safety of products 
manufactured in developing countries, could lead to recalls of selected products sold on our platform. Recall and government or user 
concerns about product safety could harm our reputation and reduce sales, either of which could have a material adverse effect on our 
business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.

Proposed laws in Europe, the U.S., and other jurisdictions and/or novel interpretations or enforcement of existing law may change the 
scope of platform liability, and ongoing case law developments may unpredictably increase our liability as a platform for merchant activity or 
for activities adjacent to the marketplace, such as logistics, or otherwise constrain or impede our ability to do business in a given jurisdiction. 
In that event, we may be held directly or secondarily liable for the intellectual property infringement, product compliance deficiencies, 
consumer protection deficiencies, privacy and data protection incidents, or regulatory issues of our merchants, including potentially for their 
conduct over which we have no control or influence. Moreover, we may be subject to product liability claims where merchants lack sufficient 
assets or are not reachable, which could be costly to defend in the aggregate. Regardless of the validity of any claims made against us, we 
may incur significant costs and efforts to defend against or settle them. We expect to continue to receive inquiries or demands from 
regulators and law enforcement regarding intellectual property, product compliance, and product safety. This could lead to government
investigations, inquiries, and/or the imposition of penalties, fines and/or criminal liability in certain jurisdictions and, consequently, would be 
costly, time consuming, and would adversely impact our business. 
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Merchants on our platform have in the past, and may in the future, engage in fictitious transactions or collaborate with third parties in 
order to artificially inflate their sales records and search results rankings. Such activity may frustrate other merchants by enabling the 
perpetrating merchants to be favored over legitimate merchants, may harm users by misleading them to believe that a merchant is more 
reliable or trustworthy than the merchant actually is, and may impact key performance metrics. Although we have implemented policies and 
practices to detect and penalize merchants who engage in fraudulent activities on our platform, there can be no assurance that such policies 
and practices will be effective in preventing fraudulent transactions. Any of these activities may adversely affect our brand, reputation, and 
business. If a governmental authority determines that we have aided and abetted the infringement or sale of counterfeit goods or if legal 
changes result in us potentially being liable for actions by merchants on our platform, we could face regulatory, civil, or criminal penalties. 
Successful claims by third-party rights owners could require us to pay substantial damages or refrain from permitting any further listing of the 
relevant items. These types of claims could force us to modify our business practices, which could lower our revenue, increase our costs, or 
make our platform less user friendly. Moreover, public perception that counterfeit or other unauthorized items are common in our platform, 
even if factually incorrect, could result in negative publicity and damage to our reputation and brand. 

Our merchants rely on third-party carriers and transportation providers as part of the fulfillment process, and these third parties 
may fail to adequately serve our users and comply with shipping and related regulations, which could adversely affect our service 
offerings and results of operations. 

We rely on merchants to properly and promptly prepare products ordered by our users for shipment and our logistics program relies 
on third-party carriers and logistics providers to deliver products as well as third parties to consolidate packages for shipping. Any failure by 
merchants to timely prepare such products for shipment or any delay by third-party carriers to deliver the products will have an adverse effect 
on the fulfillment of user orders, which could negatively affect the user experience and harm our business and results of operations. Any 
increase in shipping costs, any significant shipping difficulties, disruptions or delays, or any failure by merchants on our platform to deliver 
products in a timely manner or to otherwise adequately serve our users, could damage our reputation and brand, and may harm our 
business. For example, due to abrupt new value added tax ("VAT") regulations in Colombia (and related evolving interpretations of the same 
by local regulatory enforcement agencies), the de minimis threshold exception to remitting VAT for certain low-value declared parcels was 
removed, subjecting any and all parcels (regardless of import value) to VAT payment obligations. Further, there was industry-wide confusion 
as to whether the exemption from VAT liability applied to items "shipped from" or "originating in" countries with which Colombia has a Free 
Trade Agreement (“FTA”). This caused certain parcels shipped by Wish merchants to be held up at Colombia customs, causing delays and 
increasing charges for consumers. Also, during the initial outbreak of COVID-19, our cross-border logistics function was severely impacted in 
terms of both disrupted processing capabilities and increased costs, which resulted in a decrease in sales due to higher logistics costs and 
higher refund rates due to poor performance. Our merchants based in China also experienced supply interruptions and delivery delays during
the outbreak of COVID-19 and have continued to experience such interruptions and delays, which may continue to have an adverse effect on 
our users’ experience on our platform.

Historically, our merchants in China have benefitted from lower shipping costs due to the Universal Postal Union Treaty (“UPU”). 
Certain expected changes to UPU postal rates that went into effect in July 2020 and other expected changes that will be implemented in the 
future are likely to increase the shipping rates our merchants incur to ship products from China. Further, the European Commission is 
considering a legislative proposal from trade industry associations to eliminate de minimis thresholds for customs entry, which if later 
enacted, would limit packages from several countries from qualifying for tariff-free entry into the EU-27 under existing de minimis laws, thus 
making importing goods from any country to the European Union (“EU”) more complicated and expensive. The actions we have taken in our 
logistics program to mitigate these increased costs may not be successful over the long term. If there are increases in shipping costs, 
including rising oil and gas prices, the sales price of products on our platform could increase, which could reduce the volume of transaction 
activity on our platform to decrease and may consequently have a negative impact on our results of operations. 
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We generate a portion of our revenue from merchant advertising on our platform. A reduction in advertising spend by merchants 
could harm our business. 

We offer various features on our platform, such as ProductBoost and the Merchant Promotions Platform, which allow merchants to 
promote their listings to our users. In addition to generating revenue from merchants, these features may also result in increased purchases 
by users. However, not all merchants on our platform may agree with us on the value of these new features and may not use ProductBoost or 
the Merchant Promotions Platform, and some of our merchants could react negatively to these features. During the initial outbreak of COVID-
19, merchant advertising declined due to the shutdown of business activity in China. If we are unable to monetize existing and new features 
for merchants, it could have a significant impact on our business, financial condition, and prospects. 

Our continued efforts to improve our logistics programs and enable faster and more reliable delivery in order to help grow our 
business and generate revenue may not be effective. 

We have worked to improve our logistics programs and to streamline our processes in order to provide a more consistent and reliable 
experience for our users through programs such as Wish Express and Wish Local. However, we still rely on third-party carriers for delivery 
and we are still in the process of establishing reliable long-term agreements with such carriers both in the U.S. and worldwide. If we are not 
able to negotiate acceptable pricing, service level requirements, and other terms with these carriers, or these carriers experience capacity or 
performance problems or other issues, it could negatively impact our results of operations and our users’ experience. For example, due to 
COVID-19 and related supply chain issues, global logistics has experienced longer delivery times. 

We have also developed and experimented with different logistics offerings in order to monetize our logistics platform. This is a 
relatively new business initiative for us. If we are unable to consistently generate revenue from our logistics platform or offer logistics services 
that are appealing to merchants and users, or if changes in carrier policies and pricing, shortage of low-cost carriers, and fluctuation of oil and 
gas prices result in higher logistics costs, it could have a material impact on our business, financial condition, and prospects. 

The market in which we operate is rapidly evolving and we face intense competition; if we do not compete effectively, our results of 
operations and financial condition could be harmed. 

Our market is highly competitive and characterized by rapid changes in technology and consumer sentiment. Competition in our 
industry has intensified, and we expect this trend to continue as the list of our competitors grows. This competition, among other things, 
affects our ability to attract new users and engage our existing users. 

We compete with ecommerce platforms and other retailers for merchants on our platform and merchants can list their goods on a
number of ecommerce platforms, such as Amazon.com, Alibaba, Pinduoduo, Shein, and Shopify. 

There are various factors that affect how merchants engage with our platform, including:

• the number and engagement of users on our platform; 

• our fees; 

• our brand awareness; 

• our reputation; 

• the quality of our services; and 

• the functionality of our platform. 
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We also compete with retailers for the attention of users. A user has the choice of shopping with any online or offline retailer, whether 
large marketplaces, such as Amazon.com, Alibaba, Pinduoduo, Shein, and Shopify, as well as more traditional discount retailers, such as
Walmart and Target, and discount retailers that offer heavily discounted and off-season merchandise, such as Dollar General and TJ Maxx, 
or local stores or other venues or marketplaces. Many of these competitors offer low-cost or free shipping, fast shipping times, favorable 
return policies, and other features that may be difficult or impossible for our merchants to match. 

There are various factors that affect how users engage with our platform, including: 

• our brand awareness and recognition; 

• our reputation; 

• the prices of goods sold on our platform; 

• the functionality of our platform; 

• ease of payment; 

• shipping terms; and 

• the breadth of the products sold on our platform. 

Some of our competitors have, and potential competitors may have, longer operating histories, greater financial, technical, marketing, 
institutional and other resources, faster shipping times, lower-cost shipping, larger databases, greater name and brand recognition, or a 
larger base of users or merchants than we do. For example, Google or Meta could enter the ecommerce space and they have significantly 
more resources and users than we do. They may devote greater resources to the development, marketing, and promotion of their services 
than we do, and they may offer lower pricing or free shipping to the users on their platforms. These factors may allow our competitors to 
derive greater revenue and profits from their existing user and merchant bases, acquire users at lower costs or respond more quickly than we 
can to new or emerging technologies and changes in trends and consumer shopping behavior. If we are unable to compete successfully, or if 
competing successfully requires us to expend greater resources, our financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected. 

We have a history of operating losses and we may not achieve or maintain profitability in the future.

Since our inception in 2010, we have incurred net losses each year. We incurred net losses of $384 million, $361 million, and $745 
million for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, respectively. As of December 31, 2022, we had an accumulated deficit of 
approximately $2.9 billion. We may not achieve or maintain profitability in the future. Our operating expenses may continue to increase in the 
future as we increase our efforts to expand our user base, continue to invest in the research and development of our technologies and 
service offerings and continue to operate as a public company. These efforts may be more costly than we expect and we may not be able to 
increase our revenue to offset our operating expenses. Our revenue growth slowed for the year ended December 31, 2022 and may slow 
again, or our revenue may decline for a number of other possible reasons, including increased competition, a decrease in the growth or 
reduction in size of our overall market, or if we fail for any reason to capitalize on growth opportunities. 

Our company is evolving, and we are in the process of executing on new business strategies and restructuring efforts; if we fail to 
successfully execute on these strategies, our business, financial condition, and operating results could be harmed.

Our business is undergoing significant changes and our business strategy is constantly evolving. Our success depends on our 
ability to adapt our business model to changing market conditions and consumer spending habits. For example, in 2021, we made a number 
of strategic decisions in an effort to improve our business operations and our marketplace offerings in response to the headwinds of reduced 
retention and new buyer conversion and a rise in digital advertising costs. Nevertheless, certain elements of this shift in strategy, or any 
future changes to our strategy that we may make could be disruptive to our business and our employees if we do not manage the changes 
properly. Furthermore, continuing changes in macroeconomic trends, shifting consumer priorities, and the COVID-19 pandemic may hamper 
and delay our efforts by, for example, making our assumptions regarding our strategies incorrect or subject to change or causing our 
strategies to not have the effect and outcomes that we anticipate. The slowing of consumer discretionary spending due to macroeconomic 
factors could also impede our turnaround efforts.
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We may not successfully execute or achieve the expected benefits of our restructuring and turnaround initiatives, which could 
adversely affect our business.

We recently announced a turnaround and restructuring strategy which focuses on narrowing our business focus, reducing our 
headcount and outside spend, reviewing our real estate footprint, and a number of other cost saving measures. These restructuring initiatives 
are intended to focus the business on operational efficiency and right-sizing our expenses for 2022 and beyond. Although we believe these 
initiatives address the needs of our business and its long-term objectives, our strategy is based on certain assumptions and forecasts, which 
are subject to risks and uncertainties, including whether we have accurately identified the issues, whether we targeted the appropriate cost 
saving measures, and whether our right-sizing efforts are executed at the appropriate scale and scope. Consequently, the implementation of 
these restructuring initiatives may not be successful in yielding the intended results. Moreover, implementation of these initiatives may be 
costly and disruptive to our business, with the intended impact falling short or resulting in an overcorrection. Our cost cutting initiatives may 
negatively affect employee morale, which could result in personnel losses beyond the planned workforce reduction, diminished productivity, 
loss of institutional knowledge, and difficulty attracting highly skilled employees. The intended results of our turnaround effort may also be 
impacted by negative publicity about the Company and/or our restructuring initiatives, resulting in reputational harm, diminished investor 
confidence, and consumer backlash. These new initiatives have and may continue to require a significant amount of executive 
management’s time and focus, which may divert attention from other areas of our business. See the sections titled Item 7, “Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—February 2022 Restructuring Plan and January 2023 Reduction 
in Workforce” and Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 12. Restructuring and Note 13. Subsequent Events”, for 
further discussion of our restructuring and turnaround initiatives.

Adverse impacts on our ability to effectively use social media, emails, and text messages may subject us to fines or penalties or 
impact our reputation or ability to generate revenue. 

We use social media, emails, and text messages as part of our omnichannel approach to marketing. As laws and regulations rapidly 
evolve to govern the use of these channels, the failure by us, our employees or third parties acting on our behalf or at our direction to abide 
by applicable laws and regulations in the use of these channels could adversely affect our reputation or subject us to fines, other penalties, or 
lawsuits. Although we continue to update our practices as these laws change over time, we may be subject to lawsuits alleging our failure to 
comply with such laws. In addition, our employees or third parties acting on our behalf or at our direction may knowingly or inadvertently use 
social media, including through advertisements, in ways that could lead to the loss or infringement of intellectual property, as well as the 
public disclosure of proprietary, confidential, or sensitive personal information of our business, employees, users, merchants, or others. Any 
such inappropriate use of social media, emails, and text messages could also cause reputational damage.

Moreover, changes in advertising and tracking policies of mobile device operating systems and platforms (e.g., Apple and Android)
may limit or prevent the collection and use of certain data elements for certain purposes, such as ad targeting, and the use of such data 
elements may subject us to fines or other penalties.

Our users may engage with us online through social media platforms, including Facebook, Instagram, and Twitter, by providing 
feedback and public commentary about all aspects of our business. Information concerning us or our merchants, whether accurate or not, 
may be posted on social media platforms at any time and may have a disproportionately adverse impact on our brand, reputation, or 
business. The harm may be immediate without affording us an opportunity for redress or correction and could have a material adverse effect 
on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects. Additionally, changes to the terms of these social networking 
services to limit promotional communications, any restrictions that would limit our ability or our customers’ ability to send communications 
through their services, disruptions or downtime experienced by these social media platforms or decline in the use of or engagement with 
social media platforms by consumers could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Further, if 
certain social media platforms change their business strategy to one that does not align with our values we may choose to limit or discontinue 
use of such platform, which could lead to a decline in customer acquisition and engagement and result in a reduction to the reach of our 
advertisements.
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Further, we believe that social media, emails, and text messages are an important part of our customer outreach and user 
experience. If we are unable to successfully deliver emails or other messages to our subscribers, or if subscribers decline to open or read our 
messages, our net revenue and profitability would be materially adversely affected. Changes in how web and mail services block, organize 
and prioritize email may reduce the number of subscribers who receive or open our emails. For example, Google’s Gmail service has a 
feature that organizes incoming emails into categories (primary, social and promotions). Such categorization or similar inbox organizational 
features may result in our emails being delivered in a less prominent location in a subscriber’s inbox or viewed as “spam” by our subscribers
and may reduce the likelihood of that subscriber reading our emails. Actions by third parties to block, impose restrictions on or charge for the 
delivery of emails or other messages could also adversely impact our business. From time to time, emails service providers or other third 
parties may block bulk email transmissions or otherwise experience technical difficulties that could result in our inability to successfully deliver 
emails or other messages to customers. 

We are subject to payment-related risks. 

Our users can pay for purchases using a variety of methods, including through credit cards or Buy Now, Pay Later solutions through 
various third-party payment providers, and we pay our merchants through a variety of methods. If these service providers do not perform 
adequately or if our relationships with these service providers were to terminate, our users’ ability to place orders, and our merchants’ ability 
to receive orders or payments could be adversely affected and our business could be harmed. For example, in 2014, PayPal temporarily 
suspended processing payments on our platform as a result of concerns related to products listed on our platform. If a third-party payment 
provider suspends service or has significant outages in the future and we do not have alternative payment providers in place or are unable to 
provide our own solution, our business could be harmed. Likewise, if our third-party payment providers experience a security breach or fraud 
attack, our merchants and users could be adversely impacted. In addition, if our third-party providers increase the fees they charge us, our 
margins could decrease. If we respond by increasing the fees we charge to our merchants, some merchants may increase the price of their 
products, stop listing new items for sale or even close their accounts altogether. 

The laws and regulations related to payments are complex, evolving, subject to change and vary across different jurisdictions in the 
United States and globally. Any failure or claim of our failure to comply, or any failure by our third-party payment processors to comply, could 
cost us substantial resources and could result in liabilities. Further, through our agreements with our third-party payment processors, we are 
indirectly subject to payment card association operating rules, and certification requirements, including the Payment Card Industry Data 
Security Standard and Visa Network Rules, which are subject to change. Failure to comply with these rules and certification requirements 
could impact our ability to meet our contractual obligations with our third-party payment processors and could result in potential fines. We are 
also subject to rules governing electronic funds transfers. Any change in these rules and requirements could make it difficult or impossible for 
us to comply. In addition, similar to a potential increase in costs from third-party providers described above, any increased costs associated 
with compliance with payment card association rules could lead to increased fees for our merchants, which may negatively impact our 
marketplaces. 

We track certain performance metrics with internal tools and do not independently verify such metrics. Certain of our performance 
metrics are subject to inherent challenges in measurement, and real or perceived inaccuracies in such metrics may harm our 
reputation and negatively affect our business. 

We calculate and track performance metrics with internal tools, which are not independently verified by any third-party. While we 
believe our metrics are reasonable estimates of our user or merchant base for the applicable period of measurement, the methodologies 
used to measure these metrics require significant judgment and may be susceptible to algorithm or other technical errors. For example, user 
accounts are based on email addresses, and a user could use multiple email addresses to establish multiple accounts, and merchants in 
many instances will have multiple accounts. As a result, the data we report may not be accurate. Our internal tools and processes we use to 
identify multiple accounts or fraudulent accounts have a number of limitations, and our methodologies for tracking key metrics may change 
over time, which could result in unexpected changes to our metrics, including historical metrics. Our ability to recalculate our historical metrics 
may be impacted by data limitations or other factors that require us to apply different methodologies for such adjustments and we generally 
do not intend to update previously disclosed metrics for any such changes. Though we regularly review our processes for calculating metrics 
and may adjust our processes for calculating metrics to improve their accuracy, limitations or errors with respect to how we measure data (or 
the data that we measure) may affect our understanding of certain details of our business, which could affect our longer term strategies. If our 
performance metrics are not accurate representations of our business, user or merchant base, or traffic levels; if we discover material 
inaccuracies in our metrics; or if the metrics we rely on to track our performance do not provide an accurate measurement of our business, 
user or merchant base or traffic levels, we may not be able to effectively implement our business strategy, our reputation may be harmed, 
and our operating and financial results could be adversely affected. 
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Our merchants, platform partners, and investors rely on our key metrics as a representation of our performance. If these third parties 
do not perceive our user metrics to be accurate representations of our user base or user engagement, or if we discover material inaccuracies 
in our user metrics, our reputation may be harmed and merchants may be less willing to sell on our platform, which could negatively affect 
our business, financial condition, or results of operations. 

We must develop new offerings to respond to our users’ and merchants’ changing needs. 

Our industry is characterized by rapidly changing technology, new service and product introductions, and changing user and 
merchant demands. 

Our users and merchants may not be satisfied with our new platform offerings or perceive that the new offerings do not respond to 
their needs. Developing new offerings is complex, and the timetable for commercial release is difficult to predict and may vary from our 
historical experience. As a result, the introduction of new offerings may occur after anticipated or announced release dates. In addition, new 
offerings could require us to comply with additional governmental regulations. Our new offerings also may bring us more directly into 
competition with companies that are better established or have greater resources than we do. 

If we do not continue to cost-effectively develop new offerings that satisfy our users or merchants, then our competitive position and 
growth prospects may be harmed. In addition, new offerings may have lower margins than existing offerings and our revenue may not grow 
enough as a result of the new offerings to offset the cost of developing them. 

If we fail to maintain, expand, and diversify our relationships with merchants, our revenue and results of operations will be harmed. 

We rely on our merchants to offer products that appeal to our existing and potential users at attractive prices. Our ability to provide 
popular products on our platform at attractive prices depends on our ability to develop mutually beneficial relationships with our merchants. 
For example, we rely on our merchants, most of whom are based in China, to make available sufficient inventory and fulfill large volumes of 
orders in an efficient and timely manner to ensure a positive user experience. Merchants can leave our platform at any time, so we may 
experience merchant attrition in the ordinary course of business resulting from several factors, such as losses to competitors, perception that 
marketing on our platform is ineffective, reduction in our or merchants’ marketing budgets, and the penalties we impose on merchants for 
failing to comply with our policies. We have had, and may continue to have, disputes with merchants with respect to their compliance with our 
delivery requirements, quality control policies and measures, and the penalties imposed by us for violation of these policies or measures, 
which may cause them to be dissatisfied with our platform or to legally challenge the enforceability of our terms. If we experience significant 
merchant attrition, or if we are unable to attract new and geographically-diverse merchants, our revenue and results of operations may be 
materially and adversely affected. For example, during the initial outbreak of COVID-19, many of our merchants based in China were 
adversely impacted, which had a negative impact on the supply of inventory on our marketplace and our merchants based in China continue 
to be adversely impacted. In addition, our agreements with merchants also typically do not restrict them from establishing or maintaining 
business relationships with our competitors. Furthermore, the European Commission is considering a legislative proposal from trade industry 
associations to eliminate de minimis thresholds for customs entry. If the European Commission were to adopt these recommendations, it 
would bar or limit packages from numerous countries from qualifying for tariff-free entry into the EU-27 under existing de minimis laws, and 
make importing goods from any country to the EU more complicated and expensive, which could adversely affect our business.
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Failure to deal effectively with fraudulent activities on our platform would increase our loss rate and harm our business, and could 
severely diminish merchant and user confidence in and use of our services. 

We have in the past incurred and may in the future incur losses from various types of fraud, including stolen credit card numbers, 
claims that a user did not authorize a purchase, merchant fraud, and users who have closed bank accounts or have insufficient funds in open 
bank accounts to satisfy payments. We face risks with respect to fraudulent activities on our platform and periodically receive complaints from 
users who may not have received the products that they had contracted to purchase. In some jurisdictions, users may also have the right to 
cancel a sale made by a merchant within a specified time period and for any reason. Although we have implemented measures to detect and 
reduce the occurrence of fraudulent activities, combat bad user experiences, and increase user satisfaction, including evaluating merchants 
on the basis of their transaction history and restricting or suspending their activity, there can be no assurance that these measures will be 
effective in combating fraudulent transactions or improving overall satisfaction among merchants, users, and other participants. Additional 
measures to address fraud could negatively affect the attractiveness of our services to users or merchants, resulting in a reduction in our 
ability to attract new users or continue to engage current users, damage to our reputation, or a diminution in the value of our brand. 

Additionally, under current credit card practices, we are liable for fraudulent credit card transactions because we do not obtain a 
cardholder’s signature, which results in chargebacks made to our users that we are not able to collect from our merchants. We do not 
currently carry insurance against this risk. We face the risk of significant losses from this type of fraud as our net sales increase and as we 
continue to expand globally. Our failure to adequately control fraudulent credit card transactions could damage our reputation and brand and 
substantially harm our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects. 

We also accept payments for many of our sales through credit and debit card transactions, which are handled through third-party 
payment processors. As a result, we are subject to a number of risks related to credit and debit card payments, including that we pay 
interchange and other fees, which may increase over time and could require us to absorb or pass along an increase in our costs and 
expenses. In addition, as part of payment processing, our users’ credit and debit card information is transmitted to our third-party credit card 
payment processors. We may in the future become subject to lawsuits or other proceedings for purportedly fraudulent transactions arising out 
of the actual or alleged theft of our users’ credit or debit card information if the security of our third-party credit card payment processors is 
breached. We and our third-party credit card payment processors are also subject to payment card association operating rules, certification 
requirements and rules governing electronic funds transfers, which could change or be reinterpreted to make it difficult or impossible for us to 
comply. If we or our third-party credit card payment processors fail to comply with these rules or requirements, we may be subject to fines 
and higher transaction fees and lose our ability to accept credit and debit card payments from our users in addition to the consequences that 
could arise from such action or inaction violating applicable privacy, data protection, data security and other laws as outlined above, and 
there may be an adverse impact on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects. 

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic may continue to adversely affect our business and results of operations. 

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 to be a pandemic. In an effort to contain and mitigate the spread 
of COVID-19, many countries, including the United States, imposed unprecedented restrictions on travel and business operations, and there 
were business closures and a substantial reduction in economic activity in countries that had significant outbreaks of COVID-19. While many 
of the restrictions have been lifted, from time to time restrictions were reimposed in certain areas of the world, and we cannot be certain that 
such restrictions will not be reinstituted in the future. 

Our operations and performance depend significantly on global and regional economic conditions, and the outbreak of COVID-19 
has had a significant negative effect on global and regional economies. Further, the ability of our merchants to offer products and make 
available sufficient inventory in an efficient manner may be adversely affected by the health impacts, travel restrictions, required social 
distancing, and other governmental mandates due to COVID-19 that continue to remain in place, which could negatively impact our users’ 
experience and cause our revenue and reputation to decline. Additionally, due to the continuing economic impacts caused by COVID-19, 
consumer discretionary spending has been adversely affected, which may cause the demand for the products available on our platform to be 
reduced and our revenue to decline. 
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We were conducting business with substantial restrictions, such as remote working and limited employee travel, among other 
modifications and some of those restrictions continue to remain in place. While our business occurs over an online platform, which allows us 
to support our merchants and users virtually, we cannot be certain that our ability to service our merchants and users will not be adversely 
affected by COVID-19. We also continue to see disruption in the supply chain that is affecting delivery times. 

At the beginning of the COVD-19 pandemic, we benefited from greater mobile usage and less competition from physical retail as a 
result of shelter-in-place mandates. We also benefited from increased user spending due to U.S. government stimulus programs. 

The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic may continue to impact our business will depend on future developments, which are 
highly uncertain and cannot be predicted with confidence, including the duration of the pandemic, the lifting of, or reinstitution of, travel or 
other restrictions, changes to consumer ecommerce activity in response to evolving governmental mandates that impact brick-and-mortar 
stores, supply chain and logistical challenges, global unemployment rates, shifting priorities of regulatory agencies in response to the 
pandemic, the development and distribution of vaccines, and the effectiveness of actions taken in the U.S. and other countries to prevent, 
contain, and treat the disease and its variants. The pandemic may have the effect of heightening or exacerbating many of the other risks 
described in this “Risk Factors” section. See the section titled Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Global Considerations” for a further discussion of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business.

Our refund policies may adversely affect our results of operations. 

We have adopted user-friendly refund policies that make it convenient and easy for users to receive a refund after completing 
purchases. These policies are designed to improve users’ shopping experience and promote user loyalty, which in turn help us acquire and 
engage our existing users. We may also be required by law to adopt new or amend existing refund policies from time to time. These policies 
also make us more susceptible to misuse and if our refund policy is misused by a significant number of users, our costs may increase 
significantly, and our results of operations may be materially and adversely affected. If we revise these policies to reduce our costs and 
expenses, our users may be dissatisfied, which may result in loss of existing users or failure to acquire new users at a desirable pace or cost, 
which may materially and adversely affect our results of operations.  

Our ability to recruit and retain employees is important to our success. 

Our future performance depends on our employees, including key engineering and product development personnel. Due to 
competition for key personnel within our industry, we may be unable to successfully attract, integrate, or retain sufficiently qualified key 
personnel. In making employment decisions, particularly in the internet and high-technology industries, job candidates and current employees 
often consider the value of the equity awards they would receive in connection with their employment or continued employment and 
fluctuations in and negative pressure on our stock price may make it more difficult to attract, retain, and motivate employees.

Our forecasts of market opportunity and market growth may prove to be inaccurate, and, even if these forecasts materialize, we 
cannot assure you our business will grow at similar rates, if at all. 

Estimates of market opportunity and forecasts of market growth are subject to significant uncertainty and are based on assumptions 
and estimates that may not prove to be accurate, including due to the impacts from COVID-19. Any estimates of the size of the markets that 
we may be able to address and any forecasts relating to the expected growth in ecommerce and other markets are subject to many 
assumptions and may prove to be inaccurate. These markets may not grow at the rates that we forecast. We may not grow our business at 
similar rates, or at all. Our growth is subject to many factors, including our success in implementing our business strategy, which is subject to 
many risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, any estimates of market opportunity and forecasts of market growth, including any in this report, 
should not be taken as indicative of our future growth.
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We rely on consumer discretionary spending and may be adversely affected by economic downturns and other macroeconomic 
conditions or trends.

Macroeconomic conditions may adversely affect our business. If general economic conditions deteriorate globally or in specific 
markets where we operate, consumer discretionary spending may decline and demand for products available in our platform may be 
reduced. Recently, there have been some indications of deteriorating economic conditions both globally and in the markets we operate. A 
decrease in consumer discretionary spending would cause sales in our platform to decline and adversely impact our business. If the 
Company’s costs were to become subject to significant inflationary pressures, including recent inflationary pressures, the Company may not 
be able to fully offset such higher costs through increases in revenue as increases in core inflation rates are affecting consumers’ willingness 
to make discretionary purchases on our platforms. The Company’s inability or failure to do so could harm the Company’s business, financial 
condition, and results of operations. As the world moves into new phases of the pandemic, with new variants emerging, and inflation on the 
rise, macroeconomic conditions may continue to trend downward for a more prolonged period than expected.

Unfavorable changes or failure by us to comply with new and/or evolving internet and ecommerce regulations could substantially 
harm our business and operating results. 

We are subject to general business regulations and laws as well as regulations and laws specifically governing the internet and 
ecommerce. These regulations and laws may involve taxes, privacy and data security, consumer protection, the ability to collect and/or share 
necessary information that allows us to conduct business on the internet, marketing communications and advertising, content protection, 
electronic contracts, or gift cards. Furthermore, the regulatory landscape impacting internet and ecommerce businesses is constantly 
evolving, and new regulations and laws will be forthcoming. Any failure, or perceived failure, by us to comply with any of these laws or 
regulations could result in damage to our reputation, a loss in business and proceedings, or actions against us by governmental entities or
others, which could impact our operating results. 

Our business could suffer if we are unsuccessful in making, integrating, and maintaining any future acquisitions and investments. 

We may acquire businesses or technologies in the future. Integrating an acquired business or technology is difficult and can be risky. 
These potential and completed transactions create risks such as:

• disruption of our ongoing business, including loss of management focus on existing businesses; 

• the difficulty of integrating new businesses and technologies into our infrastructure; and 

• the risks associated with assuming liabilities related to the activities of the acquired business before and after the acquisition, 
including liabilities for violations of laws and regulations, commercial disputes, cyberattacks, taxes, and other matters.

Moreover, acquisitions may divert management’s time and focus from operating our business. Acquisitions also may require us to 
spend a substantial portion of our available cash, issue stock, incur debt or other liabilities, amortize expenses related to intangible assets, or 
incur write-offs of goodwill or other assets. Finally, acquisitions could be viewed negatively by analysts, investors, merchants, or our users.

We may be involved in litigation matters or other legal proceedings that are expensive and time consuming. 

We may become involved in litigation matters, including class action lawsuits, relating to intellectual property, product liability, and 
consumer practices, whether for our own products or those offered by merchants, as well as other commercial disputes. Any lawsuit to which 
we are a party, with or without merit, may result in an unfavorable judgment. We also may decide to settle lawsuits on unfavorable terms. Any 
such negative outcome could result in payments of substantial damages or fines, damage to our reputation, loss of rights, or adverse 
changes to our offerings or business practices. Any of these results could adversely affect our business. In addition, defending claims is 
costly and can impose a significant burden on our management. 
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Additionally, the market price of our Class A common stock has been and may continue to be volatile.  As a result, we have been 
named in lawsuits, and may be subject to both ongoing litigation and other requests related to our stock price/performance and/or Board 
performance and independence. In 2021, we were named as defendants in various securities litigations: (1) In May 2021, four putative class 
action lawsuits were filed in U.S. federal court against the Company, its directors, certain of its officers and the underwriters named in its 
initial public offering (“IPO”) registration statement alleging violations of securities laws based on statements made in its registration 
statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC in connection with its IPO and seeking monetary damages (“IPO cases”). One of these four cases 
was dismissed, leaving three pending cases against the Company, which have since been related and consolidated before one judge.  The 
lead case is Hoang v. ContextLogic, Inc., and (2) in August 2021, a shareholder derivative action purportedly brought on behalf of the 
Company, Patel v. Szulczewski, was filed in the U.S. federal court alleging that the Company’s directors and officers made or caused the 
Company to make false and/or misleading statements about the Company’s business operations and financial prospects in various public 
filings. This matter is stayed pending certain motion practice in the IPO cases. We may continue to be the target of securities litigations, 
and/or may receive other civil and regulator inquiries and requests, in the future. Securities litigation or inquiries or investigations against us 
could result in substantial costs and divert our management’s attention from other business concerns, which could adversely affect our 
business.

From time to time, we are subject to investigations, demands, litigation and other proceedings involving consumer protection, product 
safety, and data protection authorities or other regulatory agencies, including, in particular, in Denmark, France, Hungary, Italy, the 
Netherlands, and the United States. These proceedings can result in civil and/or criminal penalties, large fines, other penalties, and/or 
remediation efforts and/or injunctive relief that could limit or restrict our ability to do business either in a given jurisdiction within a product 
class. For example, in France we are facing (1) civil litigation over product safety and merchant listings which the regulator deems to be 
unsafe or of poor quality; and (2) charges from the French authorities relating to the previous policies enabling merchants to utilize strike-
through pricing, previous practices regarding non-translation of product listings on the Wish app and website, and allegations relating to anti-
counterfeiting practices and policies. Separately, at the initial outbreak of COVID-19, consumer protection authorities demanded rapid and
decisive changes in the way that we screen and handle product listings that potentially violate various laws, including emergency price caps 
on certain items. Implementing these requests or defending against any associated fines could prove expensive and time consuming and 
negatively affect our results of operations and financial condition. While we may dispute the charges or cases, novel interpretations of the law
or enforcement efforts could subject us to litigation and/or time consuming and costly remediation measures or otherwise impair business 
operations in a jurisdiction.

We have identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting and may identify additional material 
weaknesses in the future or otherwise fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, which may result in material 
misstatements of our consolidated financial statements or cause us to fail to meet our periodic reporting obligations.

During the preparation and the audit of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021, we and our 
independent registered public accounting firm identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. In 
addition, given our reliance on information technology (“IT”) systems to synthesize both financial and nonfinancial information, any material 
weaknesses in our IT controls may result in errors in not only our consolidated financial statements but our nonfinancial metrics as well.  

The material weaknesses we identified in 2021 occurred because (i) the processes and controls over our IT systems relevant to the 
preparation of our consolidated financial statements were inadequate and (ii) the current processes in place were insufficient to allow us to 
complete the testing and assessment of the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting in a timely 
manner.

 As described in Item 9A, "Controls and Procedures", we have completed certain remediation activities during the year ended 
December 31, 2022. As part of our ongoing remediation efforts, we will continue our initiatives to implement measures designed to ensure 
that remaining control deficiencies contributing to the material weaknesses are remediated, such that these controls are designed, 
implemented, and operating effectively. 
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We cannot guarantee that our efforts will remediate these deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting or that additional 
material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting will not be identified in the future. Our failure to implement and maintain 
effective internal control over financial reporting could result in errors in our consolidated financial statements that could result in a 
restatement of our financial statements and could cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations, any of which could diminish investor 
confidence and cause a decline in the price of our Class A common stock. See Item 9A, “Controls and Procedures” for further discussions of
the identified material weaknesses.

Our management is required to evaluate the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and internal control over financial reporting. If 
we are unable to maintain effective disclosure controls and internal control over financial reporting, investors may lose confidence 
in the accuracy of our financial reports.

As a public company, we are required to maintain internal control over financial reporting and to report any material weaknesses in 
such internal control. Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires that we evaluate and determine the effectiveness of our internal control 
over financial reporting. Additionally, our independent registered public accounting firm is required to deliver an attestation report on the 
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. We expect that the requirements of these rules and regulations will continue to 
increase our legal, accounting, and financial compliance costs, make some activities more difficult, time-consuming, costly, and place 
significant strain on our personnel, systems, and resources.

We are continuing to develop and refine our disclosure controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information 
required to be disclosed in the reports that we will file with the SEC is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods 
specified in SEC rules and forms and that information required to be disclosed in reports under the Exchange Act is accumulated and 
communicated to our principal executive and financial officers. While we continue to improve our internal control over financial reporting 
through remediation measures described in Item 9A, “Controls and Procedures—Management’s Plan to Remediate the Material 
Weaknesses”, we cannot guarantee that these changes will remediate future deficiencies or that additional material weaknesses in our 
internal control over financial reporting will not be identified in the future.              

In order to maintain and improve the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial 
reporting, we have expended, and anticipate that we will continue to expend, significant resources, including accounting-related costs and 
significant management oversight.  If any of these new or improved controls and systems do not perform as expected, we may experience 
further deficiencies in our controls.

Our current controls and any new controls that we develop may become inadequate because of changes in conditions in our 
business, some of which may arise from our restructuring and turnaround initiatives. We and our independent registered public accounting 
firm identified weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting and additional weaknesses may be discovered in the future. Any 
failure to develop or maintain effective controls or any difficulties encountered in their implementation or improvement could harm our results 
of operations, cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations, and adversely affect the results of periodic management evaluations and our 
independent registered public accounting firm’s attestation reports required by the SEC. Ineffective disclosure controls and procedures and 
internal control over financial reporting could diminish investor confidence, negatively affect the price of our Class A common stock, and 
could result in our delisting on Nasdaq. As noted previously, see Item 9A, “Controls and Procedures” for further discussions of the identified 
material weaknesses.

Risks Related to our International Operations 

Economic tension between the United States and China, or between other countries, may intensify and the United States, China, or 
other countries may adopt drastic measures in the future that impact our business. 

Our merchants source a large percentage of the products we list on our platform from China and other countries outside the U.S. and 
Europe. Additionally, most of our merchants, and some of our operations, are located in China, making the price and availability of products 
on our platform susceptible to international trade risks and other international economic conditions. 
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If the U.S. government or other governments impose tariffs or other economic measures that directly or indirectly increase the price 
of products it imports and that we list on our platform, the increased prices could have a material adverse effect on our financial results and 
business. The effects of the imposed and proposed tariffs are uncertain because of the dynamic nature of governmental action, relations and 
responses. Further escalation of trade, economic and geo-political tensions between the United States and its trading partners, especially 
China, could result in long-term changes to global trade, including retaliatory trade restrictions that restrict the international flow of products. 
For example, the European Commission is considering a legislative proposal from trade industry associations to eliminate de minimis
thresholds for customs entry. If the European Commission were to adopt these recommendations, it would bar or limit packages from 
numerous countries from qualifying for tariff-free entry into the EU-27 under existing de minimis laws, and make importing goods from any 
country to the EU more complicated and expensive, which could adversely affect our business. We also cannot predict what actions may 
ultimately be taken with respect to tariffs or trade relations between the U.S. and China or other countries, what products may be subject to 
such actions, or what actions may be taken by the other countries in retaliation. Any alterations to our business strategy or operations made 
in order to adapt to or comply with any such changes would be time-consuming and expensive, and certain of our competitors may be better 
suited to withstand or react to these changes. 

Additionally, certain jurisdictions may attempt to restrict the operation and access of certain China-based companies, such as TikTok,
WeChat and Alipay in the U.S. In response, government authorities in China, or elsewhere, may seek to restrict access and operation of U.S. 
companies. Most of our merchants and some of our operations are located in China; if our operations or our merchant’s activities were 
restricted in China, our platform, our business, financial condition, and results of operations would be adversely affected. 

We are not able to predict future economic policy of the U.S., China, or of any foreign countries in which we operate. The adoption 
and expansion of restrictions, including restrictions on access to apps and other platforms, cross-border data transfers, tariffs, or other 
governmental action related to economic policies, has the potential to adversely impact our business, operational results and financial 
position. 

Certain aspects of our business relating to the provision of financial services are subject to government regulation and oversight. 

Many jurisdictions in which we operate have laws that govern financial services activities. Regulators in certain jurisdictions may 
determine that certain aspects of our business are subject to these laws and could require us to obtain licenses to continue to operate in such 
jurisdictions. For example, if we are deemed to be a money transmitter as defined by applicable regulation, we could be subject to certain 
laws, rules and regulations enforced by multiple authorities and governing bodies in the United States and abroad. If we are found to be a 
money transmitter or lender under any applicable regulation and we are not in compliance with such regulations, we may be subject to fines 
or other penalties in one or more jurisdictions levied by federal or state or local regulators, including state Attorneys General, as well as those 
levied by foreign regulators. In addition to fines, penalties for failing to comply with applicable rules and regulations could include criminal and 
civil proceedings or other enforcement actions. We could also be required to make changes to our business practices or compliance 
programs as a result of regulatory scrutiny. 

One of our subsidiaries, ContextLogic Collections B.V., received a payments institution license in 2021 from its regulatory authority, 
De Nederlandsche Bank. This license permits ContextLogic Collections B.V. to operate as a payment service provider (including acquiring 
and executing payment transactions, as referred to in the Revised Payment Services Directive (“2015/2366/EU”) in the Netherlands. In 
addition, ContextLogic Collections B.V. can offer its payment services in all other countries of the European Economic Area (“EEA”) on the 
basis of a European passport. As a regulated financial institution, ContextLogic Collections B.V. is in compliance and will continue to comply 
with financial services regulations within the EU, including those relating to anti-money laundering, combating the financing of terrorism, 
bribery, forced labor, human trafficking, slavery, and sanctioned or prohibited persons or regions.
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We continue to evaluate our options for seeking additional licenses and/or subsidiaries in several other jurisdictions to optimize our 
payment solutions, interchange fees, and to support the future growth of our business. We could be denied such licenses, have existing 
licenses revoked, or be required to make significant changes to our business operations before being granted such licenses. If we are denied 
licenses or such licenses are revoked, we may be forced to cease or limit business operations in certain jurisdictions, including in the EEA, 
and even if we are able to obtain such licenses, we could be subject to fines or other enforcement action, or stripped of such licenses, if we 
are found to violate the requirements of such licenses. Such regulatory actions, or the need to obtain regulatory approvals, could impose 
significant costs and involve substantial delay in payments we make in certain local markets, any of which could adversely affect our 
business, financial condition, or operating results. 

In addition, laws related to money transmission and online payments are evolving, and changes in such laws could affect our ability 
to provide payment processing on our platform in the same form and on the same terms as we have historically, or at all. As we evolve our 
business or make changes to our business structure, we may be subject to additional laws or requirements related to money transmission, 
lending, online payments and financial regulation. These laws govern, among other things, money transmission, prepaid access instruments, 
lending, electronic funds transfers, anti-money laundering, combating the financing of terrorism, banking, systematic integrity risk 
assessments, cyber security of payment processes, sanctions and import and export restrictions. Our business operations may not always 
comply with these financial laws and regulations. Historical or future non-compliance with these laws or regulations could result in significant 
criminal and civil lawsuits, penalties, forfeiture of significant assets or other enforcement actions. Costs associated with fines and 
enforcement actions, as well as reputational harm, changes in compliance requirements or limits on our ability to expand our product 
offerings, could harm our business. 

Further, our payment system is susceptible to illegal and improper uses, including money laundering, terrorist financing, fraud and 
payments to sanctioned parties. We have invested and will need to continue to invest substantial resources to comply with applicable 
financial services legislation, including anti-money laundering, combating the financing of terrorism, and sanctions laws. Government 
authorities may seek to bring legal action against us if we fail to prevent or detect that our payment system is used for improper or illegal 
purposes or if our enterprise risk management or controls  are not adequately assessed, updated, or implemented, and any such action could 
result in financial or reputational harm to our business.

Additionally, some of our merchants use applications, such as WeChat, for transmitting payments and communicating with us. If any 
of these payment applications were limited or banned by governmental authorities, certain payments could be delayed or our 
communications with merchants could be adversely impacted. 

Certain aspects of our business are subject to global trade customs regulations and government oversight.

We are also within the scope of certain customs enquiries and subject to international trade law enforcement, that could require us 
to incur an increase in costs and/or impacting the supply and delivery-times of products from merchants to consumers, potentially causing us 
to experience damage in reputation and/or restricting our rate of global growth. 

Our business is conducted worldwide, with goods imported from and exported to a substantial number of countries. The vast majority 
of products sold on our platform are shipped internationally. We are subject to numerous regulations, including customs and international 
trade laws that govern the importation, exportation, and sale of goods. For example, due to abrupt new VAT regulations in Colombia (and 
related evolving interpretations of the same by local regulatory enforcement agencies), the de minimis threshold exception to remitting VAT 
for certain low-value declared parcels was removed, subjecting any and all parcels (regardless of import value) to VAT payment obligations. 
Further, there was industry-wide confusion as to whether the exemption from VAT liability applied to items "shipped from" or "originating in" 
countries with which Colombia has a FTA. This caused certain parcels shipped by Wish merchants to be held up at Colombia customs, 
causing delays and increasing charges for consumers. Also, in the first quarter of 2018, PostNord, the postal service in Sweden, suspended 
delivery of packages coming from outside the EU as it evaluated imposing processing fees and collection of taxes, which resulted in a 
decrease in sales in Sweden. In addition, during the initial outbreak of COVID-19, our cross-border logistics function was severely impacted 
in terms of both disrupted processing capabilities and increased costs, which resulted in a decrease in sales due to higher logistics costs and 
higher refund rates due to poor performance.
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In addition, we face risks associated with trade protection laws, policies and measures and other regulatory requirements affecting 
trade and investment, including loss or modification of exemptions for taxes and tariffs, imposition of new tariffs and duties, and import and 
export licensing requirements in the countries in which we operate. If these laws or regulations were to change or were violated by our
management, employees or merchants, we could experience delays in shipments of our goods, be subject to fines or penalties, or suffer 
reputational harm, which could reduce demand for our services and negatively impact our results of operations. 

Legal requirements are frequently changed and subject to interpretation, and we are unable to predict the ultimate cost of compliance 
with these requirements or their effects on our operations. We may be required to make significant expenditures to comply with existing or 
future laws and regulations, which may increase our costs and materially limit our ability to operate our business. In addition, changes to legal 
requirements can create delays in the introduction and sale of our products and services, or in some cases, prevent the export or import or 
our products and services to certain countries, governments, or persons altogether. 

We rely on the free flow of goods through open and operational ports worldwide. Labor disputes or other disruptions at ports create 
significant risks for our business, particularly if work slowdowns, lockouts, strikes, or other disruptions occur. Any of these factors could result 
in reduced sales or canceled orders, which may limit our growth and damage our reputation and may have a material adverse effect on our 
business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.

We may see a significant loss of revenue in France or from users in France as a result of French regulator enforcement actions.

In November 2021, France’s Directorate General for Competition, Consumer Affairs and Repression of Fraud (“DGCCRF”) issued an 
injunction delisting the Wish App from Google Play and the Apple App Store, and blocking Wish from appearing in Google, Bing and Qwant 
search results on the premise that unsafe products or products of poor quality are available for purchase on Wish. The DGCCRF is relying on 
an untested interpretation and enforcement of Europe’s Market Surveillance Regulation (“MSR”) to support its position that Wish is 
responsible as a distributor for products sold by merchants on the platform, and regarding the role of Wish in platform liability and immunity. 
In addition to the delisting and blocking, the injunction could also expose Wish to fines and penalties. As far as we know, this is a case of first 
impression in Europe; we are the first ecommerce company that we are aware of in the EU that has faced any such delisting/blocking, and 
the first of its kind in France. We took immediate measures to challenge the injunction, and to suspend and lift it. We are in the process of the 
legal challenge.

We have since challenged the injunction in French Administrative Courts and Appellate Courts. While the courts have thus far upheld 
the injunction, we continue to pursue all legal challenges and remedies available to us.

Meanwhile, the injunction has had significant effects on our revenues from France as we are unable to acquire new users on the 
App, old users may be precluded from upgrading or updating their app, and mobile or web users are unable to find us or navigate to us from 
the main search engines in France.  In addition, we have ceased ad spend in France as a direct and proximate result of the injunction as 
there is no return on such an investment nor would we recoup any revenue from ad spending. We anticipate that in 2023 we may incur 
significant loss of our marketplace revenue in France as a result of the injunction if the delisting injunction is not ended, lifted or otherwise 
overruled.   

This injunction and the legal proceedings challenging it could also subject the Company to substantial costs, divert resources and the 
attention of management from the Company’s business, and harm the Company’s business and financial results.  We may also be subject to 
additional civil and criminal litigation and/or penalties from the DGCCRF relating to any purported or perceived moderation of the platform 
and/or merchant activity on the platform.  

The injunction may also expose us to risk in the EU generally, should other regulators take a similar approach or interpretation to the 
MSR, and we may be the subject of additional requests for information, document requests or information in the EU.

Separately, in late December 2021, authorities in France charged the Company with legal violations relating to the Company’s former 
policy permitting merchants to use strikethrough pricing in France, the Company’s previous failure to translate into French listings and 
product details on the Company’s app and website, and the Company’s anti-counterfeiting policies and practices.  The Company disputes the 
charges and is preparing to defend itself at a hearing that is currently scheduled for March 2023.  Any adverse outcome could result in 
payment of substantial fines, payments to allegedly impacted consumer groups, harm to our reputation, loss of rights, or adverse changes to 
our offerings or business practices in France. Any of these results could adversely affect our business. In addition, defending claims may be 
costly and may impose a significant burden on our management.
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Our international operations are subject to increased risks.

There are inherent risks in doing business internationally, including: 

• expenses associated with localizing our products and services and user data, including offering our users and merchants the 
ability to transact business in the local currency and language, and adapting our platform to local preferences; 

• challenges to enforceability in some foreign jurisdictions of so-called “clickwrap” contracts with our customers, merchants and 
Wish Local retailers; 

• trade barriers and changes in trade regulations; 

• difficulties in developing, staffing, and simultaneously managing a large number of varying foreign operations as a result of 
distance, language, and cultural differences; 

• stringent local labor laws and regulations; 

• credit risk and higher levels of payment fraud; 

• laws or regulations related to the import or export of goods alleged to violate third-party intellectual property rights; 

• political or social unrest, economic instability, repression, or human rights issues; 

• geopolitical events, including natural disasters, public health issues, acts of war, and terrorism; 

• compliance with U.S. laws such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act ("FCPA") and foreign laws prohibiting corruption, U.S. and 
foreign economic and trade sanctions laws, and U.S. and foreign laws designed to combat money laundering and the financing of 
terrorist activities; 

• antitrust and competition regulations; 

• potentially adverse tax developments and consequences; 

• economic uncertainties relating to sovereign and other debt; 

• different, uncertain, or more stringent user protection, data protection, data collection, privacy, payments, advertising, pricing, and 
other laws; 

• limitations by governmental authorities on transmission of privacy information and other data between countries, whether from the 
U.S. or other jurisdictions; 

• restrictions on sales or distribution of certain products or services and uncertainty regarding liability for products, services, content, 
including uncertainty as a result of less internet-friendly legal systems, local laws, lack of legal precedent, and varying rules, 
regulations, and practices; 

• risks related to other government regulation or required compliance with local laws; 

• national or regional differences in macroeconomic growth rates; and 

• local licensing and reporting obligations. 

Violations of the complex foreign and U.S. laws and regulations that apply to our international operations may result in litigation, fines, 
criminal actions, or sanctions against us, our officers, or our employees; restrictions on the operations of our business; and damage to our 
reputation. Although we have implemented policies and procedures designed to promote compliance with these laws, there can be no 
assurance that our employees, contractors, or agents will not violate our policies. These risks inherent in our international operations and 
expansion increase our costs of doing business internationally and could harm our business. 
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We face exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. 

Our user pricing and payments are denominated in the local currencies of the users, primarily in U.S. dollars and Euros, and we 
make a majority of our payments in Renminbi (“RMB”) to the merchants in China for products sold on the Wish platform, which creates 
exposure to currency rate fluctuations. Additionally, our operating expenses are denominated in the currencies of the countries in which our 
operations are located, and may be subject to fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, particularly changes in RMB. 
As part of our currency hedging strategy, we use financial instruments such as forward contracts to hedge our foreign currency exposure in 
order to reduce the frequency that we need to adjust local currency pricing as well as reduce the short-term impact of foreign currency rate 
fluctuations on our operating results. 

Any factors that reduce cross-border trade or make such trade more difficult could harm our business. 

Cross-border trade is an important source of revenue for us. The shipping of goods across national borders is often more expensive 
and complicated than domestic shipping. Customs and duty procedures and reviews, including duty-free thresholds in various key markets, 
the interaction of national postal systems, and security related governmental processes at international borders, may increase costs, 
discourage cross-border purchases, delay transit, and create shipping uncertainties. Any factors that increase the costs of cross-border trade 
or restrict, delay, or make cross-border trade more difficult or impractical, including any delays or other factors caused by the current conflict 
between Russia and Ukraine arising from the invasion of Ukraine by Russia, would lower our revenue and profits and could harm our 
business. 

Changes in China’s economic, political or social conditions or government policies could have a material adverse effect on our 
business and operations. 

Most of our merchants, and some of our operations, are located in China. Accordingly, our business, financial condition, results of 
operations, and prospects may be influenced to a significant degree by political, economic and social conditions in China generally. The 
Chinese economy differs from the economies of most developed countries in many respects, including the level of government involvement, 
level of development, and growth rate. The Chinese government continues to play a significant role in regulating industry development by 
imposing industrial policies. The Chinese government also exercises significant control over China’s economic growth through allocating 
resources, controlling payment of foreign currency-denominated obligations, setting monetary policy, and providing preferential treatment to 
particular industries or companies. 

Uncertainties with respect to the People’s Republic of China’s (“PRC”) legal system and changes in laws and regulations in China 
could adversely affect us. 

Our operations in China are governed by PRC laws and regulations. Our Chinese subsidiaries are subject to laws and regulations 
applicable to foreign investment in China. The PRC legal system is a civil law system based on written statutes. Unlike the common law 
system, prior court decisions under the civil law system may be cited for reference but have limited precedential value. In addition, any new 
or changes in PRC laws and regulations related to foreign investment in China could affect the business environment and our ability to 
operate our business in China. 

From time to time, we may have to resort to administrative and court proceedings to enforce our legal rights. Any administrative and 
court proceedings in China may be protracted, resulting in substantial costs and diversion of resources and management attention. Since 
PRC administrative and court authorities have significant discretion in interpreting and implementing statutory provisions and contractual 
terms, it may be more difficult to evaluate the outcome of administrative and court proceedings and the level of legal protection we enjoy than 
in more developed legal systems. These uncertainties may impede our ability to enforce the contracts we have entered into and could 
materially and adversely affect our business and results of operations. 

Furthermore, the PRC legal system is based in part on government policies and internal rules, some of which are not published on a 
timely basis or at all and may have retroactive effect. As a result, we may not be aware of our violation of any of these policies and rules until 
sometime after the violation. Such unpredictability towards our contractual, property and procedural rights could adversely affect our business 
and impede our ability to continue our operations. 
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We may be adversely affected by the complexity, uncertainties and changes in PRC regulation of internet-related businesses and 
companies, and any lack of requisite approvals, licenses or permits applicable to our business may have a material adverse effect 
on our business and results of operations. 

The Chinese government extensively regulates the internet industry, including foreign ownership of, and the licensing and permit 
requirements pertaining to, companies in the internet industry. These internet-related laws and regulations are relatively new and evolving, 
and their interpretation and enforcement involve significant uncertainties. As a result, in certain circumstances it may be difficult to determine 
what actions or omissions may be deemed to be in violation of applicable laws and regulations. 

Because our business may be subject to governmental supervision and regulation by the relevant Chinese governmental authorities 
in many aspects of the operation of online retailing, we may be required to hold a number of licenses and permits in connection with our 
business operation. New laws and regulations may be adopted from time to time to require additional licenses and permits other than those 
we currently have. As a result, substantial uncertainties exist regarding the interpretation and implementation of current and any future PRC 
laws and regulations applicable to online retail businesses. If the Chinese government considers that we were operating without the proper 
approvals, licenses or permits, or promulgates new laws and regulations that require additional approvals or licenses or impose additional 
restrictions on the operation of any part of our business, it has the power, among other actions, to levy fines, confiscate our income, revoke 
our business licenses, or require us to discontinue our relevant business or impose restrictions on the affected portion of our business. Any of 
these or other regulatory actions by the Chinese governmental authorities, including issuance of official notices, change of policies, 
promulgation of regulations and imposition of sanctions, may adversely affect our business and have a material and adverse effect on our 
results of operations. 

Risks Related to Network and Infrastructure 

Any significant disruption in service on our platform or in our computer systems, some of which are currently hosted by third-party 
providers, could damage our reputation and result in a loss of users, which would harm our business and results of operations. 

Our brand, reputation and ability to deliver a positive user experience depends upon the reliability of our infrastructure. We have 
experienced interruptions in these systems in the past, including server failures that temporarily slowed down or interfered with the 
performance of our websites and apps, or particular features of our websites and apps, and we may experience interruptions in the future. 
For example, in June 2020, we experienced a full platform outage for more than one hour due to the release of a software update that did not 
follow proper internal protocols. We have since updated our processes for following such protocols. Interruptions, whether due to system 
failures, human errors, computer viruses, physical or electronic break-ins, denial-of-service attacks, and capacity limitations, could prevent or 
inhibit the ability of merchants to access, or users from completing purchases on, our websites and apps. Volume of traffic and activity on our 
platform spikes on certain days, and any such interruption would be particularly problematic if it were to occur at such a high-volume time. 
Problems with the reliability of our systems could prevent us from earning revenue and could harm our reputation. Damage to our reputation, 
any resulting loss of user confidence and the cost of remedying these problems could negatively affect our business, results of operations, 
financial condition, and prospects. 
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We either lease or own our servers and have service agreements with data center providers. Our systems and operations are 
vulnerable to damage or interruption from fire, flood, power loss, telecommunications failure, terrorist attacks, acts of war, electronic and 
physical break-ins, computer viruses, earthquakes, and similar events. The occurrence of any of the foregoing events could result in damage 
to our systems and hardware or could cause them to fail completely, and our insurance may not cover such events or may be insufficient to 
compensate us for losses that may occur. Our systems are not completely redundant, so a system failure at one site could result in reduced 
platform functionality for our users, and a total failure of our systems could cause our websites or apps to be inaccessible by some or all of 
our users. A significant portion of our data storage, data processing and other computing services and systems is hosted by Amazon Web 
Services (“AWS”). AWS provides us with computing and storage capacity pursuant to an agreement that continues until terminated by either 
party. Problems with our third-party service providers, including AWS, or with their network providers or with the systems allocating capacity 
among their users, including us, could adversely affect our users’ experience. Our third-party service providers could decide to close their 
facilities without adequate notice. Any financial difficulties, such as bankruptcy or reorganization, faced by our third-party service providers or 
any of the service providers with whom they contract may have negative effects on our business, the nature and extent of which are difficult 
to predict. If our third-party service providers are unable to keep up with our needs for capacity, this could have an adverse effect on our 
business. In the event that our agreement with AWS, or other third-party service providers, is terminated, or we add additional cloud 
infrastructure service providers, we may experience significant costs or downtime in connection with the transfer to, or the addition of, new 
cloud infrastructure service providers. Any of the above circumstances or events may harm our reputation and brand, reduce the availability 
or usage of our platform, lead to a significant short-term loss of revenue, increase our costs, and impair our ability to attract new users or 
merchants, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. 

Our failure or the failure of third parties to protect our sites, networks and systems against security breaches, or otherwise to 
protect our confidential information, could damage our reputation and brand and substantially harm our business and operating 
results. 

We collect, maintain, transmit, and store data about our users, merchants and others, including personally identifiable information 
and personal data, as well as other confidential information. 

We also engage third parties that store, process, and transmit these types of information on our behalf. We rely on technology 
licensed from third parties in an effort to securely transmit confidential and sensitive information, including credit card numbers. Advances in 
computer capabilities, new technological discoveries, or other developments may result in the whole or partial failure of this technology to 
protect transaction data or other confidential and sensitive information from being breached or compromised. In addition, ecommerce 
websites are often attacked through compromised credentials, including those obtained through phishing, credential stuffing, and password 
spraying. Our security measures, and those of our third-party service providers, may not detect or prevent all attempts to breach our systems, 
viruses, malicious software, break-ins, phishing attacks, accidental actions or omissions to act that create vulnerabilities, social engineering, 
security breaches, or other attacks and similar disruptions that may jeopardize the security of information stored in or transmitted by our 
websites, networks and systems or that we or such third parties otherwise maintain, including payment card systems, which may subject us 
to fines or higher transaction fees or limit or terminate our access to certain payment methods. We and such third parties may not be able to 
anticipate or prevent all types of attacks, and we may not detect such attacks until after they have already been launched. Further, 
techniques used to obtain unauthorized access to or sabotage systems change frequently and may not be known until launched against us or 
our third-party service providers. In addition, security breaches can also occur as a result of non-technical issues, including intentional or 
inadvertent actions by our employees or by third parties. These risks may increase over time as the complexity and number of technical 
systems and applications we use also increases. 
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Cyber security incidents or breaches of our security measures or those of our third-party service providers could result in 
unauthorized access to our websites, networks and systems; unauthorized access to and misappropriation of our data, including user 
information, personally identifiable information, or other confidential or proprietary information of ours or of third parties; viruses, worms, 
spyware, or other malware being served from our websites, networks, or systems; deletion or modification of content or the display of
unauthorized content on our sites; interruption, disruption, or malfunction of operations; costs relating to breach remediation, deployment of 
additional personnel and protection technologies, response to governmental investigations and media inquiries and coverage; engagement of 
third-party experts and consultants; litigation, regulatory action and other potential liabilities. Further, due to the political uncertainty involving 
Russia and Ukraine, there is an increased likelihood that escalation of tensions could result in cyber attacks that could either directly or 
indirectly impact our operations. Social engineering, phishing, malware, and similar attacks and threats of denial-of-service attacks could 
have a material adverse effect on our operations. Additionally, from time to time, our merchants’ and users’ accounts have been subject to 
unauthorized access by third parties, including through illicit purchase of usernames and passwords by bad actors. If any of these breaches 
of security should occur, our reputation and brand could be damaged, our business may suffer, we could be required to expend significant 
capital and other resources to alleviate problems caused by such breaches, and we could be exposed to a risk of loss, litigation or regulatory 
action and possible liability. We cannot guarantee that recovery protocols and backup systems will be sufficient to prevent data loss. Actual or 
anticipated attacks may cause us to incur increasing costs, including costs to deploy additional personnel and protection technologies, train 
employees and engage third-party experts and consultants. In addition, any party who is able to illicitly obtain a user or merchant password 
could access the user or merchant’s transaction data or personal information, resulting in the perception that our systems are insecure. 

Any compromise or breach of our security measures, or those of our third-party service providers, could violate applicable privacy, 
data protection, data security, network and information systems security and other laws and cause significant legal and financial exposure 
(including costs for technical teams to investigate and remediate such incidents), adverse publicity and a loss of confidence in our security 
measures, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects. We devote 
significant resources to protect against security breaches and we may need to devote more resources in the future to address problems 
caused by breaches, including notifying affected users and responding to any resulting litigation, which in turn, diverts resources from the 
growth and expansion of our business.

Additionally, many governments have enacted laws or regulations that require companies to notify individuals about certain types of 
security incidents or breaches, and any such disclosures may lead to negative publicity and may deter customers from shopping on our 
platform. It is also possible that security breaches affecting our competitors or others in our industry could also result in negative publicity that 
indirectly harms our reputation. Increasing public, industry, and governmental focus on privacy and data security may continue to lead to 
additional guidance or legislative and regulatory action, and the increased emphasis on privacy and data security may continue to lead to 
additional guidance or legislative and regulatory action, and the increased emphasis on privacy may lead customers to request that we take 
additional measures to enhance security or restrict the manner in which we collect and use customer information to gather insights into 
customer behavior and craft our marketing programs. As a result, we may have to modify our business systems and practices with the goal of 
further improving data security, which could result in reduced net revenue, increased expenditures and operating complexity. Any 
compromise of our security or security breach could result in a violation of applicable privacy and other laws, significant legal and financial 
exposure or damage to our reputation, which could result in reduced net revenue, increased expenditures and operating complexity. Any 
compromise of our security or security breach could result in a violation of applicable privacy and other laws, significant legal and financial 
exposure or damage to our reputation, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of 
operations.

Our existing general liability and cybersecurity insurance may not cover any, or cover only a portion of any, potential claims or 
expenses related to security breaches that affect us or may not be adequate to indemnify us for all or any portion of liabilities that may be 
imposed. In addition, we cannot assure investors that the limitations on liability in our contracts would be enforceable or adequate or would 
otherwise protect us from any such liabilities with respect to any particular claim. Any imposition of liability that is not covered by insurance or 
is in excess of insurance coverage would increase our operating expenses and reduce our net income, if any, or increase our net loss. 
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We are subject to governmental regulation and other legal obligations related to privacy, data protection, information 
security, and consumer protection. If we are unable to comply with these, we may be subject to governmental enforcement actions, 
litigation, fines and penalties, or adverse publicity. 

We collect personally identifiable information and other data from users and prospective users. We use this information to provide 
services and relevant products to our users, to support, expand and improve our business, and to tailor our marketing and advertising efforts. 
We may also share users’ personal data with certain third parties as authorized by the user or as described in our privacy policy. 

As a result, we are subject to governmental regulation and other legal obligations related to the protection of confidential and 
sensitive data (including personally identifiable information and personal data), privacy, information security and consumer protection in 
certain countries where we do business and there has been and will continue to be a significant increase globally in such laws that restrict or 
control the use of personal data. 

In Europe, where the data privacy and information security regime underwent a significant change in 2018, the legal environment 
related to personal data continues to evolve and companies like us that process personal data from large numbers of individuals are subject 
to increasing regulatory scrutiny. The General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”) implemented more stringent operational requirements for 
our use of personal data. These more stringent requirements include expanded disclosures to tell our users about how we may use their 
personal data, increased controls on profiling users and increased rights for users to access, control and delete their personal data. In 
addition, there are mandatory data breach notification requirements and significantly increased penalties of the greater of €20 million or 4% of 
global turnover for the preceding financial year. 

Although there are legal mechanisms to allow for the transfer of personal data from the United Kingdom ("U.K."), EEA and 
Switzerland to the U.S., uncertainty about compliance with such data protection laws remains and such mechanisms may not be available or 
applicable with respect to the personal data processing activities necessary to research, develop and market our products and services. For 
example, legal challenges in Europe to the mechanisms allowing companies to transfer personal data from the EEA to the United States 
could result in further limitations on the ability to transfer personal data across borders, particularly if governments are unable or unwilling to 
reach new or maintain existing agreements that support cross-border data transfers, such as the EU-U.S. and Swiss-U.S. Privacy Shield
Frameworks. Specifically, on July 16, 2020, the Court of Justice of the European Union invalidated Decision 2016/1250 on the adequacy of 
the protection provided by the EU-U.S. Privacy Shield Framework (“Schrems II” decision). To the extent that we or our service providers were 
to rely on the EU-U.S. Privacy Shield Framework, we may not be able to do so in the future, which could increase our costs and limit our 
ability to process personal data from the European Union. The Schrems II decision also cast doubt on the ability to use one of the primary 
alternatives to the Privacy Shield, namely, the European Commission’s Standard Contractual Clauses, to lawfully transfer personal data from 
Europe to the U.S. and most other countries. In November 2020, the European Commission released a draft of revised Standard Contractual 
Clauses, and, in January 2021, the European Data Protection Board and the European Data Protection Supervisor issued a joint opinion 
regarding these revised Standard Contractual Clauses. These revised Standard Contractual Clauses and related developments, opinions, 
and guidance from European regulators may significantly increase our liability under, and compliance costs related to, cross-border data 
transfers and the GDPR, and may impact our ability to operate and deliver services in the EEA. 

Following its exit from the EU in January 2020, the U.K. implemented legislation referred to as the “U.K.-GDPR” which substantially 
aligns with requirements and penalties under the EU GDPR. We may face similar costs, risks, and operational impacts in complying with the 
U.K.-GDPR as we face in complying with the EU GDPR.   
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In recent years, U.S. and European lawmakers and regulators have expressed concern over the use of third-party cookies and 
similar technologies for online behavioral advertising, and laws in this area are also under reform. In the EU current national laws that 
implement the ePrivacy Directive will be replaced by an EU regulation known as the ePrivacy Regulation. The draft ePrivacy Regulation 
retains existing informed consent conditions and also imposes the strict opt-in marketing rules on direct marketing that is “presented” on a 
web page rather than sent by email, alters rules on third-party cookies and similar technology and significantly increases penalties for breach 
of the rules. Regulation of cookies and similar technologies may lead to broader restrictions on our marketing and personalization activities 
and may negatively impact the effectiveness of our marketing. Such regulations may also increase regulatory scrutiny and increase potential 
civil liability under data protection or consumer protection laws. The ePrivacy Regulations draft also advocates the development of browsers 
that block cookies by default. These developments could impair our ability to collect user information, including personal data and usage 
information, that helps us provide more targeted advertising to our current and prospective users, which could adversely affect our business, 
given our use of cookies and similar technologies to target our marketing and personalize the user experience. We may incur liabilities, 
expenses, costs, and other operational losses under GDPR and applicable EU Member States and the U.K. privacy laws in connection with 
any measures we take to comply with them.

As interpretation of both the ePrivacy Regulation and GDPR develop, we could incur substantial costs to comply with these
regulations. The changes could require significant systems changes, limit the effectiveness of our marketing activities, adversely affect our 
margins, increase costs and subject us to additional liabilities. 

In the U.S., federal and various state governments have adopted or are considering, laws, guidelines or rules for the collection, 
distribution, use and storage of information collected from or about users or their devices. For example, California passed the California 
Consumer Privacy Act (the “CCPA”), which became effective on January 1, 2020 and introduced substantial changes to privacy law for 
businesses that collect personal information from California residents. The CCPA creates individual privacy rights for California consumers 
and increases the privacy and security obligations of entities handling certain personal information. The CCPA provides for civil penalties for 
violations, as well as a private right of action for data breaches that is expected to increase data breach litigation. And on November 3, 2020, 
California passed the California Privacy Rights Act (the “CPRA”). The CPRA, which will not be fully in effect until January 1, 2023, amends 
and expands the CCPA, including the introduction of sensitive personal information as a new regulated dataset in California that is subject to 
new disclosure and purpose limitation requirements. Additionally, the Virginia Consumer Data Protection Act (the “VCDPA”) will become 
effective on January 1, 2023.  The Colorado Privacy Act and the Connecticut Data Privacy Act will become effective on July 1, 2023, and the 
Utah Consumer Privacy Act will become effective on December 31, 2023.  Other states may decide to adopt similar laws in the future. 
Additionally, the U.S. Federal Trade Commission and many state attorneys general are applying federal and state consumer protection laws, 
to impose standards for the online collection, use and dissemination of data. Furthermore, these obligations may be interpreted and applied 
inconsistently from one jurisdiction to another and may conflict with other requirements or our practices. 

In September 2021 and November 2021, the PRC made effective its new Data Security Law and Personal Information Protection 
Law, respectively. While there are many aspects of these laws that are still yet-to-be-defined, they impose complex and far-reaching 
requirements related to cybersecurity and the processing of personal data, both within China and extraterritorially. Potential penalties under 
the Personal Information Protection Law are severe, at up to the greater of 5% of global revenue or $7.7 million. The precise scope and 
impact of these laws is still unclear but they could significantly increase our compliance costs, cause us to suffer monetary penalties, or 
otherwise adversely impact our business and operations.

Many data protection regimes apply based on where a user is located, and as we expand our platform and new laws are enacted or 
existing laws change, we may be subject to new laws, regulations or standards or new interpretations of existing laws, regulations or 
standards, including those in the areas of data security, data privacy and regulation of email providers and those that require localization of 
certain data, which could require us to incur additional costs and restrict our business operations. Any failure or perceived failure by us to 
comply with rapidly evolving privacy or security laws policies (including our own stated privacy policies), legal obligations or industry 
standards or any security incident that results in the unauthorized release or transfer of personally identifiable information or other user data 
may result in governmental enforcement actions, litigation (including user class actions), fines and penalties or adverse publicity and could 
cause our users to lose trust in us, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and 
prospects. 
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A failure to comply with current laws, rules and regulations or changes to such laws, rules and regulations and other legal 
uncertainties may adversely affect our business, financial performance, results of operations or business growth.

Our business and financial performance could be adversely affected by unfavorable changes in or interpretations of existing laws, 
rules, and regulations or the promulgation of new laws, rules, and regulations applicable to us and our business, including those relating to 
the internet and ecommerce, internet advertising and price display, consumer protection, anti-corruption, economic and trade sanctions, tax, 
payments, banking, data security, network and information systems security, data protection and privacy. As a result, regulatory authorities 
could prevent or temporarily suspend us from carrying on some or all of our activities or otherwise penalize us if our practices were found not 
to comply with applicable regulatory or licensing requirements or any binding interpretation of such requirements. Unfavorable changes or 
interpretations could decrease demand for our services, limit marketing methods and capabilities, affect our margins, increase costs or 
subject us to additional liabilities. For example, as a result of the initial outbreak of COVID-19, consumer protection authorities demanded 
rapid and decisive changes in the way that Wish screens and handles product listings that potentially violate various laws, including 
emergency price caps on certain items. We believe we have legal grounds to satisfy current requests or prevail against associated fines and 
penalties, and we intend to vigorously defend such fines and penalties. 

Additionally, there are, and will likely continue to be, an increasing number of laws and regulations pertaining to  both the internet and 
ecommerce as well as third-party merchant-seller consumer products, that may relate to liability for information retrieved from or transmitted 
over the internet, display of certain taxes and fees, online editorial and user-generated content, user privacy, data security, network and 
information systems security, behavioral targeting and online advertising, taxation, liability for third-party activities, quality of services and 
consumer protection.      

For example, the European Digital Services Act ("DSA"), which is expected to take effect in the first half of 2024, intends to impose 
new legal obligations on online marketplaces operating in Europe in terms of both verifying and ensuring the accuracy and disclosure of 
required information, as well as the safety and authenticity of products posted by third-party merchants. The DSA also updates the 
responsibilities and liabilities of digital online services, such as the rules on illegal content, notice-and-takedown, and online targeted 
advertising, bringing new powers to fine in-scope eligible companies up to 6% of their global annual turnover. In addition, the European 
Union’s Market Surveillance Regulation, which took effect in July 2021, placed new obligations on online marketplaces that perform certain 
“fulfilment service provider” activities in Europe and was designed to reduce the availability of non-compliant products in Europe when offered 
by sellers outside of the region that either had or did not have an appointed authorized product compliance representative in Europe. The UK 
is expected to pass the Online Harms Bill that will require social media platforms to remove illegal adult content expeditiously and to also 
proactively prevent such listings from being uploaded, which will also impact online marketplace platforms. Denmark has also passed a law 
placing new obligations on marketplaces and giving its regulators the right to request fines and shutdowns where marketplaces are 
consistently unsuccessful in screening products that are unsafe or unlawful. 

Additionally, the U.K. is also expected to introduce its own mandatory conformity marking requirements under the proposed a new 
UKCA scheme from 2024 (replacing the existing EU CE marking scheme), which is anticipated to require online sellers of certain eligible 
consumer products to U.K. consumers to visually display evidence of such requisite marks on physical product and/or packaging and on their 
online product listings. Certain EU-27 Member States, such as France, Germany, Sweden, and Austria, have already updated their own 
versions of Extended Producer Responsibility (“EPR”) schemes under applicable EU Directives that apply to online marketplace platforms, by 
requiring them to collect, report, and at times publish mandatory registration or other product data from third-party sellers offering certain in-
region products or packaging on their platforms. Failure of online marketplace platforms to ensure their merchant-sellers’ own primary 
independent product compliance obligations are satisfied can result in civil penalties to such platforms. These types of product-specific 
compliance regulations and laws primarily targeting merchant-sellers but secondarily holding online marketplaces responsible and/or liable, 
are only expected to increase in breadth and number over the coming years.

39



 

Furthermore, the growth and development of ecommerce may prompt calls for more stringent consumer protection laws and more 
aggressive enforcement efforts, which may impose additional burdens on online businesses generally. For example, amendments to the EU’s 
Unfair Commercial Practices Directive that took effect May 2022 mandated additional obligations on online platforms and marketplaces that 
host user-customer reviews regarding third-party products. Such new obligations created greater disclosure, transparency, reactionary 
reporting, and policy enforcement requirements on online platforms and marketplaces in the area of user reviews, designed to prevent the 
risks of the reviews being fake, false, or misleading.  

Likewise, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), the U.S. Department of Justice, the U.S. Treasury Department’s 
Office of Foreign Assets Controls, the U.S. Department of State, as well as other foreign regulatory authorities continue to enforce economic 
and trade regulations and anti-corruption laws, across industries as well as certain regions. U.S. trade sanctions relate to transactions with 
designated foreign countries and territories, including Cuba, Iran, North Korea, Syria, the Crimea and recently annexed Luhansk and Donetsk
regions of Ukraine, as well as specifically targeted individuals and entities that are identified on U.S.’s and other blacklists, and those owned 
by them or those acting on their behalf. Further, In February 2022, following Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, the U.S. and other countries 
announced sanctions against Russia. The U.S. and other countries could impose wider sanctions and take other actions should the conflict 
further escalate. While it is difficult to anticipate the impact the sanctions announced to date may have on the Company, any further sanctions 
imposed or actions taken by the U.S. or other countries, and any retaliatory measures by Russia in response, could have an adverse effect 
on our business. We have established a trade and screening compliance program designed to increase our compliance with these economic 
and trade restrictions and export and import control regimes. However, these laws and regulations are complex and subject to frequent 
change, including with respect to jurisdictions and the lists of sanctioned entities and other regulatory controls. For example, in June 2022, 
the Uyghur Forced Labor Prevention Act (UFLPA) went into effect in the U.S., which establishes a rebuttable presumption that the importation 
of any goods, wares, articles, and merchandise mined, produced, or manufactured wholly or in part in the Xinjiang Uyghur Autonomous 
Region of the PRC, or produced by certain entities, is prohibited by Section 307 of the Tariff Act of 1930 and are not entitled to entry to the 
United States. We may incur significant costs related to laws, regulations, sanctions, embargoes, export controls programs or other 
restrictions and disclosure requirements, as well as negative publicity, investigations, fines, fees or settlements, which may be difficult to 
predict. We also could face increased compliance costs and risks as our merchant-base and logistics offerings continue to expand.     

Similarly, state and federal lawmakers have introduced more robust Know-Your-Customer/Business ("KYC/KYB") regulations to 
ensure greater transparency for third-party sellers of consumer products online. For example, on June 27, 2023, the INFORM Consumers Act 
will become effective in the U.S. This law, among other things, directs online marketplaces to collect, verify, and disclose to consumers 
certain high-volume third-party seller information by authenticating the seller’s government ID, tax ID, bank account information, and contact 
information. Under such law, online marketplaces will also be required to supply a hotline to allow customers to report to the marketplace 
suspicious marketplace activity, such as the posting of suspected stolen, counterfeit, or dangerous products. We may incur significant costs 
related to current, new or changing KYC/KYB regulations as well as increased liability risks (including civil penalties) if deemed non-
compliant.

Anti-corruption laws, including the U.S. FCPA and the U.K. Bribery Act, generally prohibit direct or indirect corrupt payments to 
government officials and, under certain laws, to private persons to obtain or retain business or an improper business advantage. Similarly, 
global anti-money laundering laws and regulations generally prohibit exchanging money or assets that were obtained criminally for money or 
other assets that are clean, including money that is used to fund terrorism. Although we have policies and procedures in place designed to 
promote compliance with these laws and regulations, our employees, partners, or agents could take actions in contravention of our policies 
and procedures or violate applicable laws or regulations. In the event our controls should fail, or we are found to be not in compliance for 
other reasons, we could be subject to monetary damages, civil and criminal monetary penalties, withdrawal of business licenses or permits, 
litigation and damage to our reputation and the value of our brand. 
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Additionally, the law relating to liability of online service providers is currently unsettled at both a national and global level. Lawmakers 
and governmental agencies have in the past and could in the future require changes in the way our business is conducted, including with 
explicit obligations to inspect and screen content and products or implicit obligations that might stem from increased legal liability for online 
service providers, including online marking and labeling requirements, akin to those traditionally reserved for either manufacturers, suppliers, 
importers-of-record, and/or distributors of physical consumer goods. Unfavorable regulations, laws, decisions, or interpretations by 
government or regulatory authorities applying those laws and regulations, or inquiries, investigations, or enforcement actions threatened or 
initiated by them, could cause us to incur substantial costs, expose us to unanticipated civil and criminal liability or penalties (including 
substantial monetary fines), increase our cost of doing business, require us to change our business practices in a manner materially adverse 
to our business, damage our reputation, impede our growth, or otherwise have a material effect on our operations. 

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property 

We may be unable to protect our intellectual property adequately. 

Our intellectual property is an essential asset of our business, and our success is dependent, in part, upon protecting our intellectual 
property. To establish and protect our intellectual property rights, we rely on a combination of trade secret, copyright, trademark and, to a 
lesser extent, patent laws, as well as confidentiality protection procedures and contractual provisions. The efforts we have taken to protect 
our intellectual property may not be sufficient or effective. We generally do not elect to register our copyrights, relying instead on the laws 
protecting unregistered intellectual property, which may not be sufficient. We rely on both registered and unregistered trademarks, which may 
not always be comprehensive in scope. In addition, our copyrights and trademarks, whether or not registered, and patents may be held 
invalid or unenforceable if challenged and may be of limited territorial reach. Moreover, effective trademark, copyright, patent and trade secret 
protection may not be available or commercially feasible in every country in which we conduct business. Further, intellectual property law, 
including statutory and case law, particularly in the United States, is constantly developing, and any changes in the law could make it harder 
for us to enforce our rights. While we have obtained or applied for patent protection with respect to some of our intellectual property, we 
generally do not rely on patents as a principal means of protecting intellectual property. We make business decisions about when to seek 
patent protection for a particular technology and when to rely upon trade secret protection, and the approach we select may ultimately prove 
to be inadequate. To the extent we do seek patent protection, any U.S. or other patents issued to us may not be sufficiently broad to protect 
our proprietary technologies. 

We may be subject to claims that items listed on our platform are counterfeit, infringing or illegal, which may harm our business. 

We frequently receive communications alleging that items listed on our platform infringe third-party copyrights, trademarks, or other 
intellectual property rights. We have intellectual property complaint and take-down procedures in place to address these communications, 
and we believe such procedures are important to promote confidence in our platform and provide users reassurance in the products they are 
purchasing. We follow these procedures to review complaints and relevant facts to determine the appropriate action, which may include 
removal of the item from our platform and, in certain cases, prohibiting merchants from participating in our platform who repeatedly violate 
our policies. 

Our procedures may not effectively reduce or eliminate our liability. In particular, we may be subject to civil or criminal liability for 
activities carried out by merchants on our platform, especially outside the U.S. where laws may offer less protection for intermediaries and 
platforms than the U.S. Under current U.S. copyright law, we may benefit from statutory safe harbor provisions that protect us from copyright 
liability for content posted on our platform by our merchants and users. However, trademark and patent laws do not include similar statutory 
provisions, and liability for these forms of intellectual property is often determined by court decisions. These safe harbors and court rulings 
may change unfavorably. In that event, we may be held secondarily liable for the intellectual property infringement of merchants on our 
platform. We may also be directly liable for the inventory we purchase ourselves that we sell on our platform. 
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In addition, allegations of infringement of intellectual property rights, including but not limited to counterfeit items, have resulted in 
actual litigation from time to time by rights owners against merchants. These and similar suits have resulted in the freezing of merchant 
accounts or the shutdown of merchant storefronts on our platform, which can adversely impact revenue in the short-term, and may require us 
to spend substantial resources to comply with court orders. We may also incur costs responding to subpoenas from governmental authorities 
regarding illegal or counterfeit products listed for sale on our platform. In addition, we may receive media attention relating to the listing or 
sale of illegal or counterfeit goods, which could damage our reputation, diminish the value of our brand, and make users and merchants 
reluctant to use our platform. 

Regardless of the validity of any claims made against us, we may incur significant costs and efforts to defend against or settle them. 

Under our standard form agreements, we require our merchants to indemnify us for any losses we suffer or any costs that we incur 
due to any products sold by these merchants. However, we may not be able to successfully enforce our contractual rights and may need to 
initiate costly and lengthy legal proceedings to protect our rights. 

We may be subject to intellectual property claims, which are extremely costly to defend, could require us to pay significant 
damages and could limit our ability to use certain technologies in the future. 

Companies in the internet and technology industries are frequently subject to litigation based on allegations of infringement or other 
violations of intellectual property rights. We periodically receive communications that claim we have infringed, misappropriated or misused 
others’ intellectual property rights. To the extent we gain greater public recognition, we may face a higher risk of being the subject of 
intellectual property claims. Third parties may have intellectual property rights that cover significant aspects of our technologies or business 
methods and prevent us from expanding our offerings. Any intellectual property claim against us, with or without merit, could be time 
consuming and expensive to settle or litigate and could divert the attention of our management. Litigation regarding intellectual property rights 
is inherently uncertain due to the complex issues involved, and we may not be successful in defending ourselves in such matters. 

In addition, some of our competitors have extensive portfolios of issued patents. In a patent infringement claim against us, we may 
assert, as a defense, that we do not infringe the relevant patent claims, that the patent is invalid, or both. The strength of our defenses will 
depend on the patents asserted, the interpretation of these patents, and our ability to invalidate the asserted patents. However, we could be 
unsuccessful in advancing non-infringement and/or invalidity arguments in our defense. In the United States, issued patents enjoy a 
presumption of validity, and the party challenging the validity of a patent claim must present clear and convincing evidence of invalidity, which 
is a high burden of proof. Conversely, the patent owner need only prove infringement by a preponderance of the evidence, which Is a lower 
burden of proof. We may be unaware of the intellectual property rights that others may claim cover some or all of our technology or services. 
Because patent applications can take years to issue and are often afforded confidentiality for some period of time, there may currently be 
pending applications, unknown to us, that later result in issued patents that could cover one or more of our products. 

Many potential litigants, including some of our competitors and patent holding companies, have the ability to dedicate substantial 
resources to enforcing their intellectual property rights. Moreover, our patents may provide little or no deterrence in litigation involving patent 
holding companies or other adverse patent owners that have no relevant product revenue. Any claims successfully brought against us could 
subject us to significant liability for damages and we may be required to stop using technology or other intellectual property alleged to be in 
violation of a third-party’s rights in jurisdictions where we do business. We also might be required to enter into costly settlement agreements 
or seek a license for third-party intellectual property. Even if a license is available, we could be required to pay significant royalties or submit 
to unreasonable terms, which would increase our operating expenses. We may also be required to develop alternative non-infringing 
technology, which could require significant time and expense. If we cannot license or develop technology for any allegedly infringing aspect of 
our business, we would be forced to limit our service and may be unable to compete effectively. Any of these results could harm our 
business. 
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Our software is highly complex and may contain undetected errors. 

The software and code underlying our platform is highly interconnected and complex and may contain undetected errors or 
vulnerabilities, some of which may only be discovered after the code has been released. We typically release software code daily and this 
practice may result in the more frequent introduction of errors or vulnerabilities into the software underlying our platform, which can impact 
the user and merchant experience on our platform. Additionally, due to the interconnected nature of the software underlying our platform, 
updates to certain parts of our code, including changes to our website or mobile app or third-party APIs on which our website and mobile app 
rely, could have an unintended impact on other sections of our code, which may result in errors or vulnerabilities to our platform. Any errors or 
vulnerabilities discovered in our code after release could result in damage to our reputation, loss of our merchants or users, loss of revenue, 
or liability for damages, any of which could adversely affect our growth prospects and our business. 

Our use of open source software may pose particular risks to our proprietary software and systems. 

We use open source software in our proprietary software and systems and will use open source software in the future. The licenses 
applicable to our use of open source software may require that source code that is developed using open source software be made available 
to the public and that any modifications or derivative works to certain open source software continue to be licensed under open source 
licenses. From time to time, we may face claims from third parties claiming infringement of their intellectual property rights, or demanding the 
release or license of the open source software or derivative works that we developed using such software (which could include our 
proprietary source code) or otherwise seeking to enforce the terms of the applicable open source license. These claims could result in 
litigation and could require us to purchase a costly license, publicly release the affected portions of our source code, be limited in or cease 
using the implicated software unless and until we can re-engineer such software to avoid infringement or change the use of, or remove, the 
implicated open source software. Our use of open source software may also present additional security risks because the source code for 
open source software is publicly available, which may make it easier for hackers and other third parties to determine how to breach our 
website and systems that rely on open source software. Any of these risks could be difficult to eliminate or manage, and, if not addressed, 
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.

Risks Related to Our Taxes and Financial Position 

Our business and our merchants and users may be subject to sales and other taxes and these taxes may negatively impact our 
revenue and growth. 

The application of indirect taxes, such as sales and use tax, VAT, provincial taxes, goods and services tax, business tax and gross
receipt tax to our business and to our merchants and users is a complex and evolving issue. In addition, governments are increasingly
looking for ways to increase revenue, which has resulted in discussions about new legislative actions to increase tax revenue, including 
through indirect taxes. 

Significant judgment and expertise is required to evaluate applicable tax obligations. As a result, amounts recognized may be subject 
to adjustments by the relevant tax authorities. In many cases, the ultimate tax determination is uncertain because it is not clear how new and 
existing statutes might apply to our business or to the businesses of our merchants. One or more states, the federal government or other 
countries may seek to impose additional reporting, recordkeeping or indirect tax collection obligations on businesses like ours that facilitate 
ecommerce.

State and local taxing authorities in the U.S. have identified ecommerce platforms as a means to calculate, collect and remit indirect 
taxes for transactions taking place over the internet. U.S. states began enacting related legislation with effective dates in early 2018 and in 
June 2018, the U.S. Supreme Court held in South Dakota v. Wayfair that a U.S. state may require an ecommerce platform to collect sales 
taxes imposed by the state in which the buyer is located, even if the retailer has no physical presence in that state, thus permitting a wider 
enforcement of such sales tax collection requirements. All U.S. states have since followed suit in enacting similar legislation.
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Outside of the U.S., the application of VAT or other indirect taxes on ecommerce providers continues to evolve. An increasing 
number of jurisdictions are legislating or have adopted laws that impose new taxes, including revenue-based taxes that target ecommerce 
and the remote selling of goods. These laws include new obligations to collect sales, consumption, value added, or similar taxes on 
ecommerce platform and remote sellers, or other requirements that may result in liability for third-party obligations. As a result of Brexit, the 
U.K. began imposing VAT on ecommerce platform effective January 2021, and the EU abolished its low value goods exemption effective July 
2021 and require online marketplace facilitators to collect and remit VAT. Our business could be adversely affected by additional taxes that 
focus on marketplace service revenue.

Additionally, existing and new tax laws and legislation could require us or our merchants to incur substantial costs in order to comply, 
including costs associated with legal advice, tax calculation, collection, remittance and audit requirements, which could make selling in such 
markets less attractive and could adversely affect our business. Further, these laws may be applied prospectively or retroactively. 
Noncompliance with existing and new laws may result in fines or penalties. It is possible we may not have sufficient notice to create and 
adopt processes to properly comply with new reporting or collection obligations by the effective date. 

Our results of operations and cash flows could be adversely affected by additional taxes or increasing taxes of this nature imposed 
on us prospectively or retroactively, or additional taxes or penalties resulting from the failure to comply with any collection obligations or 
failure to provide information about our users, merchants or other third parties for tax reporting purposes to various government agencies. 

We may experience fluctuations in various tax related obligations. 

We are subject to income taxes and various other taxes in both the U.S. and in many international jurisdictions. We record these 
taxes based on current tax payment calculations and estimates of tax liabilities, which may include estimates of probable settlements of tax 
audits. The determination of these liabilities requires estimation and significant judgment and the ultimate determination is uncertain. At any 
time, multiple tax years could be subject to audit by various taxing jurisdictions. As a result, we could be subject to higher than anticipated tax 
liabilities as well as ongoing variability in our quarterly tax rates related to potential audits and as exposures are re-evaluated. While we have 
estimated accruals that we believe are reasonable to cover potential exposures, the reserves may ultimately not be sufficient and additional 
cash outflows may result. Fluctuations in our tax obligations could adversely affect our business.

We may not be able to utilize a significant portion of our net operating loss carryforwards, and other tax attributes, which could 
adversely affect our profitability. 

As of December 31, 2022, we had federal net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs”) available to reduce future taxable income, if any, 
of $886 million that begin to expire in 2030 and continue to expire through 2037 and $1.7 billion that have an unlimited carryover period. As of 
December 31, 2022, we had state NOLs available to reduce future taxable income, if any, of $6.2 billion that begin to expire in 2026 and 
continue to expire through 2042 and $1.8 billion that have an unlimited carryover period. Under legislation enacted in 2017, informally titled 
the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “Tax Act”), as modified by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the “CARES Act”), unused 
U.S. federal NOLs generated in tax years beginning after December 31, 2017, will not expire and may be carried forward indefinitely, but the 
deductibility of such federal NOLs in tax years beginning after December 31, 2021, is limited to 80% of taxable income. It is uncertain if and 
to what extent various states will conform to the Tax Act or the CARES Act. In addition, the utilization of NOLs and other tax attributes to 
offset future taxable income or taxes may be subject to limitations under Sections 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the “Code”), and similar state statutes as a result of ownership changes that have occurred or could occur in the future. 
Additionally, portions of these NOLs could expire unused and be unavailable to offset future income tax liabilities. In addition, at the state 
level, there may be periods during which the use of NOLs is suspended or otherwise limited. For example, California recently imposed limits 
on the usability of California state NOLs to offset taxable income in tax years beginning after 2019 and before 2022. As a result, even if we 
attain profitability, we may be unable to use a material portion of our NOLs and other tax attributes, which could adversely affect our future 
cash flows, which could adversely affect our profitability.
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We may need additional capital, which may not be available to us on acceptable terms or at all. 

We believe that our existing cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, together with cash generated from our operations, 
will be enough to meet our anticipated cash needs for at least the next 12 months. However, we may require additional cash resources due to 
changes in business conditions or other developments, such as acquisitions or investments we may decide to pursue. Any debt financing that 
we may secure in the future could result in additional operating and financial covenants that would limit or restrict our ability to take certain 
actions, such as incurring additional debt, making capital expenditures or declaring dividends. It is also possible that financing may not be 
available to us in amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. 

Risks Related to Our Class A Common Stock 

We may not be able to comply with all applicable listing requirements or standards of the Nasdaq Global Select Market and Nasdaq 
could delist our common stock.

Our Class A common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market and, in order to maintain that listing, we must satisfy 
minimum financial and other continued listing requirements and standards. On October 28, 2022, we received written notice (the “Notice”) 
from The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (“Nasdaq”) indicating that, for the last 30 consecutive business days, the bid price of our Class A 
common stock closed below the $1.00 per share minimum bid price requirement for continued listing on the Nasdaq Global Select Market 
pursuant to Nasdaq Listing Rule 5450(a)(1) (the “Minimum Bid Price Requirement”).

In accordance with Nasdaq Listing Rule 5810(c)(3)(A), if during the 180 calendar day period following the date of the Notice the 
closing bid price of our Class A common stock is at or above $1.00 for a minimum of 10 consecutive business days, we will regain 
compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Requirement and our Class A common stock will continue to be eligible for listing on the Nasdaq 
Global Select Market. 

If we do not regain compliance within the 180 calendar day period, we may qualify for an additional 180 calendar day compliance 
period if we transfer the listing of our Class A common stock to the Nasdaq Capital Market and meet certain requirements. If we do not 
qualify for, or fail to regain, compliance during the second compliance period, then our Class A common stock will be subject to delisting, at 
which point we may appeal Nasdaq’s delisting determination to a Nasdaq Listing Qualifications Hearings Panel.

In the event that our common stock is not eligible for continued listing on Nasdaq or another national securities exchange, it could 
become more difficult to dispose of, or obtain accurate price quotations for, our Class A common stock, and there would likely also be a 
reduction in our coverage by security analysts and the news media, which could cause the price of our Class A common stock to decline 
further.

We intend to actively monitor the closing bid price of our Class A common stock and will consider all available options to regain 
compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Requirement, which may include seeking stockholder approval to effect a reverse stock split. 
However, there can be no assurance that the reverse stock split would be approved by our shareholders. Additionally, there can be no 
assurance that the market price per new share of our Class A common stock after the reverse stock split will remain unchanged or increase 
in proportion to the reduction in the number of old shares of our Class A common stock outstanding before the reverse stock split. Further, 
even if the reverse stock split is approved by our shareholders, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to regain 
compliance with the Minimum Bid Price Requirement or will otherwise be in compliance with other Nasdaq listing rules.
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The price of our Class A common stock has been and continues to be volatile. Declines in the price of our Class A common stock 
has resulted in and could subject us to future litigation. 

The market price of our Class A common stock has fluctuated and declined and may continue to fluctuate or decline substantially. 
Further, the trading prices of the securities of technology companies have historically been highly volatile. Accordingly, the price of our Class 
A common stock has been subject to wide fluctuations and could continue to be subject to wide fluctuations for many reasons, many of which 
are beyond our control, including those described in this “Risk Factors” section and others such as: 

• variations in our operating results and other financial and operational metrics, including the key financial and operating metrics 
disclosed in this report, as well as how those results and metrics compare to analyst and investor expectations; 

• speculation about our operating results in the absence of our own financial projections; 

• failure of analysts to initiate or maintain coverage of our company, changes in their estimates of our operating results or changes 
in recommendations by analysts that follow our Class A common stock; 

• announcements of new services or enhancements, strategic alliances or significant agreements or other developments by us or 
our competitors; 

• announcements by us or our competitors of mergers or acquisitions or rumors of such transactions involving us or our 
competitors; 

• changes in our senior management or other key personnel; 

• disruptions in our platform due to hardware, software or network problems, security breaches or other issues; 

• the strength of the global economy or the economy in the jurisdictions in which we operate, and market conditions in our industry 
and those affecting our merchants and users; 

• trading activity by our principal stockholders and other market participants, in whom ownership of our Class A common stock may 
be concentrated following our IPO; 

• changes in legal or regulatory requirements relating to our business; 

• litigation or other claims against us;

• the sale of Class B common stock held by our founder; 

• the number of shares of our Class A common stock that are available for public trading; and 

• any other factors discussed in this report. 

In addition, if the market for technology stocks or the stock market in general experiences a loss of investor confidence, the price of 
our Class A common stock could decline for reasons unrelated to our business, results of operations or financial condition. The price of our 
Class A common stock might also decline in reaction to events that affect other companies, even if those events do not directly affect us. We 
have been named in lawsuits and may be subject to both ongoing litigation and other requests related to our stock price/performance and/or 
Board performance and independence. This could result in securities litigation. If we are the subject of additional securities class actions, it 
could result in substantial costs and could divert our management’s attention and resources, which could adversely affect our business. 
Additionally, the price of our Class A common stock may be volatile and may decline regardless of our operating performance and you may 
lose all or part of your investment.

Our actual operating results may differ significantly from our outlook.

From time to time, we release outlook (or guidance) in our quarterly earnings conference calls, quarterly earnings releases, or 
otherwise, regarding our future financial performance that represents our management’s estimates as of the date of release. This outlook, 
which includes forward-looking statements, is based on projections prepared by our management. This outlook is not prepared with a view 
toward compliance with published guidelines of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) regarding projections or the 
SEC regarding forward-looking statements, and neither our independent registered public accounting firm nor any other independent expert 
or outside party compiles or examines the projections. Accordingly, no such person will express any opinion or any other form of assurance 
with respect to the projections.
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Projections are based upon a number of assumptions and estimates that, while presented with numerical specificity, are inherently 
subject to significant business, industry, economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond our control 
and are based upon specific assumptions with respect to future business decisions, some of which will change. The principal reason that we 
release outlook is to provide a basis for our management to discuss our business expectations with analysts and investors. We do not accept 
any responsibility for any projections or reports published by any such third parties.

Outlook is necessarily speculative in nature, and it can be expected that some or all of the assumptions underlying the outlook 
furnished by us will not materialize or will vary significantly from actual results. Accordingly, our outlook is only an estimate of what 
management believes is realizable as of the date of release. Actual results may vary and the variations may be material. We expressly 
disclaim any obligations to update or revise any outlook, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as 
required by law. In light of the foregoing, investors are urged to put the outlook in context and not place undue reliance on it.

Any failure to successfully implement our operating strategy or the occurrence of any of the events or circumstances set forth in this 
“Risk Factors” section in this Form 10-K could result in the actual operating results being different from our outlook, and the differences may 
be adverse and material.

Future sales and issuances of our Class A common stock or rights to purchase Class A common stock could result in additional 
dilution to our stockholders and could cause the price of our Class A common stock to decline. 

We may issue additional Class A common stock, convertible securities or other equity. We also expect to issue Class A common 
stock to our employees, directors and other service providers pursuant to our equity incentive plans. Such issuances could be dilutive to 
investors and could cause the price of our Class A common stock to decline. New investors in such issuances could also receive rights 
senior to those of holders of our Class A common stock. 

The price of our Class A common stock could decline if there are substantial sales of our Class A common stock, particularly sales by 
our directors, executive officers, employees, and significant stockholders, or when there is a large number of shares of our Class A common 
stock available for sale. 

The market price of the shares of our Class A common stock could decline as a result of the sale of a substantial number of our 
shares of common stock in the public market or the perception in the market that the holders of a large number of shares intend to sell their 
shares.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of our company more 
difficult, could limit attempts to make changes in our management and could depress the price of our Class A common stock. 

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of our 
company or limiting changes in our management. In August 2022, Piotr Szulczewski, our founder and member of our Board of Directors until 
his resignation in August 2022, converted all shares of Class B common stock he held into the same number of shares of Class A common 
stock. Immediately following such conversion, Mr. Szulczewski’s voting power decreased to approximately 8% of the voting power of our 
outstanding common stock (not including outstanding options that are immediately exercisable). Additionally, following such conversion the 
outstanding shares of our Class B common stock constituted less than 1% of our outstanding shares of our common stock. This resulted in 
all other shares of Class B common stock converting automatically into the same number of shares of Class A common stock. Among other 
things, the provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide:
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• in connection with the conversion noted above, our Board of Directors became classified into three classes of directors with 
staggered three-year terms;

• in connection with  the conversion noted above, directors are now able to be removed only for cause and only by the affirmative 
vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the voting power of our common stock. Vacancies on our Board of Directors will be 
able to be filled only by our Board of Directors and not by stockholders;

• certain amendments to our certificate of incorporation or bylaws will require the approval of two-thirds of our common stock;

• authorization of the issuance of “blank check” preferred stock that our Board of Directors could use to implement a stockholder 
rights plan;

• in connection with the conversion noted above, our stockholders are now only able to take action at a meeting of stockholders and 
not by written consent;

• stockholders may not call special meetings of the stockholders; 

• our Board of Directors is expressly authorized to amend or repeal any provision of our bylaws; 

• that the forum for certain litigation against us must be Delaware or the U.S. federal district courts; and 

• advance notice requirements for nominations for election to our Board of Directors or for proposing matters that can be acted
upon by stockholders at annual stockholder meetings. 

These provisions may delay or prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace members of our management by making it more 
difficult for stockholders to replace members of our Board of Directors, which is responsible for appointing the members of our management.
In addition, Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL”) may delay or prevent a change in control of our company. 
Section 203 imposes certain restrictions on mergers, business combinations and other transactions between us and holders of 15% or more 
of our common stock. Anti-takeover provisions could depress the price of our common stock by acting to delay or prevent a change in control 
of our company.

Our certificate of incorporation provides that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware and the federal district courts of the 
United States of America are the exclusive forums for substantially all disputes between us and our stockholders, which could limit 
our stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us or our directors, officers or employees. 

Our certificate of incorporation provides that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware and the federal district courts of the 
United States of America are the exclusive forum for substantially all disputes between us and our stockholders, which could limit our 
stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with us or our directors, officers or employees. Our certificate of 
incorporation provides that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware is the exclusive forum for: (i) any derivative action or proceeding 
brought on behalf of us; (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty; (iii) any action arising pursuant to any provision of the 
DGCL, our certificate of incorporation or bylaws (as either may be amended from time to time); (iv) any action to interpret, apply, enforce or 
determine the validity of our certificate of incorporation or our bylaws; or (v) any action asserting a claim against us that is governed by the 
internal affairs doctrine. 

This provision does not apply to suits brought to enforce a duty or liability created by the Exchange Act. Furthermore, Section 22 of 
the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for federal and state courts over all such Securities Act actions. Accordingly, both state and 
federal courts have jurisdiction to entertain such claims. To prevent having to litigate claims in multiple jurisdictions and the threat of 
inconsistent or contrary rulings by different courts, among other considerations, our certificate of incorporation further provides that the U.S. 
federal district courts are the exclusive forum for resolving any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act. While 
the Delaware courts have determined that such choice of forum provisions are facially valid, a stockholder may nevertheless seek to bring a 
claim in a venue other than those designated in the exclusive forum provisions. In such instance, we would expect to vigorously assert the 
validity and enforceability of the exclusive forum provisions of our certificate of incorporation. This may require significant additional costs 
associated with resolving such action in other jurisdictions and there can be no assurance that the provisions will be enforced by a court in 
those other jurisdictions. 

These exclusive-forum provisions may limit a stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for 
disputes with us or our directors, officers, or other employees. If a court were to find either exclusive forum provision of our certificate of 
incorporation to be inapplicable to or unenforceable in an action, we may incur further significant additional costs associated with resolving 
the dispute in other jurisdictions, all of which could seriously harm our business.  
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We do not intend to pay dividends on our capital stock, so any returns will be limited to increases in the value of our Class A 
common stock. 

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently anticipate that we will retain future earnings 
for the operation and expansion of our business. Accordingly, we do not anticipate declaring or paying any cash dividends for the foreseeable 
future. In addition, the terms of our Revolving Credit Facility contain, and any future credit facility or financing we obtain may contain, terms 
prohibiting or limiting the amount of dividends that may be declared or paid on our common stock. Any return to stockholders will therefore be 
limited to increases in the price of our Class A common stock, if any. 

General Risk Factors

Our quarterly and annual operating results may fluctuate, which could cause our stock price to decline. 

Our quarterly and annual operating results may fluctuate for a variety of reasons, many of which are beyond our control. These 
reasons include those described in this “Risk Factors” section as well as the following: 

• the amount and timing of our sales and marketing costs; 

• our user acquisition strategies; 

• traffic on our platform; 

• selling prices on our platform and the percentage of revenue we retain from the sale of products; 

• mix of products listed on our platform; 

• fraud, including the sale of counterfeit goods, and refunds, including our response to these areas; 

• continued impact from COVID-19, including the effects of phasing out of governmental measures, decreased online activity, and 
phasing out of government stimulus programs; 

• the level of merchant advertising on our platform; 

• disruptions in supply or shipment of products listed on our platform, especially from China where most of our merchants are 
currently located; 

• the actions of app stores and advertising platforms such as Meta and Google; 

• seasonality; 

• fluctuations in exchange rates; 

• the amount and timing of our other operating expenses; 

• the expiration of expiration of contractual lock-up agreements and market standoff agreements; 

• the impact of competitive developments and our response to those developments; 

• changes in carrier policies and pricing and resulting higher logistics costs; 

• actual or perceived disruptions or defects in our platform, such as data security breaches or outages; 

• changes in laws and regulations that impact our business; 

• changes in tax laws in the jurisdictions in which we operate; and 

• general political, economic, and market conditions, particularly those affecting our industry. 

Fluctuations in our quarterly and annual operating results may cause those results to fall below the expectations of analysts or 
investors, which could cause the price of our Class A common stock to decline. Fluctuations in our results could also cause a number of 
other problems. For example, analysts or investors might change their models for valuing our Class A common stock, we could experience 
short-term liquidity issues, our ability to retain or attract key personnel may diminish, and other unanticipated issues may arise. 

In addition, we believe that our quarterly and annual operating results may vary in the future and that period-to-period comparisons of 
our operating results may not be meaningful. For example, our historical growth may have overshadowed the seasonal effects on our 
historical operating results. These seasonal effects may become more pronounced over time, which could also cause our operating results to 
fluctuate. You should not rely on the results of one quarter or one year as an indication of future performance. 
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Seasonality may cause fluctuations in our operating results. 

Our operating results are seasonal in nature because our transaction volume is affected by traditional retail selling periods that 
impact sales on our platform. Our historical growth may have reduced or outweighed seasonal effects on our past financial results. However, 
seasonal effects may become more pronounced over time, which could cause fluctuations in our financial results. For example, sales on our 
platform have historically peaked in the fall and user activity begins to slow down in December as it may be too late to place orders for 
holiday delivery. Additionally, we have historically experienced some slowdown in merchant activity in late January or early February due to 
our China-based merchants celebrating the Chinese New Year holiday.

Catastrophic events may disrupt our business. 

Natural disasters or other catastrophic events, which may become more frequent, may cause damage or disruption to our operations, 
international commerce, and the global economy, and thus could harm our business. In the event of a major earthquake, hurricane or 
catastrophic event such as fire, power loss, telecommunications failure, cyber-attack, war, or terrorist attack, pandemic or epidemic, we may 
be unable to continue our operations and may endure reputational harm, delays in developing our platform and solutions breaches of data 
security and loss of critical data, all of which could harm our business, results of operations, and financial condition. 

Additionally, we rely on our network and third-party infrastructure and applications, internal technology systems, and our websites for 
our development, marketing, operational support, hosted services, and marketing activities. If these systems were to fail or be negatively 
impacted as a result of a natural disaster or other event, our ability to deliver a positive user and merchant experience would be impaired. 

As we grow our business, the need for business continuity planning and disaster recovery plans will grow in significance. If we are 
unable to develop adequate plans to ensure that our business functions continue to operate during and after a disaster, and successfully 
execute on those plans in the event of a disaster or emergency, our business and reputation would be harmed.   

We may be subject to tax-related controversies. 

We may also be subject to tax controversies in the U.S. and in foreign jurisdictions that can result in tax assessments against us. 
Developments in an audit, investigation, or other tax controversy can have a material effect on our operating results or cash flows. We 
regularly assess the likelihood of an adverse outcome resulting from these proceedings to determine the adequacy of our tax accruals and 
while we believe our tax estimates are reasonable, the final outcome of audits, investigations, and any other tax controversies could be 
materially different from our historical tax accruals. 

Operating as a public company requires us to incur substantial costs and requires substantial management attention. In addition, 
our management team has limited experience managing a public company and the requirements of being a public company may 
strain our resources, divert management’s attention and affect our ability to attract and retain additional executive management 
and qualified board members. 

As a public company, we incur substantial legal, accounting, and other expenses that we did not incur as a private company. For 
example, we are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended (the “Exchange Act”), the 
applicable requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley Act”), the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer 
Protection Act and the rules and regulations of the SEC. The rules and regulations of Nasdaq also apply to us. As part of the new 
requirements, we need to establish and maintain effective disclosure and financial controls and we have made changes to our corporate 
governance practices. We expect that compliance with these requirements will increase our legal and financial compliance costs and will 
make some activities more time-consuming or costly and increase demand on our systems and resources. 

Many members of our management and other key personnel have little experience managing a public company and preparing public 
filings. In addition, as a public company, our management and other key personnel must divert attention from other business matters to 
devote substantial time to the reporting and other requirements of being a public company. In particular, we incur significant expense and 
devote substantial management effort to complying with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We will need to continue 
to hire additional accounting and financial staff with appropriate public company experience and technical accounting knowledge. 
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As a result of disclosure of information in this report and in filings required of a public company, our business and financial condition 
will become more visible, which may result in threatened or actual litigation, including by stockholders and competitors. If such claims are 
successful, our business and operating results could be adversely affected, and even if the claims do not result in litigation or are resolved in 
our favor, these claims, and the time and resources necessary to resolve them, could divert the resources of our management and adversely 
affect our business and operating results. 

In addition, as a result of our disclosure obligations as a public company, we have reduced flexibility and are under pressure to focus 
on short-term results, which may adversely affect our ability to achieve long-term profitability. 

If our estimates or judgments relating to our critical accounting policies prove to be incorrect or financial reporting standards or 
interpretations change, our operating results could be adversely affected. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates, judgments, and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. We base our estimates on 
historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, as provided in Item 7, 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” The results of these estimates form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets, liabilities, and equity as of the date of the financial statements, and the amount of 
revenue and expenses, during the periods presented, that are not readily apparent from other sources. Significant assumptions and 
estimates used in preparing our consolidated financial statements include those related to the fair value of financial instruments, useful lives 
of long-lived assets, fair value of common stock prior to IPO, fair value of derivative instruments, fair value of redeemable convertible 
preferred stock and related redeemable convertible preferred stock warrant and equity awards and other equity issuances prior to IPO, 
incremental borrowing rate applied to lease accounting, contingent liabilities, allowances for refunds and chargebacks and uncertain tax 
positions. Our operating results may be adversely affected if our assumptions change or if actual circumstances differ from those in our 
assumptions, which could cause our operating results to fall below the expectations of industry or financial analysts and investors, resulting in 
a decline in the trading price of our Class A common stock. 

Increased scrutiny and changing expectations from investors, customers, employees and others regarding our environmental, 
social and governance practices and reporting could cause us to incur additional costs, devote additional resources and expose 
us to additional risks, which could adversely impact our reputation, customer acquisition and retention, access to capital and 
employee retention.

Across all industries, companies are facing increased scrutiny related to their environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) 
practices and reporting. Certain investors, customers, employees and other stakeholders have focused increasingly on ESG practices and 
have begun placing increasing importance on the implications and social cost of their investments, purchases and other interactions with 
companies. With this increased focus and demand, public reporting regarding ESG practices is becoming more broadly expected. If our ESG 
practices and reporting do not meet investor, customer or employee expectations, which continue to rapidly evolve, our brand, reputation and 
customer retention may be negatively impacted.

Our ability to achieve any ESG objective is subject to numerous risks, many of which are outside of our control. Examples of such 
risks include: 

• the availability and cost of low- or non-carbon based energy sources;

• the evolving regulatory requirements affecting ESG standards or disclosures;

• the availability of suppliers that can meet our sustainability, diversity and other ESG standards;

• the ability of merchants using our platform to meet our sustainability, diversity, and other ESG standards;

• our ability to enforce and monitor our merchants’ compliance with our sustainability, diversity, and other ESG standards; and

• our ability to recruit, develop and retain diverse talent in our labor markets.

If we fail, or are perceived to be failing, to meet the standards included in any sustainability disclosure or the expectations of our various 
stakeholders, it could negatively impact our reputation, customer acquisition and retention, access to capital and employee retention. In 
addition, new sustainability rules and regulations have been adopted and may continue to be introduced by the SEC as well as in various 
states and other jurisdictions, and our failure to comply with any applicable rules or regulations, including new SEC disclosure requirements, 
could lead to penalties and adversely impact our reputation, customer acquisition and retention, access to capital and employee retention.     
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If analysts do not publish research about our business or if they publish inaccurate or unfavorable research, our stock price and 
trading volume could decline. 

The trading market for our Class A common stock will depend in part on the research and reports that analysts publish about our 
business. We do not have any control over these analysts. If one or more of the analysts who cover us downgrade our Class A common 
stock or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, the price of our Class A common stock would likely decline. If few 
analysts cover us, demand for our Class A common stock could decrease and our Class A common stock price and trading volume may 
decline. Similar results may occur if one or more of these analysts stop covering us in the future or fail to publish reports on us regularly.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments. 

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties. 

Our corporate headquarters consists of approximately 69,000 square feet in San Francisco, California under leases that expire in 
2025, with approximately 34,000 square feet being subleased to other organizations. We also lease offices in Canada and China.

As part of the restructuring plan approved in February 2022, we are continuing to evaluate options to decrease our real estate 
footprint, which include subleasing and/or terminating additional offices leases located in San Francisco. See the section titled Item 7, 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations— February 2022 Restructuring Plan” and Item 8, 
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 12. Restructuring" for further discussion of our restructuring plan.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings. 

The information set forth under the heading “Legal Contingencies and Proceedings” within Item 8, "Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data, Note 7, Commitments and Contingencies", in Part II of this Report, is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.
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PART II

 

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities. 

Market Price of Our Class A Common Stock

Our Class A common stock has been listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “WISH”.

Holders of Record

As of December 31, 2022, we had 44 holders of record of our Class A common stock. Because many of our shares of Class A 
common stock are held in street name by brokers and other nominees on behalf of stockholders, we are unable to estimate the total number 
of beneficial owners of our Class A common stock represented by these holders of record.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain any future earnings and do 
not expect to pay any dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination to declare cash dividends will be made at the discretion of 
our Board of Directors, subject to applicable laws, and will depend on a number of factors, including our financial condition, results of 
operations, capital requirements, contractual restrictions, general business conditions, and other factors that our board of directors may deem 
relevant.

Stock Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the Securities and Exchange Commission for 
purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liabilities under that Section, and shall not be deemed to be 
incorporated by reference into any filing of ContextLogic, Inc. under the Securities Act, or the Exchange Act.

The following graph compares the cumulative total return to stockholders on our common stock relative to the cumulative total 
returns of the Nasdaq Composite Total Return Index (XCMP), the Nasdaq US Benchmark Retail TR Index (NQUBST), and the Russell 
3000® Index (^RUA). An investment of $100 is assumed to have been made in our common stock and in each index on December 17, 2020, 
the date our Class A common stock began trading on the Nasdaq, and its relative performance is tracked through December 31, 2022. The 
returns shown are based on historical results and are not intended to suggest future performance.
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Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

None.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to our definitive proxy statement for our 2023 annual 
meeting of stockholders, which will be filed not later than 120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.

Item 6. [Reserved]
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. 

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 
1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, including statements that involve expectations, plans or intentions (such as 
those relating to future business, future results of operations or financial condition, new or planned features or services, management 
strategies or timing and other expectations regarding our business). You can identify these forward-looking statements by words such as 
“may,” “will,” “would,” “should,” “could,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan” and other similar expressions. These 
forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed or 
implied in our forward-looking statements. Such risks and uncertainties include, among others, those discussed in “Item 1A: Risk Factors” of 
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, as well as in our consolidated financial statements, related notes, and the other information appearing 
elsewhere in this report and our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. We do not intend, and undertake no obligation, 
to update any of our forward-looking statements after the date of this report to reflect actual results or future events or circumstances. Given 
these risks and uncertainties, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. You should read the 
following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in conjunction with the special note 
regarding forward-looking statements, consolidated financial statements and the related notes included in this report. A discussion regarding 
our financial condition and results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2021 compared to the year ended December 31, 2020 is 
included under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in our Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Financial Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2022

• Total revenue was $571 million.

• Total costs of revenue and operating expenses were $969 million, including stock-based compensation expense of $72 million. 

• Loss from operations was $398 million.

• Net loss was $384 million.

• Cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities were $719 million.

As of December 31, 2022, we had an accumulated deficit of $2.9 billion. We expect losses from operations to continue for the 
foreseeable future as we incur costs and expenses related to brand development, expansion of market share, and continued development of 
our mobile shopping marketplace infrastructure.

Global Considerations

We are monitoring the recent volatility in the global financial markets, including inflation and rising interest rates. These developments 
could continue to negatively impact global economic activity and consumer behavior, which may adversely affect our business and our results 
of operations. As our customers react to these global economic conditions, we may take additional precautionary measures to limit or delay 
expenditures and preserve capital and liquidity.

We are also continuing to monitor the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on our business, operations, and financial results. The situation 
surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic remains fluid and the full extent of the impact on our business will depend on certain developments 
including the duration and severity of the pandemic, the emergence of new variants that may continue to prolong the pandemic, the amount 
of time it will take for normal economic activity to resume in geographies that continue to be afflicted by COVID-19, future government actions 
that may be taken, the impact on user activity and behaviors, and the effect on our merchants, vendors, employees, and shareholders, all of 
which remain unpredictable.
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February 2022 Restructuring Plan

In February 2022, our Board of Directors ("the Board") approved the February 2022 Restructuring Plan (“Restructuring Plan”) to 
refocus our operations to support sustainable long-term growth, better align resources, and improve operational efficiencies. The 
Restructuring Plan was substantially implemented by the end of fiscal year 2022.

The Restructuring Plan includes i) reducing our headcount by approximately 15% (or approximately 190 positions), ii) exiting various 
office leases, and iii) reducing and realigning vendor expenditures. During the year ended December 31, 2022, we recorded charges of $3 
million in severance and other personnel reductions costs for terminated employees, and $11 million in impairments of lease assets and 
property and equipment. All related severance payments have been made during the third quarter of 2022.

January 2023 Reduction in Workforce

In January 2023, we announced a plan to further reduce our workforce by up to an additional 150 employees, representing 
approximately 17% of our then global workforce. The reduction in workforce ("RIF") is intended to refocus our operations to support our 
ongoing business prioritization efforts, better align resources, and improve operational efficiencies. In connection with the RIF, we expect to 
incur one-time charges of approximately $3 to $4 million consisting of severance and other personnel reduction costs. We expect that the 
majority of these charges will be incurred in the first quarter of 2023 and that the implementation of the RIF will be substantially complete by 
the end of the second quarter of 2023.

Our Financial Model 

Our business benefits from powerful network effects, fueled by our data advantage and massive scale. As more users join Wish, 
attracted by our affordable value proposition and personalized shopping experiences, we are able to increase revenue potential for our 
merchants. The successes of our merchants attract more merchants and broaden the product selection on Wish’s platform, which further 
improves user experiences. The growth in users and merchants generates more data, which, in turn, refines our algorithm and strengthens 
our data advantage. By focusing on users and merchants, we align their success with our own.    

The economics of the Wish platform rely on cost-effectively adding new users, converting those users into buyers, and improving 
engagement and monetization of those buyers over time as well as acquiring new merchants and monetizing the end-to-end services that we 
provide to them.  

Key Financial and Performance Metrics 

In addition to the measures presented in our consolidated financial statements, we monitor the following key metrics and other 
financial information to measure our performance, identify trends affecting our business, and make strategic decisions. 
 

    Year Ended  
    December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  

    ($ in millions)  
MAU     24       74       107  
LTM Active Buyers     13       38       64  
Adjusted EBITDA   $ (288 )   $ (199 )   $ (217 )
Adjusted EBITDA Margin     (50 )%    (10 )%    (9 )%
Free Cash Flow   $ (424 )   $ (953 )   $ (2 )
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Monthly Active Users 

We define MAUs as the number of unique users that visited the Wish platform, either on our mobile app, mobile web, or on a 
desktop, during the month. MAUs for a given reporting period equal the average of the MAUs for that period. An active user is identified by a 
unique email-address; a single person can have multiple user accounts via multiple email addresses. The change in MAUs in a reported 
period captures both the inflow of new users as well as the outflow of existing users who did not visit the platform in a given month. We view 
the number of MAUs as a key driver of revenue growth as well as a key indicator of user engagement and brand awareness.

MAUs decreased approximately 68% from the year ended December 31, 2022 compared to the year ended December 31, 2021. We 
believe this decline was primarily driven by our decision to significantly reduce our digital advertising expenditures.

LTM Active Buyers 

As of the last date of each reported period, we determine our number of unique last-twelve-months active buyers ("LTM active 
buyers") by counting the total number of individual users who have placed at least one order on the Wish platform, either on our mobile app, 
mobile web, or on a desktop, during the preceding 12 months. We, however, exclude from the computation those buyers whose order is 
canceled before the item is shipped and the purchase price is refunded. The number of LTM active buyers is an indicator of our ability to 
attract and monetize a large user base to our platform and of our ability to convert visits into purchases. We believe that increasing our LTM 
active buyers will be a significant driver to our future revenue growth. 

LTM active buyers decreased approximately 66% from the year ended December 31, 2022 compared to the year ended December 
31, 2021. We believe this decline was primarily driven by reduced digital advertising expenditures resulting in lower MAUs and conversion.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures 

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin 

We provide Adjusted EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure that represents our loss before interest and other income (expense), 
net (which includes foreign exchange gain or loss and other non-operating income and expenses), income tax expense, and depreciation and 
amortization, adjusted to eliminate stock-based compensation expense, remeasurement of redeemable convertible preferred stock warrant 
liability, lease termination and impairment related expenses, restructuring and other discrete one-time charges, and to add back certain 
recurring other items. Additionally, we provide Adjusted EBITDA Margin, a non-GAAP financial measure that represents Adjusted EBITDA 
divided by revenue. Below is a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net loss, the most directly comparable GAAP financial measure.

We have included Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin in this report because they are key measures used by our 
management and the Board to understand and evaluate our operating performance and trends and how we are allocating internal resources, 
to prepare and approve our annual budget and to develop short- and long-term operating plans. We also believe that the exclusion of certain 
items in calculating Adjusted EBITDA can provide a useful measure for period-to-period comparisons of our business as it removes the 
impact of non-cash items and certain variable charges.

Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical measure, and you should not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of 
our results as reported under GAAP. Some of these limitations are:

• although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized may have to be 
replaced in the future, and Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect cash capital expenditure requirements for such replacements or for 
new capital expenditure requirements;

• Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs;

• Adjusted EBITDA does not consider the impact of stock-based compensation and related charges;

• Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect tax payments that may represent a reduction in cash available to us; and

• other companies, including companies in our industry, may calculate Adjusted EBITDA differently, which reduces its usefulness 
as a comparative measure.

Because of these limitations, you should consider Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin alongside other financial 
performance measures, including various cash flow metrics, net loss and our other GAAP results.
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The following table reflects the reconciliation of net loss to Adjusted EBITDA and net loss as a percentage of revenue to Adjusted 
EBITDA margin for each of the periods indicated:

 
      Year Ended  
      December 31,  
      2022     2021     2020  
      ($ in millions)  

Revenue     $ 571     $ 2,085     $ 2,541  
Net loss       (384 )     (361 )     (745 )
Net loss as a percentage of revenue       (67 )%    (17 )%    (29 )%
Excluding:                    

Interest and other (income) expense, net       (15 )     (16 )     2  
Provision for income taxes       1       10       2  
Depreciation and amortization       6       9       12  
Stock-based compensation expense and related employer payroll taxes       74       150       398  
Remeasurement of redeemable convertible preferred stock warrant liability       —       —       110  
Lease termination and impairment related expenses      —       6       —  
Restructuring and other discrete items      29       —       —  
Recurring other items      1       3       4  
Adjusted EBITDA    $ (288 )   $ (199 )   $ (217 )

Adjusted EBITDA margin      (50 )%    (10 )%    (9 )%

(1) Total amount for the year ended December 31, 2022 consisted of $72 million of stock-based compensation expense and $2 million of related employer payroll taxes. 
Total amount for the year ended December 31, 2021 consisted of $141 million of stock-based compensation expense and $9 million of related employer payroll 
taxes. Total amount for the year ended December 31, 2020 consisted of $390 million of stock-based compensation expense and $8 million of related employer 
payroll taxes.

(2) Total stock-based compensation and related employer payroll taxes for the year ended December 31, 2022 decreased by $76 million compared to the year ended 
December 31, 2021 primarily due to forfeitures driven by the resignation of Mr. Szulczewski from his former position as CEO, reductions to the Company’s workforce 
as part of the Company’s Restructuring Plan, and modifications to the Company’s former Executive Chair’s equity awards. These reductions were partially offset by 
the acceleration of Mr. Talwar's equity awards upon his termination from his position as CEO. 

(3) Total amount for the year ended December 31, 2022 included a $15 million one-time discretionary cash bonus paid to select employees to cover their respective tax 
obligations triggered by the settlement of their RSUs that vested upon the Company’s initial public offering ("IPO") as well as restructuring charges consisting of $3 
million of severance and other personnel reduction costs and $11 million in impairment of lease assets and property and equipment.

(4) Total amount represents recurring income originating from contractual agreements with third parties, which is included within interest and other income (expense), 
net within the consolidated statements of operations.

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods presented:
 

    Year Ended December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
    (in millions)  

Cash (used in) provided by:                  
Operating activities   $ (422 )   $ (951 )   $ —  
Investing activities     (47 )     (3 )     165  
Financing activities     (22 )     7       1,046  
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Free Cash Flow 

We also provide Free Cash Flow, a non-GAAP financial measure that represents net cash used in operating activities less purchases 
of property and equipment and development of internal-use software. We believe that Free Cash Flow is an important measure since we use 
third parties to host our services and therefore, we do not incur significant capital expenditures to support revenue generating activities.

Free Cash Flow has limitations as an analytical measure, and you should not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of 
our results as reported under GAAP. Some of these limitations are:

• it is not a substitute for net cash used in operating activities;

• other companies may calculate Free Cash Flow or similarly titled non-U.S. GAAP measures differently or may use other 
measures to evaluate their performance, all of which could reduce the usefulness of free cash flow as a tool for comparison; and

• the utility of free cash flow is further limited as it does not reflect our future contractual commitments and does not represent the 
total increase or decrease in our cash balance for any given period.

Because of these limitations, you should consider Free Cash Flow alongside other financial performance measures, such as net cash 
used in operating activities, net loss and our other GAAP results.

The following table reflects the reconciliation of net cash used in operating activities to Free Cash Flow for each of the periods 
indicated:

 
    Year Ended  
    December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
    (in millions)  

Cash used in operating activities   $ (422 )   $ (951 )   $ —  
Less:                  

Purchases of property and equipment and development of 
internal-use software     2       2       2  
Free Cash Flow   $ (424 )   $ (953 )   $ (2 )

See the “Liquidity and Capital Resources” section below for further discussion on our cash position and future liquidity for the year 
ended December 31, 2022.

Components of Results of Operations

Revenue 

Our revenue consists of marketplace and logistics revenue. 

Marketplace revenue

We provide a mix of marketplace services to our customers. We provide merchants access to our marketplace where merchants 
display and sell their products to users. We also provide ProductBoost services to help merchants promote their products within our 
marketplace. 

Marketplace revenue includes commission fees collected in connection with user purchases of the merchants’ products. The 
commission fees vary depending on factors such as geography, product category, Wish Standards' tier, item value and dynamic pricing. We 
recognize revenue when a user’s order is processed and the related order information has been made available to the merchant. 
Commission fees are recognized net of estimated refunds and chargebacks. Marketplace revenue also includes ProductBoost revenue 
generated by increasing exposure for a merchant’s relevant products within our marketplace. We recognize ProductBoost revenue based on 
the number of impressions delivered, or clicks by users. 
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Logistics revenue

Our logistics offering for merchants is designed for direct end-to-end single order shipment from a merchant’s location to the user.
Logistics services include transportation and delivery of the merchant’s products to the user. Merchants are required to prepay for logistics 
services on a per order basis. 

We recognize revenue over time as the merchant simultaneously receives and consumes the logistics services benefit as the 
logistics services are performed. We use an output method of progress based on days in transit as it best depicts the Company’s progress 
toward complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. 

Cost of Revenue and Operating Expenses 

Cost of revenue

Cost of revenue includes colocation and data center charges, interchange and other fees for credit card processing services, fraud 
and chargeback prevention service charges, costs of refunds and chargebacks made to our users that we are not able to collect from our 
merchants, depreciation and amortization of property and equipment, shipping charges, tracking and logistics costs, warehouse fees, and 
employee-related costs, including salaries, benefits, and stock-based compensation expense for our infrastructure, merchant support, and 
logistics personnel. Cost of revenue also includes an allocation of general information technology ("IT") and facilities overhead expenses. 

Sales and marketing

Our sales and marketing expenses are primarily driven by the cost of acquiring and engaging users by targeting social media and 
search engine digital advertisements, outsourced user support services, sponsorships and local marketing campaigns. Other drivers consist 
of employee-related costs, including salaries, benefits, and stock-based compensation, for our employees involved in marketing, user 
support, and business development functions. Sales and marketing spend also includes an allocation of general IT and facilities overhead 
expenses as well as business development expenses for attracting merchants and conducting ongoing merchant education. 

Product development

Our product development expenses consist primarily of employee-related costs, including salaries, benefits, and stock-based 
compensation for our engineers and other employees involved in product development activities. Product development costs have historically 
been expensed as incurred. Product development costs also include the cost of IT and outside services used by the product development 
team as well as an allocation of general IT and facilities overhead expenses.  

General and administrative

Our general and administrative expenses consist primarily of employee-related costs, including salaries, benefits, and stock-based 
compensation for our executives, finance, legal, information technology, human resources, and other administrative teams. General and 
administrative expenses also include outside consulting, legal, tax, and accounting services, and facilities and other supporting overhead 
costs.  

Remeasurement of Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock Warrant Liability 

Remeasurement of our redeemable convertible preferred stock warrant liability was as a result of the change to the underlying 
redeemable convertible preferred stock value at the end of each reporting period. After our IPO, we no longer incur expenses related to the 
change in fair value of our redeemable convertible preferred stock warrant liability as the related warrant was exercised upon our IPO and the 
redeemable convertible preferred warranty liability was reclassified to Class A common stock and additional paid-in capital as it is now 
considered permanent equity. 
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Interest and Other Income (expense), net 

Interest and other income (expense), net consists primarily of interest income earned on our cash, cash equivalents and marketable 
securities, interest expense, foreign exchange gain or loss and gain or loss from our foreign currency forward contracts. 

Income Tax 

Income taxes consist primarily of income taxes in certain U.S. state and foreign jurisdictions in which we conduct business. 

Results of Operations

The following tables show our results of operations for the periods presented and express the relationship of certain line items as a 
percentage of revenue for those periods. The period-to-period comparison of financial results is not necessarily indicative of future results.  
 

   
Year Ended

December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
    (in millions)  

Revenue   $ 571     $ 2,085     $ 2,541  
Cost of revenue     405       977       947  

Gross profit     166       1,108       1,594  
Operating expenses:                  

Sales and marketing     254       1,102       1,708  
Product development     194       208       222  
General and administrative     116       165       295  

Total operating expenses     564       1,475       2,225  
Loss from operations     (398 )     (367 )     (631 )
Other income (expense), net                  

Interest and other income (expense), net     15       16       (2 )
Remeasurement of convertible preferred stock warrant liability     —       —       (110 )
Loss before provision for income taxes     (383 )     (351 )     (743 )

Provision for income taxes     1       10       2  
Net loss   $ (384 )   $ (361 )   $ (745 )

(1)	 Includes stock-based compensation expense as follows:
 

      Year Ended  
      December 31,  
      2022     2021     2020  
      (in millions)  

Cost of revenue     $ 7     $ 20     $ 35  
Sales and marketing       6       12       23  
Product development       50       59       118  
General and administrative       9       50       214  

Total stock-based compensation     $ 72     $ 141     $ 390  
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The following table presents the components of our consolidated statements of operations as a percentage of revenue: 
 

   
Year Ended

December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  

Revenue     100 %    100 %    100 %
Cost of revenue     71 %    47 %    37 %

Gross profit     29 %    53 %    63 %
Operating expenses:                  

Sales and marketing     45 %    53 %    67 %
Product development     34 %    10 %    9 %
General and administrative     20 %    8 %    12 %

Total operating expenses     99 %    71 %    88 %
Loss from operations     (70 )%    (18 )%    (25 )%
Other income (expense), net:                  

Interest and other income (expense), net     3 %    1 %    —  
Remeasurement of convertible preferred stock warrant liability     —       —       (4 )%

Loss before provision for income taxes     (67 )%    (17 )%    (29 )%
Provision for income taxes     —       —       —  
Net loss     (67 )%    (17 )%    (29 )%

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Revenue
 

   
Year Ended 

December 31,     Change  
    2022     2021     $     %  
    ($ in millions)  

Core marketplace revenue   $ 220     $ 1,177     $ (957 )     (81 )%
ProductBoost revenue     46       165       (119 )     (72 )%

Marketplace revenue     266       1,342       (1,076 )     (80 )%
Logistics revenue     305       743       (438 )     (59 )%

Revenue   $ 571     $ 2,085     $ (1,514 )     (73 )%

(1) Wish Cash liability breakage recognized within core marketplace revenue was $4 million and $29 million for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. Refer to Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements in Item 8 "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for additional details. In addition, 
core marketplace revenue included approximately a $6 million net loss and $22 million net gain for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, from 
our cash flow hedging program. 

Revenue decreased $1.5 billion, or 73%, to $571 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 as compared to $2.1 billion for the 
year ended December 31, 2021. This decrease was attributable to decreased marketplace and logistics revenue, as noted below.

Marketplace revenue decreased $1.1 billion, or 80% to $266 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, as compared to $1.3 
billion for the year ended December 31, 2021. This decrease was primarily driven by lower order volumes associated with reduced MAUs 
and LTM Active Buyers, as well as revisions to our pricing strategy, which resulted in lower marketplace revenue.

Logistics revenue decreased $438 million or 59% to $305 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, as compared to $743 
million for the year ended December 31, 2021. Like marketplace revenue, the decrease was primarily driven by lower order volumes during 
the year ended December 31, 2022 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2021.
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Cost of Revenue and Gross Margin 
 

   
Year Ended 

December 31,     Change  
    2022     2021     $     %  
    ($ in millions)  

Cost of revenue   $ 405     $ 977     $ (572 )     (59 )%
Percentage of revenue     71 %    47 %           

Gross Margin     29 %    53 %           
 

Cost of revenue decreased $572 million, or 59%, to $405 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, as compared to $977 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2021. This decrease was primarily due to lower marketplace and logistics related costs as a result of lower
order volumes.

The gross margin decreased to 29% for the year ended December 31, 2022 from 53% for the year ended December 31, 2021, 
primarily driven by a greater percentage of lower margin logistics services making up overall revenue during the year ended December 31, 
2022 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2021, and revisions to our pricing strategy.

Sales and Marketing
  

   
Year Ended 

December 31,     Change  
    2022     2021     $     %  
    ($ in millions)  

Sales and marketing   $ 254     $ 1,102     $ (848 )     (77 )%
Percentage of revenue     45 %    53 %           

Sales and marketing expenses decreased $848 million, or 77%, to $254 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, compared 
to $1.1 billion for the year ended December 31, 2021. The decrease was primarily due to reduced digital advertising expenditures in order to 
focus our resources on other strategic initiatives, and reduced employee-related costs, including stock-based compensation expense, driven 
by lower headcount as a result of our Restructuring Plan.

Product Development 
 

   
Year Ended 

December 31,     Change  
    2022     2021     $     %  
    ($ in millions)  

Product development   $ 194     $ 208     $ (14 )     (7 )%
Percentage of revenue     34 %    10 %           

Product development expense decreased $14 million, or 7%, to $194 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, as compared to 
$208 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The decrease was primarily due to a reduction in expenses associated with data 
analytics and facility related costs, and to a lesser extent, employee-related costs, including stock-based compensation expense, driven by 
lower headcount as a result of our Restructuring Plan. The decrease was partially offset by a one-time discretionary bonus paid to select 
employees to cover their respective tax obligations triggered by the settlement of their RSUs that vested upon the Company’s IPO and an 
increase in content moderation services regarding products listed on our platform. 
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General and Administrative 

 

   
Year Ended 

December 31,     Change  
    2022     2021     $     %  
    ($ in millions)  

General and administrative   $ 116     $ 165     $ (49 )     (30 )%
Percentage of revenue     20 %    8 %           

General and administrative expenses decreased $49 million, or 30%, to $116 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, as 
compared to $165 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The decrease was primarily related to a reversal of stock-based 
compensation in connection with the resignation of both our former CEO (Mr. Szulczewski) and executive chair, a reduction in employee-
related costs, including stock-based compensation, driven by a reduced headcount from the February 2022 Restructuring Plan, and to a 
lesser extent, decreases in legal, audit, tax, and lease related expenses. These decreases were partially offset by impairments of our lease 
assets and related property and equipment. 

Interest and Other Income, net 
 

   
Year Ended 

December 31,     Change  
    2022     2021     $     %  
    ($ in millions)  

Interest and other income (expense), net   $ 15     $ 16     $ (1 )     (6 )%
Percentage of revenue     3 %    1 %           

Interest and other income, net decreased $1 million, or 6%, to $15 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, as compared to 
$16 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The decrease was attributable to less foreign exchange gains offset by an increase in 
interest income due to higher interest rates.  

Provision for Income Taxes 
 

   
Year Ended 

December 31,     Change  
    2022     2021     $     %  
    ($ in millions)  

Provision for income taxes   $ 1     $ 10     $ (9 )    (90 )%
Percentage of revenue     —       —              

Provision for income taxes decreased $9 million, or 90%, to $1 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, as compared to $10 
million for the year ended December 31, 2021. The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in pre-tax earnings of our international 
operations.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources 

As of December 31, 2022, we had cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities of $719 million, a majority of which were held in 
cash deposits and money market funds and were held for working capital purposes. We believe that our existing cash, cash equivalents and 
marketable securities will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for at least the next 12 months, though we may require additional 
financing or capital resources in the future. 

Our material cash requirements include $173 million in accounts and merchants payable, $72 million remaining on a colocation and 
cloud services purchase commitment, and $22 million of facility lease obligations, of which $8 million is due within the next 12 months.

Sources of Liquidity

In December 2020, we completed our IPO of Class A common stock and received net proceeds of approximately $1.1 billion after 
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of approximately $52 million, but before deducting offering costs, net of reimbursements, 
of approximately $6 million. As of December 31, 2022, we did not have any outstanding borrowings.

November 2020 Credit Facility

In November 2020, we entered into the Revolving Credit Facility which enables us to borrow up to $280 million. The Revolving 
Credit Facility contains an accordion option which, if exercised and provided we are able to secure additional lender commitments and satisfy 
certain other conditions, would allow us to increase the aggregate commitments by up to $100 million. As of December 31, 2022, we had not 
made any borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility. Refer to Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of Part II, 
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” for additional details related to the Revolving Credit Facility.

Cash Flows
  

    Year Ended December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
    (in millions)  

Cash (used in) provided by:                  
Operating activities   $ (422 )   $ (951 )   $ —  
Investing activities     (47 )     (3 )     165  
Financing activities     (22 )     7       1,046  

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 

Our cash flows from operations are largely dependent on the amount of revenue we generate. Net cash provided by operating 
activities in each period presented has been influenced by changes in funds receivable, prepaid expenses, and other current and noncurrent 
assets, accounts payable, merchants payable, accrued and refund liabilities, lease liabilities, and other current and noncurrent liabilities. 

Net cash used in our operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $422 million. This was primarily driven by our 
net loss of $384 million and $136 million of unfavorable changes in our operating assets and liabilities, which was partially offset by non-cash 
expenses of $98 million, consisting of $72 million in stock-based compensation expense and $26 million of other non-cash expenses. 
Unfavorable working capital movement was mainly driven by reductions in accounts payable, merchants payable and accrued and refund 
liabilities. Accounts payable, merchants payable, and accrued and refund liabilities decreased by $127 million primarily due to lower order
volumes and reduced digital advertising expenditures.
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Net cash used in our operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $951 million. This was primarily driven by our 
net loss of $361 million and $768 million unfavorable changes in our operating assets and liabilities, which was partially offset by non-cash 
expenses of $178 million, consisting of $141 million in stock-based compensation expense and $37 million of other non-cash expenses. 
Unfavorable working capital movement was mainly driven by reductions accounts payable, merchants payable and accrued and refund 
liabilities. Accounts payable decreased by $367 million primarily due to our decision to significantly reduce digital advertising expenditures 
and the timing of payments and shorter vendor payment terms. Earlier during the COVID-19 pandemic, we were able to negotiate favorable 
payment terms with certain key digital advertising partners (45 days and 60 days). The payment terms with these key digital advertising 
partners reverted back to 30 days when the favorable terms expired on December 31, 2020. Merchants payable decreased by $269 million 
primarily due to lower volumes driven by reduced digital advertising expenditures that resulted in lower MAUs and LTM Active Buyers. 

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 

Our primary investing activities have consisted of investing excess cash balances in marketable securities. 

Net cash used in investing activities was $47 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. This was primarily due to $368 million in 
purchases of marketable securities and $2 million in capital expenditures, partially offset by $321 million of maturities in marketable securities 
and $2 million of other investing activities.

Net cash used in investing activities was $3 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. This was primarily due to $299 million in 
purchases of marketable securities and $2 million in capital expenditures, offset by sales and maturities in marketable securities of $298 
million.

Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities 

Net cash used in our financing activities was $22 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. This was primarily due to $23 million 
in payments of taxes related to employee RSU settlements and cashless exercises of stock options, offset by $1 million in proceeds from 
common stock purchased under the Company's Employee Stock Purchase Plan. 

Net cash provided by our financing activities was $7 million for the year ended December 31, 2021. This was primarily due to 
proceeds originating from sales of shares through our employee equity incentive plans, partially offset by payment of taxes related settlement 
of RSUs. 

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements 

For the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, we did not have any relationships with unconsolidated organizations or 
financial partnerships, such as structured finance or special purpose entities that would have been established for the purpose of facilitating 
off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. 
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

Our management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our consolidated financial 
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP as set forth in the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Accounting 
Standards Codification (“ASC”). The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and related disclosures. We evaluate our estimates and 
assumptions on an ongoing basis. Our estimates are based on historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. Our actual results could differ from these estimates. 

We believe the accounting policies below involve a significant degree of assumptions and estimates, and thus have the greatest 
potential impact on our consolidated financial statements. For further information on all of our significant accounting policies, refer to Note 2 
to our consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of Part II, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”. 

Revenue Recognition 

The most critical judgments required in applying ASC 606, Revenue Recognition from Customers, and our revenue policy relate to:  

• The determination of distinct promises to the customer that should not be combined; 

• The recognition of revenue, as a principal or an agent based on the nature of the promise, and at a point in time or over time;

• Estimates related to future refunds and chargebacks; 

• The evaluation of whether a promotion or incentive is a payment to a customer or a non-customer; and

• The determination of accounting treatment based on whether the contract is with a customer, vendor or other parties.

Changes in judgments with respect to these assumptions and estimates could impact the timing and amount of revenue recognition. 

Deferred Revenue  

Deferred revenue consists of amounts received, primarily related to unsatisfied performance obligations of logistics services, at the 
end of the period. Due to the short-term duration of contracts, all of the performance obligations will be satisfied in the following reporting 
period. 

Wish Cash Liability

We issue Wish Cash to end-users who opt to receive it for their refundable transactions, and as a part of our various referral and 
incentive programs. We accrue a liability for issued Wish Cash which is reduced when Wish Cash is redeemed by our users. We record 
breakage revenue within core marketplace revenue, on unredeemed Wish Cash balances based on expected customer redemption. We 
estimate breakage based on historical and expected trends. Actual redemptions may vary from our estimates.
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Operating Lease Obligations 

We lease facilities and data center colocations in multiple locations under non-cancelable lease agreements through 2027. For 
leases with a term greater than one year, lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the present value of the 
future lease payments over the expected lease term. The discount rate the Company uses to estimate the present value of future lease 
payments is the Company’s incremental borrowing rate because the rate implicit in our leases are not readily available. The right-of-use 
("ROU") asset is determined based on the lease liability initially established and adjusted for any prepaid lease payments and any lease 
incentives received. The expected lease term to calculate the ROU asset and related lease liability includes options to extend or terminate 
the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise the option.

 Determining the incremental borrowing rate to calculate the present value of future lease payments involves considerable 
estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions include, among others, future economic and market conditions, analysis of 
publicly traded debt of companies with similar credit risk profiles of our own, and likelihood of the Company exercising lease renewal options 
(if applicable). Changes in these factors and assumptions used can materially affect the amount of ROU assets and lease liabilities we 
recognize on our consolidated balance sheets.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review long-lived assets, including intangible and ROU assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured first by a 
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets 
are considered to be impaired, an impairment loss would be recognized based on the excess of the carrying amount of the asset above the 
fair value of the asset. 

 Calculating the fair value of the asset involves significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions include, 
among others, projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rates, future economic and market conditions, and the determination of 
appropriate market comparables. Changes in these factors and assumptions used can materially affect the amount of impairment loss
recognized in the period the asset was considered impaired.

Loss Contingencies

We are involved in various lawsuits, claims, investigations, and proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. Certain of 
these matters include speculative claims for substantial or indeterminate amounts of damages. We record a liability when we believe that it is 
both probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount or range can be reasonably estimated. We disclose material contingencies when 
we believe that a loss is not probable but reasonably possible. Significant judgment is required to determine both probability and the 
estimated amount. We review these provisions on an ongoing basis and adjust these provisions accordingly to reflect the impact of 
negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel, and updated information.

The outcome of legal matters and litigation is inherently uncertain. Therefore, if one or more of these legal matters were resolved 
against us for amounts in excess of management’s expectations, our results of operations, and financial condition, including in a particular 
reporting period, could be materially adversely affected

Stock-Based Compensation 

We measure and recognize compensation expense for all stock-based awards, including restricted stock units (“RSUs”), 
performance-based units (“PSUs”), stock options, and purchase rights issued to employees under our employee stock purchase plan 
(“ESPP”), based on the estimated fair value of the awards on the grant date. We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the 
fair value of stock options and ESPP purchase rights and the Monte Carlo Simulation model to estimate the fair value of a PSU. The fair 
value of RSUs is based on the market closing price for its common stock as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on the date of 
grant. 

Our use of the Black-Scholes option-pricing and Monte-Carlo Simulation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, 
including the fair value of the underlying common stock, expected term of the option, expected volatility of the price of our common stock, 
risk-free interest rates, and the expected dividend yield of our common stock. The assumptions used in these valuation models represent 
management’s best estimates. These estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application of management’s judgment. If factors 
change and different assumptions are used, our stock-based compensation expense could be materially different in the future.
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Income Taxes 

We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. and in many international jurisdictions. The determination of these tax liabilities requires 
estimation, significant judgment, and interpretation of each jurisdiction’s tax statutes, regulations, and case laws. Additionally, governing tax 
legislation could change significantly with little or no notice. It is important for us to monitor economic, political, and other conditions in the 
various countries with operations as changes in a jurisdiction’s conditions could impact the amount of deferred tax assets or our ability to 
utilize deferred tax assets in the future. 

We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for 
the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between consolidated financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis 
of assets and liabilities and net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Valuation allowances are established when deemed necessary to 
reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. 

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We have operations both within the U.S. and internationally, and we are exposed to market risks in the ordinary course of our 
business, including the effects of interest rate changes and foreign currency fluctuations. Information relating to quantitative and qualitative 
disclosures about these market risks is described below.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities as of December 31, 2022 were held primarily in cash deposits, treasuries, and 
corporate bonds. The fair value of our cash, cash equivalents, and investments would not be significantly affected by either an increase or 
decrease in interest rates due mainly to the short-term nature of these instruments and that the Company’s policy is to hold investments to 
maturity except in cases of non-compliance with our investment policy.

Foreign Currency Risk

We transact business in various foreign countries and are, therefore, subject to risk of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. 
We have established a foreign currency risk management policy to provide processes and procedures for managing this risk. We use natural 
hedging techniques first to net off existing foreign currency exposures. For the remaining exposure, we may enter into short term foreign 
currency derivative contracts, including forward contracts to hedge exposures associated with monetary assets and liabilities, mainly 
merchants payable, and cash flows denominated in non-functional currencies. 

The credit risk of our foreign exchange derivative contracts is minimized since contracts are not concentrated with any one financial 
institution and all contracts are only placed with large financial institutions. The gains and losses on foreign currency derivative contracts 
generally offset the losses and gains on the assets, liabilities and transactions hedged. The fair value of foreign exchange derivative 
contracts is reported in the consolidated balance sheets. The majority of these foreign exchange contracts expire in less than three months 
and all expire within one year. Refer to Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of Part II, “Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data” for more information related to our derivative financial instruments.

Based on our overall currency rate exposures as of December 31, 2022, including the derivative financial instruments intended to 
hedge the nonfunctional currency-denominated monetary assets, liabilities and cash flows, and other factors, a 10% appreciation or 
depreciation of the U.S. dollar from its cross-functional rates would not be expected, in the aggregate, to have a material effect on our 
financial position, results of operations and cash flows in the near-term.

Inflation Risk

As of the date of filing of this Annual Report, we do not believe that inflation has had a material effect on our business, financial 
condition, or results of operations. If the Company’s costs were to become subject to significant inflationary pressures, the Company may not 
be able to fully offset such higher costs through increases in revenue as increases in core inflation rates may also affect consumers’ 
willingness to make discretionary purchases on our platforms. The Company’s inability or failure to do so could harm the Company’s 
business, financial condition, and results of operations.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

  
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of ContextLogic Inc.

Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of ContextLogic Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 
31, 2022, and the related consolidated statements of operations, of comprehensive loss, of redeemable convertible preferred stock and 
stockholders’ equity (deficit) and of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2022, including the related notes (collectively referred to as 
the “consolidated financial statements”). We also have audited the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2022, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations 
of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Company as of December 31, 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2022 in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company did not maintain, in all 
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria established in Internal Control 
- Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO because material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting existed as of 
that date related to the Company not designing and maintaining (i) an effective control environment, specifically providing sufficient 
management oversight and ownership over the internal control evaluation process and hiring and training sufficient competent personnel to 
support the Company’s internal control objectives and (ii) effective controls over information technology general controls for information 
systems and applications that are relevant to the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, including sufficient user access 
controls, program change management controls, and computer operations controls.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely 
basis. The material weaknesses referred to above are described in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
appearing under Item 9A. We considered these material weaknesses in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in 
our audit of the 2022 consolidated financial statements, and our opinion regarding the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting does not affect our opinion on those consolidated financial statements. 

Basis for Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in management's report 
referred to above. Our responsibility is to express opinions on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and on the Company's 
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. 
federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or 
fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

Our audit of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures 
included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audit also 
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
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Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that 
was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to 
the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of 
critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by 
communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to 
which it relates. 

Consolidated Financial Statements - Impact of Control Environment, Control Activities and Information Technology General Controls

The completeness and accuracy of the consolidated financial statements, including the financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows, is dependent on, in part, management’s ability to (i) fully implement components of the COSO framework, including elements of the 
control environment and control activities components relating to providing sufficient management oversight and ownership over the internal 
control evaluation process, hiring and training sufficient competent personnel to support the Company’s internal control objectives, and 
retaining sufficient documentation of control activities and evidence supporting the operating effectiveness of controls and (ii) design and 
maintain effective information technology general controls for information systems and applications that are relevant to the preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements, including sufficient user access controls, program change management controls and computer operations 
controls.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the consolidated financial statements - impact of 
control environment, control activities and information technology general controls is a critical audit matter are the high degree of auditor 
judgment, subjectivity and effort in performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence related to the consolidated financial statements and 
information systems, which affect substantially all financial statement account balances and disclosures. As previously disclosed by 
management, material weaknesses existed during the year related to management not (i) fully implementing components of the COSO 
framework, including elements of the control environment, information and communication, control activities, and monitoring components, 
relating to providing sufficient management oversight and ownership over the internal control evaluation process, hiring and training sufficient 
competent personnel to support the Company’s internal control objectives, performing timely monitoring to ascertain whether the components 
of internal control are present and functioning effectively, communicating deficiencies in a timely manner to those parties responsible for 
taking corrective action, and retaining sufficient documentation of control activities and evidence supporting the operating effectiveness of 
controls and (ii) designing or maintaining effective information technology general controls for information systems and applications that are 
relevant to the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, including sufficient user access controls, program change management 
controls and computer operations controls. As described above in the “Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting” section, material weaknesses related to (i) the control environment and (ii) information technology general controls 
continued to exist as of December 31, 2022.
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Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall opinion on the 
consolidated financial statements. These procedures included, among others, evaluating and determining the nature and extent of audit 
procedures performed and evidence obtained that are responsive to the material weaknesses that existed during the year. These procedures 
also included (i) manually testing the completeness and accuracy of system reports or other information generated by the Company's 
information technology systems and (ii) evaluating whether management performed timely monitoring to ascertain whether the components 
of internal control are present and functioning effectively, communicated deficiencies in a timely manner to those parties responsible for 
taking corrective action, and retained sufficient documentation of control activities and evidence supporting the operating effectiveness of 
controls.

 

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP     

San Francisco, California

February 27, 2023

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2022.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of ContextLogic Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of ContextLogic Inc. (the Company) as of December 31, 2021, the related
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, redeemable convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ equity (deficit) and 
cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2021, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the 
“consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company at December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period 
ended December 31, 2021, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. 
federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our 
audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, 
and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
  
/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
  

We served as the Company’s auditor from 2015 to 2022.

San Francisco, California

March 14, 2022
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CONTEXTLOGIC INC. 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(in millions, except par value) 

 
    As of December 31,  
    2022     2021  
             

Assets            
Current assets:            

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 506     $ 1,009  
Marketable securities     213       150  
Funds receivable     14       17  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets     44       48  

Total current assets     777       1,224  
Property and equipment, net     9       17  
Right-of-use assets     9       18  
Marketable securities     —       17  
Other assets     4       7  
Total assets   $ 799     $ 1,283  

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity            
Current liabilities:            

Accounts payable   $ 53     $ 67  
Merchants payable     120       185  
Refunds liability     6       23  
Accrued liabilities     130       174  

Total current liabilities     309       449  
Lease liabilities, non-current     13       16  
Total liabilities     322       465  
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)            
Stockholders’ equity:            

Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value: 100 shares authorized as of December 31, 2022 and 2021; No shares issued 
and outstanding as of December 31, 2022 and 2021     —       —  
Common stock, $0.0001 par value: 3,000 Class A shares and 3,500 (3,000 Class A, 500 Class B) shares 
authorized as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively; 695 Class A shares and 658 (593 Class A, 65 Class 
B) shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively     —       —  
Additional paid-in capital     3,411       3,360  
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income     (5 )     3  
Accumulated deficit     (2,929 )     (2,545 )

Total stockholders’ equity     477       818  
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity   $ 799     $ 1,283  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONTEXTLOGIC INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(in millions, except per share data) 
 

    Year Ended  
    December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
                   

Revenue   $ 571     $ 2,085     $ 2,541  
Cost of revenue     405       977       947  
Gross profit     166       1,108       1,594  
Operating expenses:                  

Sales and marketing     254       1,102       1,708  
Product development     194       208       222  
General and administrative     116       165       295  

Total operating expenses     564       1,475       2,225  
Loss from operations     (398 )     (367 )     (631 )
Other income (expense), net:                  

Interest and other income (expense), net     15       16       (2 )
Remeasurement of redeemable convertible preferred stock
   warrant liability     —       —       (110 )

Loss before provision for income taxes     (383 )     (351 )     (743 )
Provision for income taxes     1       10       2  
Net loss   $ (384 )   $ (361 )   $ (745 )
Net loss per share, basic and diluted   $ (0.57 )   $ (0.57 )   $ (5.87 )
Weighted-average shares used in computing net loss per share, basic and 
diluted     672       629       127  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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CONTEXTLOGIC INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 
(in millions) 

 
    Year Ended  
    December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
                   

Net loss   $ (384 )   $ (361 )   $ (745 )
Other comprehensive (loss) income:                  

Unrealized holding (losses) gains on derivatives and marketable securities, 
net of tax     (1 )     —       2  
Foreign currency translation adjustment     (7 )     2       (1 )

Other comprehensive (loss) income     (8 )     2       1  
Comprehensive loss   $ (392 )   $ (359 )   $ (744 )

  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONTEXTLOGIC INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT) 
(In millions, except per share amounts) 

 

 
Redeemable Convertible

Preferred Stock       Common Stock          
Accumulated 

Other           Total  

  Shares     Amount       Shares    
Amou

nt    

Additional
Paid-in 
Capital    

Comprehensive 
Income (loss)    

Accumulate
d Deficit    

Stockholders'
(Deficit) 
Equity  

                                                 
Balances as of December 31, 2019   422     $ 1,536         103     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ (1,439 )   $ (1,439 )

Conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock into 
common stock upon IPO   (422 )     (1,536 )       422       —       1,536       —       —       1,536  
Issuance of common stock upon IPO, net of issuance 
costs   —       —         46       —       1,046       —       —       1,046  
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of redeemable 
convertible preferred stock warrant   —       —         10       —       237       —       —       237  
Issuance of additional common stock in connection with 
the conversion of Series H redeemable convertible 
preferred stock   —       —         1       —       —       —       —       —  
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of options for 
cash   —       —         5       —       2       —       —       2  
Repurchase of common stock   —       —         —       —       (1 )     —       —       (1 )
Stock-based compensation   —       —         —       —       390       —       —       390  
Other comprehensive income, net   —       —         —       —       —       1       —       1  
Net loss   —       —         —       —       —       —       (745 )     (745 )

Balances as of December 31, 2020   —     $ —         587     $ —     $ 3,210     $ 1     $ (2,184 )   $ 1,027  
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of options for 
cash   —       —         29       —       6       —       —       6  
Issuance of common stock upon settlement of restricted 
stock units   —       —         40       —       (5 )     —       —       (5 )
Net exercises of common stock warrant   —       —         1       —       —       —       —       —  
Issuance of common stock through ESPP   —       —         1       —       7       —       —       7  
Stock-based compensation   —       —         —       —       142       —       —       142  
Other comprehensive income, net   —       —         —       —       —       2       —       2  
Net loss   —       —         —       —       —       —       (361 )     (361 )

Balances as of December 31, 2021   —     $ —         658     $ —     $ 3,360     $ 3     $ (2,545 )   $ 818  
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of options for 
cash   —       —         1       —       —       —       —       —  
Issuance of common stock upon cashless exercise of 
options   —       —         43       —       —       —       —       —  
Issuance of common stock upon settlement of restricted 
stock units   —       —         29       —       —       —       —       —  
Shares withheld related to net share settlement   —       —         (37 )     —       (22 )     —       —       (22 )
Issuance of common stock through ESPP   —       —         1       —       1       —       —       1  
Stock-based compensation   —       —         —       —       72       —       —       72  
Other comprehensive loss, net   —       —         —       —       —       (8 )     —       (8 )
Net loss   —       —         —       —       —       —       (384 )     (384 )

Balances as of December 31, 2022   —     $ —         695     $ —     $ 3,411     $ (5 )   $ (2,929 )   $ 477  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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CONTEXTLOGIC INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(in millions)

  
    Year Ended  
    December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  

Cash flows from operating activities:      
Net loss   $ (384 )   $ (361 )   $ (745 )

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating
   activities:                  
Noncash inventory write downs     3       13       —  
Depreciation and amortization     6       9       12  
Noncash lease expense     6       11       10  
Impairment of lease assets and property and equipment     11       —       —  
Stock-based compensation expense     72       141       390  
Remeasurement of redeemable convertible preferred stock warrant liability     —       —       110  
Other     —       4       (2 )

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:                  
Funds receivable     3       66       12  
Prepaid expenses, other current and noncurrent assets     (1 )     54       (2 )
Accounts payable     (13 )     (367 )     263  
Merchants payable     (65 )     (269 )     (166 )
Accrued and refund liabilities     (49 )     (213 )     115  
Lease liabilities     (8 )     (11 )     (10 )
Other current and noncurrent liabilities     (3 )     (28 )     13  

Net cash used in operating activities     (422 )     (951 )     —  
Cash flows from investing activities:                  

Purchases of property and equipment and development of internal-use software     (2 )     (2 )     (2 )
Purchases of marketable securities     (368 )     (299 )     (266 )
Sales of marketable securities     —       50       —  
Maturities of marketable securities     321       248       433  
Other     2       —       —  

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities     (47 )     (3 )     165  
Cash flows from financing activities:                  

Proceeds from issuance of common stock through employee equity incentive plans     1       13       —  
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of underwriting discounts and commissions     —       —       1,052  
Payments to repurchase common and redeemable convertible preferred stock     —       —       (1 )
Payments of taxes related to RSU settlement and cashless exercise of stock options     (23 )     (5 )     —  
Payment of deferred offering costs and other financing activities     —       (1 )     (5 )

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities     (22 )     7       1,046  
Foreign currency effects on cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash     (14 )     —       —  
Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash     (505 )     (947 )     1,211  
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period     1,018       1,965       754  

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period   $ 513     $ 1,018     $ 1,965  

Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash to the consolidated balance 
sheets:                  
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 506     $ 1,009     $ 1,965  
Restricted cash included within prepaid expenses and other current assets in the consolidated 
balance sheets     7       9       —  

Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash   $ 513     $ 1,018     $ 1,965  

Supplemental cash flow disclosures:                  
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds   $ 6     $ 10     $ 1  

Supplemental noncash investing activities:                  
Stock-based compensation capitalized in development of internal-use software   $ —     $ 1     $ —  

Supplemental noncash financing activities:                  
Conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock to common stock   $ —     $ —     $ 1,536  
Reclassification of redeemable convertible preferred stock warrant liability to additional paid-in 
capital   $ —     $ —     $ 237  
Offering costs included in accounts payable   $ —     $ —     $ 1  

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS 

ContextLogic Inc. (“Wish” or the “Company”) is a mobile ecommerce company that provides a shopping experience that is mobile-
first and discovery-based, which connects merchants’ products to users based on user preferences. The Company generates revenue from 
marketplace and logistics services provided to merchants. 

The Company was incorporated in the state of Delaware in June 2010 and is headquartered in San Francisco, California, with 
operations domestically and internationally. 

Initial Public Offering

In December 2020, the Company completed its initial public offering (“IPO”) of Class A common stock, in which it sold 46 million 
shares. The shares were sold at an IPO price of $24 per share for net proceeds of approximately $1.1 billion, after deducting underwriting 
discounts and commissions of approximately $52 million. Additionally, the Company incurred approximately $6 million of offering costs, net of 
reimbursements. Upon closing of the Company’s IPO, all outstanding shares of its convertible preferred stock automatically converted into 
422 million shares of Class A common stock on a one-to-one basis. The Company also issued 10 million shares of Class A common stock 
upon the exercise of a redeemable convertible preferred stock warrant and approximately 1 million additional shares of Class A common 
stock in connection with the conversion of Series H redeemable convertible preferred stock into Class A common stock. Following the IPO, 
the Company has two classes of authorized common stock, Class A common stock, which entitles holders to one vote per share, and Class 
B common stock which entitles holders to 20 votes per share.

Stock Split

On December 4, 2020, the Company effected a 10-for-1 stock split of its capital stock. All share and per share information have been 
retroactively adjusted to reflect the stock split for all periods presented.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles (“GAAP”). The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All 
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. These estimates form the 
basis for judgments the Company makes about the carrying values of its assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. These estimates include, but are not limited to, fair value of financial instruments, useful lives and impairment of long-lived assets, 
fair value of derivative instruments, incremental borrowing rate applied to lease accounting, contingent liabilities, redemption probabilities 
associated with Wish Cash, allowances for refunds and chargebacks and uncertain tax positions. As of December 31, 2022, the effects of the 
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s business, results of operations, and financial condition continue to evolve. As a result, many 
of the Company’s estimates and assumptions required increased judgment and these estimates may change materially in future periods. 

Segments 

The Company manages its operations and allocates resources as a single operating segment. The Company’s chief operating 
decision-maker is its Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) who makes operating decisions, assesses financial performance and allocates 
resources based on consolidated financial information. As such, the Company has determined that it operates in one reportable segment.
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Revenue Recognition 

The Company generates revenue from marketplace and logistics services provided to its customers. Revenue is recognized as the 
Company transfers control of promised goods or services to its customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects 
to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. The Company considers both the merchant and the user to be customers. The 
Company evaluates whether it is appropriate to recognize revenue on a gross or net basis based upon its evaluation of whether the 
Company obtains control of the specified goods or services by considering if it is primarily responsible for fulfillment of the promise, has 
inventory risk and has latitude in establishing pricing and selecting suppliers, among other factors. Based on these factors, marketplace 
revenue is generally recognized on a net basis and logistics revenue is generally recognized on a gross basis. Revenue excludes any 
amounts collected on behalf of third parties, including indirect taxes.

The following table shows the disaggregated revenue for the applicable periods:
  

      Year Ended  
      December 31,  
      2022     2021     2020  
      (in millions)  

Core marketplace revenue    $ 220     $ 1,177     $ 1,827  
ProductBoost revenue      46       165       200  

Marketplace revenue       266       1,342       2,027  
Logistics revenue       305       743       514  

Revenue    $ 571     $ 2,085     $ 2,541  

Refer to Note 11 – Geographic Information for the disaggregated revenue by geographical location.

Marketplace Revenue

The Company provides a mix of marketplace services to its customers. The Company provides merchants access to its marketplace 
where merchants display and sell their products to users. The Company also provides ProductBoost services to help merchants promote 
their products within the Company’s marketplace.

Marketplace revenue includes commission fees collected in connection with user purchases of the merchants’ products. The 
commission fees vary depending on factors such as geography, product category, Wish Standards' tier, item value and dynamic pricing. The 
Company recognizes revenue when a user’s order is processed and the related order information has been made available to the merchant. 
Commission fees are recognized net of estimated refunds and chargebacks. Marketplace revenue also includes ProductBoost revenue 
generated by increasing exposure for a merchant’s relevant products within the Company's marketplace. The Company recognizes 
ProductBoost revenue based on the number of impressions delivered, or clicks by users. 

Logistics Revenue 

The Company’s logistics offering for merchants is designed for direct end-to-end single order shipment from a merchant’s location to 
the user. Logistics services include transportation and delivery of the merchant’s products to the user. Merchants are required to prepay for 
logistics services on a per order basis. 

The Company recognizes revenue over time as the merchant simultaneously receives and consumes the logistics services benefit as 
the logistics services are performed. The Company uses an output method of progress based on days in transit as it best depicts the 
Company’s progress toward complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenue consists of amounts received primarily related to unsatisfied performance obligations of logistics services and 
marketplace services for shipments in-transit at the end of the period where the Company is the principal. The deferred revenue balances as 
of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are disclosed in Note 4 – Balance Sheet Components. Due to the short-term duration of contracts, all of the 
performance obligations will be satisfied in the following reporting period. 
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Refunds and Chargebacks 

Refunds and chargebacks are associated with marketplace revenue. Returns are not material to the Company’s business. Estimated 
refunds and chargebacks are recognized on the consolidated balance sheets as refunds liability. The merchant’s share of the refunds is 
recognized as a reduction to the amount due to merchants. The revenue recognized on transactions subject to refunds and chargebacks is 
reversed. The Company estimates future refunds and chargebacks using a model that incorporates historical experience, considering recent 
business trends, and market activity. 

Incentive Discount Offers 

The Company provides incentive discount offers to its users to encourage purchases of products through its marketplace. Such offers 
include current discount offers of a certain percentage off current purchases and inducement offers, such as set percentage offers off future 
purchases subject to a minimum current purchase. The Company generally records the related discounts taken as a reduction of revenue
when the offer is redeemed. The Company also offers free products to encourage users to make purchases on its marketplace. The resulting 
discount is recognized as a reduction of revenue when the offer for free product is redeemed. 

Wish Cash Liability

The Company issues Wish Cash to end-users who opt to receive it for their refundable transactions. The Company also offers Wish 
Cash as part of its various referral and incentive programs. The Company accrues a liability for issued Wish Cash which is reduced when 
Wish Cash is redeemed by its users. Based on historical experience, the Company analyzes the Wish Cash liability considering usage 
patterns to determine the probability of redemption. While the Company will continue to honor all Wish Cash presented for payment, 
management may determine the likelihood of redemption to be remote for Wish Cash balances due to, among other things, long periods of 
inactivity. In these circumstances, to the extent management determines there is no requirement for remitting Wish Cash balances to 
government agencies under unclaimed property laws, the portion of Wish Cash balances not expected to be redeemed are recognized in 
Core Marketplace revenue. Refer to Note 4 – Balance Sheet Components for more information on Wish Cash liability breakage. 

Cost of Revenue 

Cost of revenue includes colocation and data center charges, interchange and other fees for payment processing services, fraud and 
chargeback prevention service charges, costs of refunds and chargebacks made to users that the Company is not able to collect from 
merchants, depreciation and amortization of property and equipment, shipping charges, tracking costs, warehouse fees, and employee-
related costs, including salaries, benefits, and stock-based compensation expense, for the Company’s infrastructure, merchant support and 
logistics personnel. Cost of revenue also includes an allocation of general IT and facilities overhead expenses.

Advertising Expense 

Advertising expenses are included in sales and marketing expenses within the consolidated statements of operations and are 
expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses were $195 million, $1.0 billion and $1.6 billion for the years ended 2022, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 

Software Development Costs 

The Company capitalizes costs to develop its mobile application and website when preliminary development efforts are successfully 
completed, management has authorized and committed project funding, and it is probable that the project will be completed, and the software 
will be used as intended. Costs incurred during the preliminary planning and evaluation stage of the project and during the post 
implementation operational stage, including maintenance, are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred for enhancements that are expected to 
result in additional functionality are capitalized and expensed over the estimated useful life of the upgrades on a per project basis. 

Due to the iterative process by which the Company performs upgrades and the relatively short duration of its development projects, 
development costs meeting capitalization criteria generally are not material.  If internal-use software development costs are material, they are 
capitalized and included in property and equipment, net within the consolidated balance sheets. 

83



 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash 

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. As of 
December 31, 2022 and 2021, cash and cash equivalents consisted of cash deposited with banks and money market funds for which their 
cost approximates their fair value. The Company held 72% and 83% of its cash and cash equivalents in the United States as of December 
31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Restricted cash as of December 31, 2022 represents amounts held in collateral and cash accounts in a foundation entity dedicated to 
safeguarding funds of payment service users consisting of European Economic Area merchants, ensuring the funds remain separate from 
the Company’s own funds. These funds are included within prepaid expenses and other current assets in the consolidated balance sheets. 

Marketable Securities

Marketable securities consist of short-term and long-term debt securities classified as available-for-sale and have original maturities 
greater than 90 days. Marketable securities are carried at fair value based upon quoted market prices or pricing models for similar securities. 
Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are excluded from earnings and are recognized within other comprehensive 
income. Realized gains or losses on the sale of all such securities are reported in interest and other income (expense), net, and computed 
using the specific identification method. For declines in fair market value below the cost of an individual marketable security, the Company 
assesses whether the decline in value is other than temporary based on the length of time the fair market value has been below cost, the 
severity of the decline and the Company’s intent and ability to hold or sell the investment. If an investment is impaired, the Company writes it 
down through earnings to its recoverable value and establishes that as a new cost basis for the investment. 

Funds Receivable 

The Company uses several third-party Payment Service Providers (“PSPs”) to process user transactions on its marketplace. 
Transactions on the Company’s marketplace are mainly credit and debit card-based transactions that convert to cash on a regular basis and 
are net settled against refunds and chargebacks, with little default risk. Funds receivable represents the amounts expected to be received 
from PSPs for purchases on the Company’s marketplace and is recognized net of processing fees.

Concentrations of Risk 

Credit Risk — Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and 
cash equivalents, funds receivable and marketable securities. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents are held on deposit with 
creditworthy institutions. Although the Company’s deposits exceed federally insured limits, the Company has not experienced any losses in 
such accounts. The Company invests its excess cash in money market accounts, U.S. Treasury notes, U.S. Treasury bills, commercial paper, 
corporate bonds, and non-U.S. government securities. The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of a default by the financial 
institutions holding its cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities for the amounts reflected on the consolidated balance sheets. The 
Company’s investment policy limits investments to certain types of debt securities issued by the U.S. government, its agencies and 
institutions with investment-grade credit ratings and places restrictions on maturities and concentration by type and issuer.

 The Company maintains certain bank accounts in China. The Company manages the counterparty risk associated with these funds 
through diversification with major financial institutions and monitors the concentration of this credit risk on a monthly basis. The total cash
balance in these accounts represented approximately 24% and 15% of the Company’s total cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 
2022 and 2021, respectively.  

The Company's derivative financial instruments expose it to credit risk to the extent that the counterparties may be unable to meet 
the terms of the arrangement. The Company seeks to mitigate such risk by limiting its counterparties to, and by spreading the risk across, 
major financial institutions. In addition, the potential risk of loss with any one counterparty resulting from this type of credit risk is monitored on 
a monthly basis. The Company is not required to pledge, nor is it entitled to receive, collateral related to its foreign exchange derivative 
transactions. 

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of a default by its PSPs. The Company does not generate revenue from PSPs. 
Significant changes in the Company’s relationship with its PSPs could adversely affect users’ ability to process transactions on the 
Company’s marketplaces, thereby impacting the Company’s operating results. 

84



 

The following PSPs each represented 10% or more of the Company’s funds receivable balance: 
 
    December 31,  
    2022     2021  
PSP 1     56 %    62 %
PSP 2     32 %    32 %

Services Risk — The Company serves all of its users using third-party data center and hosting providers. The Company has disaster 
recovery protocols at the third-party service providers. Even with these procedures for disaster recovery in place, access to the Company’s 
service could be significantly interrupted, resulting in an adverse effect on its operating results and financial position. No significant 
interruptions of service were known to have occurred during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020.

Property and Equipment, Net 

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and amortization are computed 
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

The estimated useful lives of the Company’s property and equipment are generally as follows: 

   

Computers, equipment, software 3 years

Furniture and fixtures, servers, networking equipment 5 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of the estimated useful life or remaining  lease term

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

The Company reviews long-lived assets, including intangible and lease assets, for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is 
measured first by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the 
asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, an impairment loss would be recognized based on the excess of the carrying amount of 
the asset above the fair value of the asset.

Merchants Payable 

Merchants payable represents the amount of funds due to merchants and is recognized net of commission fees earned by the 
Company for marketplace transactions and other fees due from merchants. Merchants payable is adjusted for actual and estimated refunds 
the Company is expected to recover from merchants. The Company remits funds to merchants on a regular basis.

Operating Lease Obligations

The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. For leases where the Company is the lessee, right-of-use 
(“ROU”) assets represent the Company’s right to use the underlying asset for the term of the lease and the lease liabilities represent an 
obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. Certain lease agreements contain tenant improvement allowances, rent holidays 
and rent escalation provisions, all of which are considered in determining the ROU assets and lease liabilities. The Company begins 
recognizing rent expense when the lessor makes the underlying asset available for use by the Company. Lease liabilities are recognized at 
the lease commencement date based on the present value of the future lease payments over the lease term. Lease renewal periods are 
considered on a lease-by-lease basis in determining the lease term. The interest rate the Company uses to determine the present value of 
future lease payments is the Company’s incremental borrowing rate because the rate implicit in the Company’s leases is not readily 
determinable. The incremental borrowing rate is a hypothetical rate for collateralized borrowings in economic environments where the leased 
asset is located based on credit rating factors. The ROU asset is determined based on the lease liability initially established and adjusted for 
any prepaid lease payments and any lease incentives received. The lease term to calculate the ROU asset and related lease liability includes 
options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise the option. Certain leases contain 
variable costs, such as common area maintenance, real estate taxes or other costs. Variable lease costs are expensed as incurred on the 
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. 
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Operating leases are included in the ROU assets, accrued liabilities, and lease liabilities, non-current on the consolidated balance 
sheets. The Company has no finance leases. 

Loss Contingencies 

The Company is involved in various lawsuits, claims and proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. The Company 
records a liability for these when it believes it is probable that it has incurred a loss, and the Company can reasonably estimate the loss. If the 
Company determines that a material loss is reasonably possible and the loss or range of loss can be estimated, the Company discloses the 
possible loss in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. The Company regularly evaluates current information to determine 
whether it should adjust a recognized liability or recognize a new one. Significant judgment is required to determine both the probability and 
the estimated amount. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

The Company measures and recognizes compensation expense for all stock-based awards, including restricted stock units (“RSUs”), 
performance-based units (“PSUs”), stock options, and purchase rights issued to employees under its employee stock purchase plan 
(“ESPP”), based on the estimated fair value of the awards on the grant date. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to 
estimate the fair value of stock options and ESPP purchase rights and the Monte Carlo Simulation model to estimate the fair value of a PSU. 
The fair value of RSUs is based on the market closing price for its common stock as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on the
date of grant. The fair value of service-based RSUs and stock options is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite 
service period, which ranges from one to four years. For stock-based awards granted to employees with a performance condition, the 
Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense under the accelerated attribution method over the requisite service period. The fair 
value of the ESPP purchase rights is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the offering period. 

The Company accounts for forfeitures as they occur. 

Foreign Currency 

The functional currency of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries is the local currency for operating entities with employees and is the 
U.S. dollar for holding companies and pass-through entities. The assets and liabilities of its non-U.S. dollar functional currency subsidiaries 
are translated into U.S. dollars using exchange rates in effect at the end of each period. Revenue and expenses for its foreign subsidiaries 
are translated using rates that approximate those in effect during the period. Foreign currency translation adjustments are reflected in 
stockholders’ equity as a component of other comprehensive (loss) income. 

Transactions on the Company’s marketplace occur in various foreign currencies that are processed by its PSPs. These transactions 
are collected on a regular basis and are converted to U.S. dollars or euros within the short period of time between the recognition of revenue 
and cash collection on a regular basis, which limits the Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk. 

Merchants payable are denominated primarily in Renminbi (“RMB”) and other local currencies. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
the merchants payable amount denominated in RMB was 70% and 76%, respectively. 

Transaction gains and losses, including intercompany transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of 
the entity involved are included in interest and other income (expense), net on the consolidated statements of operations. The Company 
recognized a net gain resulting from foreign exchange transactions of $10 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, and net losses of 
$15 million and $26 million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The Company recognized a $7 million cumulative 
translation loss for the year ended December 31, 2022, and a $2 million cumulative translation gain and a $1 million cumulative translation 
loss in the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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Derivative Instruments

The Company conducts business in certain foreign currencies throughout its worldwide operations, and various entities hold 
monetary assets or liabilities, earn revenues, or incur costs in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency. As a result, the Company 
is exposed to foreign exchange gains or losses which impact the Company’s operating results. As part of the Company’s foreign currency risk 
mitigation strategy, starting in 2020, the Company has entered into foreign exchange forward contracts with up to twelve months in duration. 
In accordance with the accounting standards for derivatives and hedging activities, all derivative instruments are recognized at fair value on 
the Company’s consolidated balance sheets and classified as either derivative assets or derivative liabilities. Derivatives in a gain position 
are reported as derivative assets, while derivatives in a loss position are reported as derivative liabilities. The Company’s derivatives 
transactions are not collateralized and do not include collateralization agreements with counterparties. 

Cash Flow Hedges

The Company’s largest cash flow exposure is in RMB for payments made to merchants in China that use the Wish platform. The 
Company hedges these cash flow exposures to reduce the risk that its earnings and cash flows will be adversely affected by changes in 
exchange rates. The Company recognizes changes in fair value of these cash flow hedges of foreign currency denominated merchants 
payable in accumulated other comprehensive income in its consolidated balance sheets, until the Company settles its forecasted foreign 
currency denominated merchants payable. When the forecasted transaction affects earnings, the Company reclassifies the related gain or 
loss on the cash flow hedge to core marketplace revenue. All amounts in other comprehensive income at period end are expected to be 
reclassified to earnings within 12 months. In the event the underlying forecasted transaction does not occur, or it becomes probable that it will 
not occur, the Company reclassifies the gain or loss on the related cash flow hedge from accumulated other comprehensive income to core 
marketplace revenue. 

Non-Designated Hedges 

The Company’s derivatives not designated as hedging instruments consist of foreign currency forward contracts to reduce the impact
of currency exchange rate movements on its monetary assets and liabilities. These foreign exchange contracts are carried at fair value with 
changes in fair value of these contracts recognized to other income (expense), net in the Company’ consolidated statements of operations. 

The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes. 

Fair Value Measurement 

The Company applies fair value accounting for its financial assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the 
financial statements on a recurring basis. The Company defines fair value as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When determining fair value 
measurements for assets and liabilities, the Company considers the principal or most advantageous market in which it would transact and the 
market-based risk measurements or assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, such as risks inherent in 
valuation techniques, transfer restrictions and credit risk. Fair value is estimated by applying the following hierarchy, which prioritizes the 
inputs used to measure fair value into three levels and bases the categorization within the hierarchy upon the lowest level of input that is 
available and significant to the fair value measurement:

  Level 1— Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

  Level 2— Observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities, quoted prices for 
identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated 
by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. 

  Level 3— Inputs that are generally unobservable and typically reflect management’s estimate of assumptions that market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. 
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Income Taxes 

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax liabilities and assets are 
recognized for the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between consolidated financial statement carrying amounts 
and the tax basis of assets and liabilities and net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Valuation allowances are established when 
necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. 

The Company determines whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination. If it is not more 
likely than not that a position will be sustained, no amount of benefit attributable to the position is recognized. The tax benefit to be 
recognized of any tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition threshold is calculated as the largest amount that is more than 
50% likely of being realized upon resolution of the contingency. 

It is the Company’s policy to include penalties and interest expense related to income taxes as a component of interest and other 
income (expense), net as necessary. 

Comprehensive Loss 

Comprehensive loss is comprised of two components: net loss and other comprehensive (loss) income. Other comprehensive (loss) 
income consists of unrealized holding gains or losses related to derivative instruments, unrealized gains or losses on marketable securities, 
and foreign currency translation adjustments.

Accounting Pronouncements

The Company has reviewed recent accounting pronouncements and concluded they are either not applicable to the business or no 
material impact is expected on the consolidated financial statements as a result of future adoption.

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash equivalents, marketable securities, funds receivable, derivative instruments, 
accounts payable, accrued liabilities and merchants payable. Cash equivalents’ carrying value approximates fair value at the balance sheet 
dates, due to the short period of time to maturity. Marketable securities and derivative instruments are recognized at fair value. Funds 
receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and merchants payable carrying values approximate fair value due to the short time to the 
expected receipt or payment date. 

Assets and liabilities recognized at fair value on a recurring basis in the consolidated balance sheets consisting of cash equivalents, 
marketable securities and derivative instruments are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated with the inputs used to 
measure their fair values. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
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Financial assets and liabilities subject to fair value measurements on a recurring basis and the level of inputs used in such 
measurements are as follows: 

 
    December 31, 2022  
    Total     Level 1     Level 2     Level 3  
    (in millions)  
Financial assets:                        
Cash equivalents:                        

Money market funds   $ 50     $ 50     $ —     $ —  
Corporate bonds     2       —       2       —  
Total cash equivalents   $ 52     $ 50     $ 2     $ —  

Marketable securities:                        
U.S. Treasury bills   $ 173     $ —     $ 173     $ —  
Commercial paper     7       —       7       —  
Corporate bonds     29       —       29       —  
Certificates of deposit     —       —       —       —  
Non-U.S. government     4       —       4       —  
Total marketable securities   $ 213     $ —     $ 213     $ —  

Prepaid and other current assets:                        
Derivative assets   $ 6     $ —     $ 6     $ —  

Total financial assets   $ 271     $ 50     $ 221     $ —  
Financial liabilities:                        
Accrued liabilities:                        

Derivative liabilities   $ 2     $ —     $ 2     $ —  
Total financial liabilities   $ 2     $ —     $ 2     $ —  

 
    December 31, 2021  
    Total     Level 1     Level 2     Level 3  
    (in millions)  
Financial assets:                        
Cash equivalents:                        

Money market funds   $ 13     $ 13     $ —     $ —  
Marketable securities:                        

U.S. Treasury bills   $ 53     $ —     $ 53     $ —  
Commercial paper     39       —       39       —  
Corporate bonds     57       —       57       —  
Certificates of deposit     5       —       5       —  
Non-U.S. government     13       —       13       —  
Total marketable securities   $ 167     $ —     $ 167     $ —  

Prepaid and other current assets:                        
Derivative assets   $ 4     $ —     $ 4     $ —  

Total financial assets   $ 184     $ 13     $ 171     $ —  
Financial liabilities:                        
Accrued liabilities:                        

Derivative liabilities   $ 1     $ —     $ 1     $ —  
Total financial liabilities   $ 1     $ —     $ 1     $ —  

                         

The Company classifies cash equivalents and marketable securities within Level 1 or Level 2 because the Company uses quoted 
market prices or alternative pricing sources and models utilizing market observable inputs to determine their fair value. The derivative asset 
and liability related to the Company’s foreign currency derivative contracts are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy as the 
valuation inputs are based on quoted prices and market observable data of similar instruments in active markets, including currency spot and 
forward rates. 
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The following table summarizes the contractual maturities of the Company’s marketable securities:
 

    December 31,  
    2022     2021  

   
Amortized

Cost    
Estimated
Fair Value    

Amortized
Cost    

Estimated
Fair Value  

    (in millions)  
Due within one year   $ 214     $ 213     $ 150     $ 150  
Due after one year through five years     —       —       17       17  

Total marketable securities   $ 214     $ 213     $ 167     $ 167  

All of the Company’s available-for-sale marketable securities are subject to a periodic evaluation for a credit loss allowance and 
impairment review. The Company did not identify any of its available-for-sale marketable securities requiring an allowance for credit loss or 
as other-than-temporarily impaired in any of the periods presented. Additionally, the unrealized net gain and net loss on available-for-sale 
marketable securities as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 were immaterial. 

4. BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS 

Accrued Liabilities 

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:
  

    December 31,  
    2022     2021  
    (in millions)  

Logistics costs   $ 44     $ 56  
Deferred revenue and customer deposits     18       25  
Wish Cash liability     14       20  
Sales and indirect taxes     15       26  
Other     39       47  

Total accrued liabilities   $ 130     $ 174  
 

(1) The amounts previously disclosed in the Company’s 2021 Form 10-K were realigned to ensure consistency with the amounts reflected as of December 31, 
2022. 

(2) Logistics costs decreased by $12 million or 21% primarily due to lower shipping volumes during the fourth quarter of 2022 compared to the fourth quarter of 
2021.

(3) Deferred revenue and customer deposits decreased by $7 million or 28% primarily due to lower logistics volumes during the fourth quarter of 2022 compared 
to the fourth quarter of 2021.

(4) While the Company will continue to honor all Wish Cash presented for payment, it may determine the likelihood of redemption to be remote for certain Wish 
Cash liability balances due to, among other things, long periods of inactivity. In these circumstances, to the extent the Company determines there is no 
requirement for remitting Wish Cash balances to government agencies under unclaimed property laws, the portion of Wish Cash liability balances not expected 
to be redeemed are recognized in core marketplace revenue. Wish Cash liability breakage recognized in core marketplace revenue during the years ended 
December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $4 million and $29 million, respectively.

(5) Sales and indirect taxes decreased by $11 million or 42% primarily due to less taxes in connection with lower order volumes during the fourth quarter of 2022 
compared to the fourth quarter of 2021 
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5. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Volume of Derivative Activity

Total gross notional amounts for outstanding derivatives (recognized at fair value) as of the end of period consist of the following: 
 

 
 

December 31,
2022  

 
December 31,

2021  

    (in millions)  
Cash flow hedges   $ 168     $ 320  
Non-designated hedges     11       54  

Total   $ 179     $ 374  

Fair Value of Derivative Financial Instruments
 
 

 
December 31, 

2022    
December 31, 

2021  
    Assets     Liabilities     Assets     Liabilities  
    (in millions)  
Derivative designated as hedging instruments                      

Cash flow hedges   $ 2    $ —     $ 2    $ —  
Derivative not designated as hedging instruments                      

Foreign currency forward contracts   $ 4    $ 2     $ 2    $ 1  
Total derivatives   $ 6    $ 2     $ 4    $ 1  

(1) Derivative assets are included in prepaid and other current assets in the consolidated balance sheet. 

(2) Derivative liabilities are included in accrued liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

Derivatives in Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

The changes in accumulated other comprehensive income resulting from cash flow hedging were as follows:
  

    December 31,    December 31,  
    2022     2021  
    (in millions)  
Balance at the beginning of the period  $ 2    $ 2  

Other comprehensive income before reclassifications    (6 )    22  
Amounts recognized in core marketplace revenue and reclassified out of accumulated other 
comprehensive income    6      (22 )

Balance at the end of the period  $ 2    $ 2  

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

The changes in fair value of the Company’s foreign exchange forward contracts not designated as hedging instruments were 
approximately a $7 million net loss and a $21 million net gain for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and were 
recognized in other income (expense), net in the consolidated statements of operations. 
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6. OPERATING LEASES 

The Company leases its facilities and data center colocations under operating leases with various expiration dates through 2027. 

The components of the Company’s lease costs were as follows:
 

   
Year Ended

December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
    (in millions)  

Operating lease costs   $ 7     $ 13     $ 13  
Short-term lease costs     2       —       1  
Variable costs     1       2       1  

Total   $ 10     $ 15     $ 15  

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company’s consolidated balance sheet included ROU assets in the amount of $9 million 
and $18 million, respectively, and lease liabilities in the amount of $7 million and $9 million in accrued liabilities, respectively, and $13 million 
and $16 million in lease liabilities, non-current, respectively. 

 In February 2022, the Company’s Board of Directors ("the Board") approved a restructuring plan, which included exiting various 
office leases. As a result, the Company ceased using certain office spaces. As the carrying value of the related right-of-use assets and 
leasehold improvements exceeded the estimated fair value, the Company recognized an impairment loss of $11 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2022, which is included as part of general and administrative expenses in its consolidated financial statements. Of the $11 
million impairment loss for the year ended December 31, 2022, $6 million related to the impairment of operating ROU assets and $5 million 
primarily related to impairment of leasehold improvements. See Note 12. Restructuring Costs for more information about the Company’s 
restructuring plan.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the weighted-average remaining lease term was 3 years and the weighted-average discount 
rate used to determine the net present value of the lease liabilities was 6% for both periods. 

Supplemental cash flow information for the Company’s operating leases were as follows:
  

   
Year Ended

December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
    (in millions)  

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:                  
Operating cash flows from operating leases   $ 9     $ 15     $ 14  

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new lease liabilities   $ 4     $ —     $ 12  

The maturities of the Company’s operating lease liabilities are as follows:
  

    December 31,  
    2022  

Year ending December 31,   (in millions)  
2023   $ 8  
2024     8  
2025     4  
2026     1  
2027     1  

Total lease payments     22  
Less: imputed interest     (2 )

Present value of lease liabilities   $ 20  
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7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Revolving Credit Facility

In November 2020, the Company entered into a five-year $280 million senior secured revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit 
Facility”). If the Company is able to secure additional lender commitments and satisfy certain other conditions, the aggregate facility 
commitments can be increased by up to $100 million through an accordion option. The Company also enters into letters of credit from time to 
time, which reduces its borrowing capacity under the Revolving Credit Facility. Interest on any borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility 
accrues at either adjusted LIBOR plus 1.50% or at an alternative base rate plus 0.50%, at the Company’s election, and the Company is 
required to pay a commitment fee that accrues at 0.25% per annum on the unused portion of the aggregate commitments under the 
Revolving Credit Facility. The Company is required to pay a fee that accrues at 1.50% per annum on the average daily amount available to 
be drawn under any letters of credit outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility.

The Revolving Credit Facility contains customary conditions to borrowing, events of default and covenants, including covenants that 
restrict the Company’s ability (and the ability of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries) to incur indebtedness, grant liens, make certain 
fundamental changes and asset sales, make distributions to stockholders, make investments or engage in transactions with affiliates. It also 
contains a minimum liquidity financial covenant of $350 million, which includes unrestricted cash and any available borrowing capacity under 
the Revolving Credit Facility. The obligations under the Revolving Credit Facility are secured by liens on substantially all of the Company’s 
domestic assets and are guaranteed by any material domestic subsidiaries, subject to customary exceptions. A standby letter of credit in the 
amount of approximately $7 million has been issued under the Revolving Credit Facility in conjunction with the lease of the Company’s 
headquarters in San Francisco, California. As of December 31, 2022, the Company had not made any borrowings under the Revolving Credit 
Facility and it was in compliance with the related financial covenants. Fees incurred under the Revolving Credit Facility were insignificant for 
the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020.

Purchase Obligations

Effective September 1, 2022, the Company entered into an amendment to a colocation and cloud services arrangement committing 
the Company to make payments of $85 million for services over 3 years. As of December 31, 2022, the remaining commitment under this 
amended agreement was approximately $72 million and is payable within the next three years. 

Legal Contingencies and Proceedings

Beginning in May 2021, four putative class action lawsuits were filed in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California 
against the Company, its directors, certain of its officers and the underwriters named in its initial public offering (“IPO”) registration statement 
alleging violations of securities laws based on statements made in its registration statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC in connection 
with its IPO and seeking monetary damages. One of these cases has since been dismissed by the plaintiff and the remaining three have 
been coordinated and consolidated. In May 2022, the Court appointed lead plaintiffs, who subsequently filed an amended consolidated class 
action complaint pursuant to Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities Act and Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Exchange Act.  The Company 
believes these lawsuits are without merit and it intends to vigorously defend them.  The Court recently heard the Company’s motion to 
dismiss and a ruling is pending.  Based on the preliminary nature of the proceedings in these cases, the Company cannot estimate a range of 
potential losses at this point in time. Further, even if there was a reasonable possibility of a material loss, the Company believes the 
possibility of material loss with respect to each of the matters is remote.

In August 2021, a shareholder derivative action purportedly brought on behalf of the Company, Patel v. Szulczewski, was filed in the 
U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California alleging that the Company’s directors and officers made or caused the Company to 
make false and/or misleading statements about the Company’s business operations and financial prospects in various public filings. Plaintiff 
asserts claims for breach of fiduciary duties, unjust enrichment, abuse of control, gross mismanagement, waste of corporate assets, 
violations of Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act, and for contribution under Sections 10(b) and 21D of the Exchange Act and is seeking 
monetary damages.  This matter is currently stayed.  The Company believes this lawsuit is without merit and it intends to vigorously defend it.  
Based on the preliminary nature of the proceedings in these cases, the Company cannot estimate a range of potential losses at this time.  
Further, even if there was a reasonable possibility of a material loss, the Company believes the possibility of a material loss is remote.
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In November 2021, France’s Directorate General for Competition, Consumer Affairs and Repression of Fraud (“DGCCRF”) issued an 
injunction delisting the Wish “App” from Google Play and the Apple App Store, and blocking Wish from appearing in Google, Bing and Qwant 
search results on the premise that unsafe products or products of poor quality are available for purchase on Wish. The injunction could 
expose Wish to civil and criminal penalties. The Company has challenged the injunction in court but to date the injunction has been upheld.  
The Company continues to challenge the merits of the injunction and will pursue the matter in French Courts.  The Company believes there is 
a reasonable possibility of a material loss, however, a range of potential losses cannot be estimated at this time.    

In December 2021, the Company became aware that authorities in France charged Wish with legal violations relating to the 
Company’s former practice and use of strikethrough pricing in France, the Company’s previous failure to translate into French listings and 
product details on the Company’s app and website, and the Company’s anti-counterfeiting policies and practices. The Company disputes the 
charges and a hearing is currently scheduled for March 2023. Any adverse outcome could result in payment of substantial fines, payments to 
allegedly impacted consumer groups, harm to the Company’s reputation, loss of rights, or adverse changes to the Company’s offerings or
business practices in France. Any of these results could adversely affect the Company’s business. In addition, defending claims may be 
costly and may impose a significant burden on the Company’s management.  The Company believes that the possibility of a loss is probable 
and management has previously disclosed the matter, however, the total amount accrued remains immaterial.

As of December 31, 2022, in the opinion of management, there were no other legal contingency matters that arose in the ordinary 
course of business, either individually or in aggregate, that would have a material adverse effect on the financial position, results of 
operations, or cash flows of the Company. Given the unpredictable nature of legal proceedings, the Company bases its estimate on the 
information available at the time of the assessment. As additional information becomes available, the Company will reassess the potential 
liability and may revise the estimate.

8. COMMON STOCK AND STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION 

Common Stock and Elimination of Dual-Class Structure

Prior to August 9, 2022, the Company had two classes of authorized common stock, Class A common stock and Class B common 
stock. Holders of Class A common stock are entitled to one vote for each share of Class A common stock held on all matters submitted to a 
vote of stockholders. Holders of Class B common stock were entitled to 20 votes for each share of Class B common stock held on all matters 
submitted to a vote of stockholders. Except with respect to voting, the rights of the holders of Class A and Class B common stock were 
identical. Shares of Class B common stock were voluntarily convertible into shares of Class A common stock at the option of the holder and 
were automatically converted into shares of Class A common stock upon a sale or transfer, subject to certain exemptions.

On August 4, 2022, Piotr Szulczewski provided notice of his intention to resign as a member of the Company's Board, effective 
August 9, 2022. In tandem with his resignation notice, Mr. Szulczewski submitted a conversion notice to convert (the “Conversion”) all shares 
of Class B common stock of the Company he held into the same number of shares of Class A common stock of the Company, also effective 
August 9, 2022. In accordance with the Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the “Certificate of Incorporation”), as 
the remaining outstanding shares of Class B common stock represented less than five percent (5%) of the aggregate number of outstanding 
shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock outstanding after the Conversion, all remaining shares of Class B common 
stock were automatically converted into Class A common stock immediately following the Conversion on a one-to-one basis and no further 
Class B common stock will be issued. The Company filed a certificate with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware effecting the 
retirement and cancellation of the shares of Class B Common Stock.

Until the Class B conversion, Class B shares of common stock were issued in connection with the settlement or exercise of equity 
awards granted under the 2010 Equity Stock Plan (the “2010 Plan”) and Class A shares of common stock were issued in connection with the 
settlement or exercise of equity awards granted under the 2020 Equity Stock Plan (the “2020 Plan”) or shares purchased under the 2020 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “2020 ESPP”). Effective August 9, 2022, Class A shares of common stock are issued under all equity 
plans. Additionally, all shares issuable pursuant to outstanding awards under the Company’s 2010 Stock Plan will be issuable for Class A 
common stock.

94



 

2010 Equity Incentive Plan 

Under the 2010 Plan, the Company granted RSUs to employees, which generally expire 7 years from the date of grant and vest upon 
the achievement of both a service condition and a liquidity condition. The service condition for these awards is satisfied over four or five 
years. The liquidity condition was satisfied upon the occurrence of the Company’s IPO in December 2020.

The 2010 Plan was terminated in December 2020 in connection with the Company’s IPO but continues to govern the terms of 
outstanding awards under the 2010 Plan.  No further equity awards will be granted under the 2010 Plan.  With the establishment of the 2020 
Plan as further discussed below, upon the expiration, forfeiture or cancellation of any shares of Class A (Class B prior to the Conversion) 
common stock underlying outstanding stock-based awards granted under the 2010 Plan, an equal number of shares of Class A common 
stock will become available for grant under the 2020 Plan.

2020 Equity Incentive Plan 

On November 19, 2020, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted and approved the 2020 Plan. The 2020 Plan provides for the 
award of options, stock appreciation rights, restricted shares, and RSUs. The number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2020 Plan 
will be increased automatically on the first day of each fiscal year, commencing in 2022 and ending in 2030, by a number equal to the lesser 
of: (a) 5% of the shares of common stock outstanding on the last day of the prior fiscal year; or (b) the number of shares determined by the 
Board of Directors. As of December 31, 2022, 43 million shares under the 2020 Plan remained available for grant. 

2020 Employee Stock Purchase Plan 

On November 19, 2020, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted and approved the 2020 ESPP, which became effective on the 
IPO Date. The 2020 ESPP reserve for issuance will increase automatically on the first day of each fiscal year, commencing in 2022 and 
ending in 2040, by a number equal to the lesser of: (a) approximately 8 million shares of common stock; (b) 1% of the shares of common 
stock outstanding on the last day of the prior fiscal year; or (c) the number of shares of common stock determined by the Company’s Board of 
Directors. As of December 31, 2022, 12 million shares under the 2020 ESPP remained available for issuance.

The 2020 ESPP allows eligible employees to purchase shares of the Company’s Class A common stock at a discount through payroll 
deductions of up to 15% of eligible compensation, subject to caps of $25,000 in any calendar year and 2,500 shares on any purchase date 
through November 2022. In 2022, the cap for shares was increased to 5,000 for purchase dates starting with May 2023. The 2020 ESPP 
provides for 24-month offering periods, generally beginning in November and May of each year, and each offering period consists of four six-
month purchase periods. During the year ended December 31, 2022, approximately 1 million shares of common stock were purchased under 
the ESPP for an aggregate amount of $1 million.

On each purchase date, participating employees will purchase Class A common stock at a price per share equal to 85% of the lesser 
of the fair market value of the Company’s Class A common stock on (i) the first trading day of the applicable offering period and (2) the last 
trading day of each purchase period in the applicable offering period. If the stock price of the Company's Class A common stock on any 
purchase date in an offering period is lower than the stock price on the enrollment date of that offering period, the offering period will 
immediately reset after the purchase of shares on such purchase date and automatically roll into a new offering period (ESPP reset). During 
the year ended December 31, 2022, there was an ESPP reset at the end of both May and November purchase periods, resulting in an 
additional expense of approximately $4 million, which is being recognized on a straight-line basis through November 20, 2024.

2022 Inducement Plan

In January 2022, the Company’s Board adopted and approved the 2022 Inducement Plan (“2022 Plan"). The Company intends that 
the 2022 Plan be reserved for persons to whom the Company may issue securities without stockholder approval as an inducement of 
employment pursuant to Rule 5635(c)(4) of the Marketplace Rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC. The 2022 Plan provides for the award 
of options, stock appreciation rights, restricted shares, and RSUs of the Company’s Class A common stock to the Company’s employees. 
Stock-based awards under the 2022 Plan that expire or are forfeited, cancelled, or repurchased generally are returned to the pool of shares 
of Class A common stock available for issuance under the 2022 Plan.

In May 2022, the Company's Board approved an amendment to the 2022 Plan to increase the 2022 Plan reserve from 12 million to 27 
million shares. As of December 31, 2022, 11 million shares under the 2022 Plan remained available for grant.
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Equity Award Activity 

A summary of activity under the equity plans and related information is as follows:
 

    Options Outstanding     RSUs Outstanding  

   
Number of

Options    

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price    

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual 

Term 
(In Years)    

Number of
RSUs    

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date 
Fair Value  

    (in millions)                 (in millions)        
Balances at December 31, 2021    45    $ 0.254     2.5      48    $ 9.846  
Granted    8    $ 2.398            93    $ 1.619  
Vested                      (29 )  $ 5.529  
Exercised    (44 )  $ 0.219                    
Forfeited or cancelled    (7 )  $ 2.949            (41 )  $ 6.163  
Balances at December 31, 2022    2    $ 1.039      9.5      71    $ 2.796  

(1) Outstanding RSUs as of December 31, 2021 included 11 million PSUs, which were cancelled in February 2022.   

There were 8 million options granted during the year ended December 31, 2022 with a weighted-average grant date fair value of 
$1.58 per option. No options were granted during December 31 2021 and 2020. All options outstanding as of December 31, 2022 remain 
unvested. The aggregate fair value of options that vested during the year ended December 31, 2022 was $5 million. No options vested during 
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 
2022, 2021 and 2020 was $24 million, $161 million and $76 million, respectively. The intrinsic value is the difference between the estimated 
fair value of the Company’s common stock at the date of exercise and the exercise price for in-the-money options. The weighted-average 
grant date fair value of RSUs (excluding PSUs) granted during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 was $1.62, $9.71 and
$16.99 per share, respectively. The total intrinsic value of RSUs which vested during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 
was $42 million, $83 million and $714 million, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of options and RSUs outstanding as of December 
31, 2022 was zero and $35 million, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of options and RSUs outstanding as of December 31, 2021 
was $129 million and $117 million, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of options and RSUs outstanding as of December 31, 2020 
was $1.3 billion and $550 million, respectively.

Performance Stock Units

On January 31, 2022, Mr. Szulczewski resigned from his position as CEO of the Company. Due to his resignation prior to the second 
anniversary of the Company’s IPO, Mr. Szulczewski is no longer eligible to vest in his PSUs, and as such, the PSUs were canceled. 
Consequently, the Company reversed $21 million of previously recognized stock-based compensation expense related to these PSUs in the 
first quarter of 2022.

In February 2022, Jacqueline Reses resigned from her position as Executive Chair. Upon her resignation, Ms. Reses entered into a 
consulting agreement with the Company and her PSU award was modified to eliminate the market condition, with only continued service until 
the expiration of the consulting agreement being the sole vesting condition. Consequently, the Company reversed $3 million of previously 
recognized stock-based compensation expense upon modification and will recognize the modified fair value of approximately $2 million from 
the modification date to the expiration date of the consulting agreement, which is May 16, 2023.
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CEO transition

In January 2022, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Vijay Talwar, as the Company’s new CEO, with 
employment commencing on February 1, 2022. As an inducement of employment, Mr. Talwar was granted, i) 5 million RSUs with an 
aggregate grant date fair value of $13 million and ii) options to purchase 6 million shares of the Company’s Class A common stock at an 
exercise price of $2.86 per share with an aggregate grant date fair value of $12 million. These RSUs and options were granted under the 
2022 Plan and would have become vested and exercisable, respectively, in periodic installments over a 4-year term, subject to the CEO’s 
continued employment with the Company. The option award had a term of 10 years.

In September 2022, the Company’s Board terminated Mr. Talwar from his position as CEO of the Company. As set forth in his 
employment agreement with the Company, Mr. Talwar was entitled to certain benefits, which included, accelerated vesting of the unvested 
portion of his equity awards that would have vested within twelve months of his involuntary termination. Consequently, the Company 
recognized $6 million of stock-based compensation expense upon the acceleration of Mr. Talwar’s equity awards on his termination date.

In September 2022, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Jun Yan, as the Company’s then interim CEO, with 
employment commencing September 27, 2022. As an inducement of employment, Mr. Yan was granted i) 2 million RSUs with an aggregate 
grant date fair value of $2 million and ii) options to purchase 2 million shares of the Company’s Class A common stock at an exercise price of 
$0.86 per share with an aggregate grant date fair value of $1 million. These RSUs and options were granted under the 2022 Plan and will 
become vested and exercisable, respectively, in periodic installments over an approximate 1-year term, subject to the interim CEO’s 
continued employment with the Company. The option award has a term of 10 years. If Mr. Yan is terminated from his position as interim CEO 
within six months from his commencement of employment, 50% of both his RSU and options shall immediately vest. See Note 13. 
Subsequent Events regarding Mr. Yan's new equity grants in connection with his appointment to the permanent CEO role.

Stock Option Valuation

The fair value of options is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model which takes into account inputs such as the 
exercise price, the value of the underlying shares as of the grant date, expected term, expected volatility, risk free interest rate, and dividend 
yield. The fair value of the options was determined using the methods and assumptions discussed below:

• The expected term of the options was determined using the “simplified” method as prescribed in the SEC’s Staff Accounting 
Bulletin No. 107, whereby the expected life equals the arithmetic average of the vesting term and the original contractual term of 
the option due to the Company’s lack of sufficient historical data.

• The risk-free interest rate was based on the interest rate payable on the U.S. Treasury securities in effect at the time of grant for 
a period that is commensurate with the assumed expected term.

• The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility of the publicly traded common stock of peer group companies 
blended with the limited historical volatility of the Company’s own common stock weighted to reflect the short trading period of 
the Company’s stock since its IPO in December 2020.

• The expected dividend yield was zero because the Company has not historically paid and does not expect to pay a dividend on 
its ordinary shares in the foreseeable future.
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A summary of the weighted-average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of the 
options granted during the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows:

 
       
    Black-Scholes  
    Assumptions  
Expected term (in years)     5.93  
Risk free interest rate     2.28 %
Volatility     75.53 %
Dividend yield     —  

Stock-Based Compensation Expense 

Total stock-based compensation expense included in the consolidated statements of operations is as follows:
 

      Year Ended  
      December 31,  
      2022     2021     2020  
      (in millions)  

Cost of revenue     $ 7     $ 20     $ 35  
Sales and marketing       6       12       23  
Product development       50       59       118  
General and administrative       9       50       214  

Total stock-based compensation     $ 72     $ 141     $ 390  

(1) Total stock-based compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2022 decreased by $69 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2021 
primarily due to forfeitures driven by the resignation of Mr. Szulczewski from his former position as CEO, reductions to the Company’s workforce as part of the 
Company’s February 2022 Restructuring Plan, and modifications to the Company’s former Executive Chair’s equity awards. These reductions were partially 
offset by the acceleration of Mr. Talwar's equity awards upon his termination from his position as CEO.

The Company will recognize the remaining $1 million and $165 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense over a 
weighted-average period of approximately 0.7 years and 2.4 years related to options and RSUs, respectively. 
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9. INCOME TAXES 

The components of loss before provision for income taxes are as follows:
  

    Year Ended December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
    (in millions)  

Domestic   $ 388     $ 422     $ 757  
Foreign     (5 )     (71 )     (14 )

Loss before provision for income taxes   $ 383     $ 351     $ 743  

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following:
 

    Year Ended December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
    (in millions)  

Current:                  
Federal   $ —     $ —     $ —  
State     (1 )     —       —  
Foreign     1       10       5  

Total current     —       10       5  
Deferred:                  

Federal     —       —       —  
State     —       —       —  
Foreign     1       —       (3 )

Total deferred     1       —       (3 )
Total provision for income taxes   $ 1     $ 10     $ 2  

There has historically been no federal or state provision for income taxes because the Company has historically incurred operating 
losses and maintains a full valuation allowance against its net deferred tax assets. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the 
Company recognized $1 million and $10 million tax provision, respectively, related primarily to foreign income taxes. For the year ended 
December 31, 2022 there was $1 million of current foreign tax expense offset against $1 million current state tax benefit and $1 million of 
deferred foreign tax expense. For the year ended December 31, 2021 there was $10 million of current foreign tax expense and no deferred 
foreign tax expense.

The difference between income taxes computed at the statutory federal income tax rate and the provision for income taxes is 
attributable to the following:

  
    Year Ended December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
    (in millions)  

Federal benefit at statutory rate   $ (80 )   $ (73 )   $ (157 )
State tax (benefit), net of federal benefit     (1 )     —       —  
Stock-based compensation     16       (68 )     36  
Foreign rate differential     11       (5 )     (2 )
Non-deductible warrant valuation     —       —       23  
Other     (2 )     —       —  
Change in valuation allowance     57       156       102  
Total provision for income taxes   $ 1     $ 10     $ 2  

The tax provision differs from the benefit that would result from applying statutory rates to losses before income taxes primarily due to 
the valuation allowance provided on net deferred tax assets. Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of (a) temporary differences 
between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes and (b) net operating losses and tax 
credit carryforwards.
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Stock-based compensation increased the income tax provision by $16 million in 2022, whereas it decreased the income tax provision 
by $68 million in 2021. This difference is due to the Company experiencing a tax shortfall in 2022 for stock-based compensation, whereas the 
Company experienced a tax windfall in 2021 for stock-based compensation. A tax shortfall occurs when the fair market value of stock on the 
vest date is lower than the stock price on the grant date, which causes stock-based compensation recognized under GAAP to exceed 
deductions allowed for tax purposes. A tax windfall occurs when the vest date stock price is higher than the grant date stock price, allowing a 
larger deduction for tax purposes relative to stock-based compensation recognized under GAAP. The change in valuation allowance is 
related mainly to the increase in net operating loss carryforwards, partially offset by other changes in the deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
  

    December 31,  
    2022     2021  
    (in millions)  

Deferred tax assets:            
Net operating loss carryforwards   $ 558     $ 466  
Capitalization of R&D expenses     30       —  
Lease liabilities     4       5  
Reserves and accruals not currently deductible     11       62  
Stock-based compensation     5       19  
Fixed assets including right of use assets     1       —  

Total gross deferred tax assets     609       552  
Less: valuation allowance     (607 )     (546 )

Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance     2       6  
Deferred tax liabilities:            

Property and equipment, including right-of-use assets     —       (3 )
Total gross deferred tax liabilities     —       (3 )

Net deferred tax assets   $ 2     $ 3  

Beginning January 1, 2022, the United States no longer allows for research and development (“R&D”) expenses to be allowed as 
current expenditures when calculating taxable income. This change is a result of the Tax Cuts and Job Act enacted in 2017. R&D expenses 
incurred are subject to capitalization with amortization being allowed based on the location of the incurred expense; domestic U.S. expenses 
are amortized over a 5-year period and international expenses are amortized over a 15-year period. The $30 million deferred tax asset 
recognized above is the net impact of capitalization and amortization expense in 2022. The deferred tax asset for reserves and accruals not 
currently deductible decreased by $51 million in 2022. This change was due in large part to certain criteria being met to allow the expense for 
tax purposes. Net operating losses increased by $92 million in 2022. We have not yet experienced any net operating losses expiring before 
use. Our valuation allowance increased by $61 million in 2022. Most of the Company’s deferred tax assets are offset by valuation allowance 
as of December 31, 2022.

The table below details the activity of the deferred tax asset valuation allowance:
  

 

  Balance at
Beginning
of Period  

 

Additions  

 

Deductions  

  Balance
at End of

Period  
    (in millions)  

Year ended December 31, 2022                        
Deferred tax assets valuation allowance  $ 546    $ 61    $ —    $ 607  
Year ended December 31, 2021                        
Deferred tax assets valuation allowance  $ 384    $ 162    $ —    $ 546  

Due to a history of losses, the Company believes it is not more likely than not that its net deferred tax assets will be realized as of 
December 31, 2022 or 2021. Accordingly, the Company has established a full valuation allowance on its domestic net deferred tax assets. 
The Company’s valuation allowance increased $61 million and $162 million during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. 
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The Company intends to reinvest substantially all of its foreign subsidiary earnings indefinitely outside of the U.S. Due to the one-
time transition tax and the imposition of the Global Intangible Low-Tax Income provisions, all previously unremitted earnings will no longer be 
subject to U.S. Federal income tax; however, there could be foreign withholding taxes upon distribution of such unremitted earnings. It is not 
practical to estimate this liability at this time. 

As of December 31, 2022, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards available to reduce future taxable income, if 
any, of $886 million that begin to expire in 2030 and continue to expire through 2037 and $1.7 billion that have an unlimited carryover period. 
As of December 31, 2022, the Company had state net operating loss carryforwards available to reduce future taxable income, if any, of $6.2 
billion that begin to expire in 2026 and continue to expire through 2042 and $1.8 billion that have an unlimited carryover period. 

Utilization of net operating loss carryforwards may be subject to future annual limitations due to the ownership change limitations 
provided by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code and similar state provisions. 

	 A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
 

    Year Ended December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
    (in millions)  

Balance as of January 1   $ 1     $ —     $ —  
Additions for tax positions of current year     9       —       —  
Additions for tax positions of prior years     —       1       —  
Decreases for tax positions of prior years     (1 )     —       —  

Balance as of December 31   $ 9     $ 1     $ —  

The $9 million of unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31, 2022 would not impact the Company’s effective tax rate when it is 
subsequently recognized. The Company had unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31, 2021 of $1 million and immaterial unrecognized 
benefit as of December 31, 2020. No interest or penalties were incurred during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 or 2020. The 
increase from 2021 to 2022 is due to uncertainties regarding certain  costs that may be capitalizable. Until further guidance is available, the 
Company will continue to not recognize a tax benefit for this issue.  Excluding the amounts reserved for the aforementioned costs, the 
Company does not anticipate that the amount of unrecognized tax benefit will significantly change within the next twelve months.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and various state and foreign jurisdictions. The Company is not 
currently under examination by income tax authorities in federal, state or other jurisdictions. All tax returns will remain open for examination 
by the federal and state authorities for three and four years, respectively, from the date of utilization of any net operating loss or credits. 
Certain tax years are subject to foreign income tax examinations by tax authorities until the statute of limitations expire.

 In recent years the United States has enacted new tax legislation (the American Rescue Act, CHIPS and Science Act, and the 
Inflation Reduction Act). Due to the Company’s net operating losses for both accounting and tax purposes, the new tax legislation does not 
have a material impact on the Company’s provision for income taxes.
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10. NET LOSS PER SHARE 

Prior to August 9, 2022, the Company computed net loss per share attributable to common stockholders using the two-class method 
required for multiple classes of common stock and participating securities. The rights, including the liquidation and dividend rights, of the 
holders of Class A and Class B common stock were identical, except with respect to voting. As the liquidation and dividend rights were 
identical, the Company’s undistributed earnings or losses were allocated on a proportionate basis among the holders of both Class A and 
Class B common stock. As a result, the net loss per share attributed to common stockholders was, therefore, the same for both Class A and 
Class B common stock on an individual or combined basis.

Effective August 9, 2022, all Class B common stock were converted to Class A common stock. Net loss per share for the year ended 
December 31, 2022 and 2021 was not affected by the conversion.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders:
  

    Year Ended December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
    (in millions, except per share data)  

Numerator:                  
Net loss   $ (384 )   $ (361 )   $ (745 )

Denominator:                  
Weighted-average shares used in computing net loss per share, basic and 
diluted

 
  672  

 
  629  

 
  127  

Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted   $ (0.57 )   $ (0.57 )   $ (5.87 )

The following outstanding shares of potentially dilutive securities were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share 
because including them would have had an anti-dilutive effect: 
 

    December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
    (in millions)  

Warrant to purchase common stock     —       —       1  
Common stock options outstanding     2       45       75  
Unvested restricted stock units outstanding     72       48       30  
Employee stock purchase plan     3       4       —  
Total     77       97       106  

(1) Unvested RSUs outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 included 11 and 10 million of outstanding PSUs, respectively. They were cancelled in the first 
quarter of 2022.
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11. GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION 

The Company believes it is relevant to disclose geographical revenue information on both a demand basis, determined by the ship-to 
address of the user, and on a supply basis, determined by the location of the merchants’ operations. 

Core marketplace revenue by geographic area based on the ship-to address of the user is as follows:
  

    Year Ended December 31,  
    2022     2021     2020  
    ($ in millions)  

Europe   $ 83       38 %  $ 542       46 %  $ 833       46 %
North America     105       48 %    470       40 %    735       40 %
South America     7       3 %    50       4 %    90       5 %
Other     25       11 %    115       10 %    169       9 %

Core marketplace revenue   $ 220       100 %  $ 1,177       100 %  $ 1,827       100 %
 

(1) United States accounted for $83 million, $389 million, $614 million of core marketplace revenue for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 

(2) Core marketplace revenue included a net loss of $6 million for the year ended December 31, 2022 and net gains of $22 and $7 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, from the Company’s cash flow hedging program.

China accounted for substantially all of marketplace and logistics revenue in 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, based on the 
location of the merchants’ operations. Marketplace and logistics revenue from merchants based in the United States was immaterial in all 
years presented.

The Company’s long-lived tangible assets, which consist of property and equipment, net and operating lease right-of-use assets, net, 
is as follows:

 
    Year Ended December 31,  
    2022     2021  
    ($ in millions)  

United States   $ 13       72 %  $ 30       85 %
China     4       22 %    3       9 %
Other     1       6 %    2       6 %

Total property and equipment, net and right-of-use assets   $ 18       100 %  $ 35       100 %

(1) Long-lived tangible assets outside the United States and China were located in Canada and the Netherlands.
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12. RESTRUCTURING 

In February 2022, the Company’s Board approved the February 2022 Restructuring Plan (“Restructuring Plan”) to refocus the 
Company’s operations to support sustainable long-term growth, better align resources, and improve operational efficiencies. The 
Restructuring Plan includes i) reducing the Company’s headcount by approximately 15% (or approximately 190 positions), ii) exiting various 
office leases, and iii) reducing and realigning vendor expenditures. The Restructuring Plan was substantially implemented by the end of fiscal 
year 2022.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recorded charges of $3 million in severance and other personnel 
reductions costs for terminated employees and $11 million in impairments of lease assets and property and equipment. All related severance 
payments have been paid as of December 31, 2022.

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Reduction in Workforce

In January 2023, the Company announced a plan to reduce its workforce by up to 150 employees, representing approximately 17% 
of the Company's current global workforce. The reduction in workforce ("RIF") is intended to refocus the Company's operations to support its 
ongoing business prioritization efforts, better align resources, and improve operational efficiencies. In connection with the RIF, the Company 
expects to incur one-time charges of approximately $3 million to $4 million consisting of employee severance and other personnel reduction 
costs. The Company expects that the majority of these charges will be incurred in the first quarter of 2023 and that the implementation of the 
RIF will be substantially complete by the end of second quarter of 2023.

New CEO Grants

In February 2023, the Board appointed Mr. Yan as the Company’s CEO, effective February 21, 2023, superseding his previous role 
as the Company’s interim CEO. According to the terms of his new employment agreement, Mr. Yan was granted 5 million RSUs and options 
to purchase 9 million shares of the Company’s Class A common stock at an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Company’s Class 
A common stock on February 27, 2023. These RSUs and options will become vested (and with respect to options), exercisable, in periodic 
installments over a 2-year term, subject to the CEO’s continued service with the Company. The option award has a term of 10 years. Mr.
Yan’s equity awards granted under his previous employment agreement as interim CEO will continue to vest per the terms of that agreement.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None. 

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures. 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended (the “Exchange Act”)) are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that we file or submit under 
the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and to ensure that information required to be disclosed is accumulated and communicated to 
management, including our principal executive and financial officers, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), with assistance from other members of management, have 
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2022, and based on their evaluation, have 
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of such date due to material weaknesses in internal control over 
financial reporting, described below.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in 
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Management, with the participation of our CEO and CFO, has assessed the 
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022 based on the criteria described in Internal Control – 
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). Based on this 
assessment, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022 was not effective due to 
the material weaknesses identified below.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. As of the 
end of the period covered by this report, the following material weaknesses exist: 

• The Company did not design and maintain an effective control environment commensurate with its financial reporting requirements. 
Specifically, the Company did not (i) provide sufficient management oversight and ownership over the internal control evaluation 
process or (ii) hire and train sufficient competent personnel to support the Company’s internal control objectives. This material 
weakness contributed to the following additional material weakness:  

• The Company did not design and maintain effective controls over information technology general controls (“ITGCs”) for information 
systems and applications that are relevant to the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. Specifically, the Company did 
not design and maintain: (i) sufficient user access controls to ensure appropriate segregation of duties and adequately restrict user 
and privileged access to financial applications, programs and data to appropriate Company personnel; (ii) program change 
management controls to ensure that information technology program and data changes affecting financial information technology 
applications and underlying accounting records are identified, tested, authorized and implemented appropriately; and (iii) computer 
operations controls to ensure that critical batch and interface jobs are monitored, privileges are appropriately granted, and data 
backups are authorized and monitored.

Neither of the material weaknesses described above resulted in a material misstatement to our annual or interim consolidated 
financial statements. However, the material weaknesses described above could result in a misstatement of one or more account balances or 
disclosures that would result in a material misstatement to the annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be 
prevented or detected.	

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022 has been audited by 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing under "Item 8. Financial 
Statements and Supplementary Data".
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Management’s Plan to Remediate the Material Weaknesses

Our remediation efforts are ongoing and we will continue our initiatives to implement measures designed to ensure that control 
deficiencies contributing to the material weaknesses are remediated, such that these controls are designed, implemented, and operating 
effectively.

 The remediation measures we have taken to date include:

i. hiring and continuing to hire additional qualified accounting, financial reporting, tax and information technology personnel as well 
as increasing third-party consultants with public company and internal control over financial reporting experience including a new 
Chief Executive Officer with a deep understanding of ecommerce and cross border business, a technical project manager to 
assist with communicating, documenting, and assisting with the remediation of deficiencies, and additional resources to test 
internal controls;

ii. providing additional training for our personnel including the appropriate level of documentation to be maintained to support 
internal control over financial reporting;

iii. holding periodic SOX Steering Committee meetings which are comprised of all the top Executives of the Company and whose 
purpose is to provide oversight of the Company’s SOX program on behalf of the CEO, CFO and management responsible for 
SOX Compliance, including monitoring progress of the identified deficiencies and their remediation efforts;

iv. designing and implementing controls to formalize roles and review responsibilities to align with the staff’s skills and experience 
and to ensure proper internal control over financial reporting;

v. continuing to enhance processes to monitor critical batch and interface jobs;

vi. holding periodic meetings with the Audit Committee to communicate deficiencies, discuss the overall remediation plan, and 
discuss progress made against the approved plan;

vii. performed a comprehensive reassessment of financial reporting risks relevant to our consolidated financial statements, including 
identification of financially relevant systems and business processes at the financial statement assertion level, to facilitate the 
design and implementation or enhancement of existing controls to address the identified risks;

viii. enhanced the oversight and review of non-recurring transactions to include consistent communication between functional areas, 
support consistent documentation of conclusions reached, and retention of evidence supporting the operation of control 
activities;

ix. enhancing our IT governance processes, including automating components of our change management and logical access 
processes, enhancing role-based access and logging capabilities, implementing automated controls, enhancing testing and 
approval controls for program development, and implementing more robust IT policies and procedures over change 
management and computer operations;

Measures specifically taken during the quarter ended December 31, 2022 include:

x. continuing to enhance and standardize user access reviews and monitoring controls to improve segregation of duties, and more 
comprehensively review user and privileged access to financial applications, programs and data to appropriate Company 
personnel; and;

xi. continuing to enhance the design of computer operations controls related to the monitoring of critical batch and interface jobs.
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We are committed to continuing to implement a strong system of controls and believe that our ongoing remediation efforts will result in 
significant improvements to our internal control over financial reporting and will remediate the material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses are not considered remediated until the new controls have been operational for a sufficient period of time, are tested, and 
management concludes that these controls are operating effectively. This remediation process will require resources and time to implement, 
and remediation efforts could continue beyond the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023.  We will continue to monitor the effectiveness of 
these remediation measures, and we will make any changes to the design of this plan and take such other actions that we deem appropriate 
given the circumstances.

Remediation of Previously Identified Material Weaknesses

As previously disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021, management concluded that a 
material weakness existed in the Company's internal control over financial reporting as we did not fully implement components of the COSO 
framework, including elements of monitoring activities, information and communication, and control activities relating to: (i) performing timely 
monitoring to ascertain whether the components of internal control are present and functioning effectively, (ii) communicating deficiencies in a 
timely manner to those parties responsible for taking corrective action, and (iii) retaining sufficient documentation of control activities and 
evidence supporting the operating effectiveness of the controls. Since identifying the material weaknesses, management has completed its 
plan to remediate these material weaknesses, including enhancing the Company’s processes to ensure the timely monitoring of internal 
controls, the communication of deficiencies to those parties responsible for taking corrective action, and the documentation of control 
activities including evidence supporting the operating effectiveness of controls. Management has completed its documentation, testing and 
evaluation of the re-designed and enhanced control activities and determined that, as of December 31, 2022, these control activities have 
been appropriately designed and implemented, and have operated effectively for a sufficient period of time to conclude that these previously 
identified material weaknesses have been remediated.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As described above under “Management’s Plan to Remediate the Material Weaknesses”, there were changes in our internal control 
over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2022 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially 
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls 
and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well 
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the 
design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to 
their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control 
issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making 
can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the 
individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of 
controls is also based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design 
will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions; over time, controls may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate. Due to inherent limitations in a cost-effective 
control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Item 9B. Other Information. 

None.

Item 9C. Disclosure Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent Inspections. 

Not applicable. 
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance. 

We maintain a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that incorporates our code of ethics applicable to all employees, including all 
directors and executive officers. Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is published on our Investor Relations website at 
https://ir.wish.com/ under “Corporate Governance.” We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding 
amendments to, or waiver from, a provision of our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics by posting such information on the website address 
and location specified above.

The remaining information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for our 2023 Annual 
Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after December 31, 2022.

Item 11. Executive Compensation. 

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for our 2023 Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after December 31, 2022.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters. 

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for our 2023 Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after December 31, 2022.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence. 

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for our 2023 Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after December 31, 2022.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services. 

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the definitive Proxy Statement for our 2023 Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC no later than 120 days after December 31, 2022.
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PART IV 

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules. 

1. Consolidated Financial Statements

We have filed the consolidated financial statements listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements, Schedules, and 
Exhibits included in Part II, Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable, not material, or the required information is 
shown in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

3. Exhibit Listing
            Incorporated by Reference      

Exhibit No.    Description    Form    Date    Number    Filed 
Herewith

3.1    Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.    8-K    12/18/2020    3.1      
3.2    Amended and Restated Bylaws.    8-K    12/18/2020    3.2      
3.3    Certificate of Retirement of Class B Common Stock.    10-Q    11/9/2022    3.1      
4.1    Form of Registrant’s Class A common stock certificate.    S-1/A    12/7/2020    4.1      
4.2    Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement, dated March 18, 2019 by and among the Registrant and the other 

parties thereto.
   S-1    11/20/2020    4.2      

4.3    Warrant to Purchase Common Stock, issued to Silicon Valley Bank, dated May 13, 2014.    S-1    11/20/2020    4.4      
4.4    Description of Capital Stock.                      X

10.1    Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Registrant and each of its directors and executive officers.**    S-1    11/20/2020    10.1      
10.2    2010 Stock Plan, as amended, and forms of agreements thereunder.**    S-8    12/16/2020    99.1      
10.3    2020 Equity Incentive Plan and form of agreements thereunder.**    S-8    12/16/2020    99.2      
10.4    2020 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.**    S-8    12/16/2020    99.3      
10.5    Offer Letter, dated February 17, 2023, between the Registrant and Jun Yan.**                      X
10.6    Offer Letter, dated October 7, 2021, between the Registrant and Vivian Liu.**    8-K    10/25/2021    10.1      
10.7    Offer Letter, dated June 21, 2021, between the Registrant and Tarun Jain.**                      X
10.8    Form of Executive Severance and Change in Control Agreement.**    S-1    11/20/2020    10.10      
10.9    Credit Agreement among the Registrant and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and the other parties thereto.    S-1/A    12/7/2020    10.11      

10.10    2022 New Employee Equity Incentive Plan and forms of agreements thereunder.**    S-8    1/31/2022    99.1      
21.1    Subsidiaries of the Registrant.    S-1    11/20/2020    21.1      
23.1    Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.                      X
23.2    Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.                      X
24.1    Power of Attorney (included in Signature Page)                      X
31.1    Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 

1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
                     X

31.2    Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

                     X

32.1    Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

                     X

32.2    Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

                     X

101.SCH    Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document                      X
101.INS    Inline XBRL Instance Document                      X
101.CAL    Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document                      X
101.DEF    Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document                      X
101.LAB    Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document                      X
101.PRE    Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document                      X

104    Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)                      X

*The certifications attached as Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 that accompany this Annual Report on Form 10-K are deemed furnished and not filed with the SEC and are not to be incorporated by 
reference into any filing of the Registrant under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after the date of this 
Annual Report on Form 10-K, irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.

**Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly 
caused this Annual Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 
      ContextLogic Inc.
           
Date: February 27, 2023    By: /s/ Jun Yan
         Jun Yan
         Chief Executive Officer and Director

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Jun Yan, 
Vivian Liu, and Devang Shah, and each of them, as his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every 
act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in 
person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them, or their or his substitutes, may lawfully do or 
cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Annual Report has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
 

Name    Title
 
  Date

              

/s/ Jun Yan    Chief Executive Officer and Director
 
  February 27, 2023

Jun Yan    (Principal Executive Officer)
 
   

            

/s/ Vivian Liu    Chief Financial Offer and Chief Operating Officer
 
  February 27, 2023

Vivian Liu    (Principal Financial Officer)
 
   

            

/s/ Brett Just    Chief Accounting Officer
 
  February 27, 2023

Brett Just    (Principal Accounting Officer)
 
   

            
/s/ Tanzeen Syed   Director and Chairperson   February 27, 2023

Tanzeen Syed        
         

/s/ Julie Bradley    Director
 
  February 27, 2023

Julie Bradley     
 
   

            

/s/ Lawrence Kutscher    Director
 
  February 27, 2023

Lawrence Kutscher     
 
   

            

/s/  Stephanie Tilenius    Director
 
  February 27, 2023

Stephanie Tilenius     
 
   

         

/s/  Hans Tung   Director
 
  February 27, 2023

Hans Tung        
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Exhibit 4.4
 

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK
General
 

The following description of the capital stock of ContextLogic Inc. (“us”, “our,” “we”, or the “Company”) is a summary. Our Class A 
common stock is the only security of the Company registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 
“Exchange Act”). We have adopted an amended and restated certificate of incorporation (“Certificate of Incorporation”) and amended and 
restated bylaws (“Bylaws”), and this description summarizes the provisions that are included in such documents. Because it is only a 
summary, it does not contain all the information that may be important to you. For a complete description of the matters set forth in this 
Exhibit 4.6, you should refer to our Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws, and amended and restated investors’ rights agreement, each 
previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and incorporated by reference as an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-
K of which this Exhibit 4.4 is a part, and to the applicable provisions of Delaware law. 

In August 2022, in connection with the Company’s founder converting all shares of Class B common stock held by him into Class A 
common stock, the outstanding shares of Class B common stock following such conversion represented less than 5% of the aggregate 
number of shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock outstanding after such conversion. Therefore, pursuant to the 
Certificate of Incorporation all remaining shares of Class B common stock were automatically converted into Class A common stock 
immediately following the founders’ conversion and no further Class B common stock will be issued (collectively, the “Conversion”). The 
Company subsequently filed a certificate with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware effecting the retirement and cancellation of the 
shares of Class B common stock (“Certificate of Retirement”). All further references herein to common stock shall mean the Company’s 
Class A common stock.

Pursuant to the Certificate of Incorporation, the Conversion triggered various corporate governance changes as previously disclosed 
in the Company’s filings, which include:

• the Board became classified into three classes of directors with staggered three-year terms;

• directors will be able to be removed only for cause and only by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of 
the voting power of the Common Stock; and

• stockholders will only be able to take action at a meeting of stockholders and not by written consent.
 

Summary of Capital Stock

Our authorized capital stock consists of 3,100,000,000 shares, all with a par value of $0.0001 per share, of which:
  

   •    3,000,000,000 shares are designated as Class A common stock; and
  
  

   •    100,000,000 shares are designated as preferred stock.

Dividend Rights
Subject to preferences that may apply to shares of preferred stock outstanding at the time, the holders of outstanding shares of our 

common stock are entitled to receive dividends out of funds legally available if our board of directors, in its discretion, determines to issue 
dividends and only then at the times and in the amounts that our board of directors may determine. Under Delaware law, we can only pay 
dividends either out of “surplus” or out of the current or the immediately preceding year’s net profits. Surplus is defined as the excess, if any, 
at any given time, of the total assets of a corporation over its total liabilities and statutory capital. The value of a corporation’s assets can be 
measured in a number of ways and may not necessarily equal their book value.

Voting Rights

The holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote per share. The holders of common stock do not have cumulative voting
rights in the election of directors. Accordingly, holders of a majority of the voting power of the shares of common stock entitled to vote in any 
election of directors may elect all of the directors standing for election. Except for the election of directors, if a quorum is present, an action on 
a matter is approved if it receives the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of the shares of capital stock present in 
person or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on the matter, unless otherwise required by applicable law, the Delaware 
General Corporation Law, our Certificate of Incorporation or our Bylaws. The election of directors will be determined by a plurality of the votes 
cast in respect of the shares present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote, meaning that the nominees with 
the greatest number of votes cast, even if less than a majority, will be elected. The rights, preferences and 



privileges of holders of common stock are subject to, and may be impacted by, the rights of the holders of shares of any series of preferred 
stock that we may designate and issue in the future.
  
No Preemptive or Similar Rights

Holders of our common stock have no preemptive or conversion rights or other subscription rights, and there are no redemption or 
sinking fund provisions applicable to our common stock.

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions
Upon our dissolution, liquidation or winding-up, the assets legally available for distribution to our stockholders are distributable ratably 

among the holders of our common stock, subject to prior satisfaction of all outstanding debt and liabilities and the preferential rights and 
payment of liquidation preferences, if any, on any outstanding shares of preferred stock.

Preferred Stock
No shares of preferred stock are outstanding, but we are authorized, subject to limitations prescribed by Delaware law, to issue 

preferred stock in one or more series, to establish from time to time the number of shares to be included in each series, and to fix the 
designation, powers, preferences and rights of the shares of each series and any of its qualifications, limitations or restrictions. Our board of 
directors also can increase or decrease the number of shares of any series, but not below the number of shares of that series then 
outstanding, without any further vote or action by our stockholders. Our board of directors may authorize the issuance of preferred stock with 
voting or conversion rights that could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of the common stock. The issuance of 
preferred stock, while providing flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions and other corporate purposes, could, among other things, 
have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of our company and may adversely affect the market price of our 
common stock and the voting and other rights of the holders of common stock. We have no current plan to issue any shares of preferred 
stock.

Registration Rights
Certain holders of our shares of our Class A common stock have registration rights. These shares are referred to as registrable 

securities. The holders of these registrable securities possess registration rights pursuant to the terms of our amended and restated 
investors’ rights agreement dated March 18, 2019, as amended (the “investors’ rights agreement”), which terms are described in additional 
detail below.

Demand Registration Rights
Under our investors’ rights agreement, upon the written request of the holders of not less than 50% of the registrable securities then 

outstanding that we file a registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) with an anticipated 
aggregate price to the public of at least $15 million, we will be obligated to use our commercially reasonable efforts to register the sale of all 
registrable securities that holders may request in writing to be registered within 20 days of the mailing of a notice by us to all holders of such 
registration. We are required to effect no more than two registration statements that are declared or ordered effective, subject to certain 
exceptions. We may postpone the filing of a registration statement for up to 90 days no more than once in any 12-month period if in the good 
faith judgment of our board of directors such registration would be seriously detrimental to us, and we do not file another registration 
statement on our account or that of any other stockholder during such 90 day period.

Piggyback Registration Rights
If we register any of our securities for public sale, we will be obligated to use all commercially reasonable efforts to register all 

registrable securities that the holders of such securities request in writing be registered within 20 days of mailing of notice by us to all holders 
of the proposed registration. However, this right does not apply to a registration relating solely to employee benefit plans, a registration 
relating to the offer and sale of debt securities or a registration relating to a corporate reorganization or other transaction under Rule 145 of 
the Securities Act. The managing underwriter of any underwritten offering will have the right to limit, due to marketing reasons, the number of
shares registered by these holders to 30% of the total shares covered by the registration statement, except for in this offering, in which these 
holders may be excluded entirely if the underwriters determine that the sale of their shares may jeopardize the success of the offering.

Form S-3 Registration Rights
The holders of the registrable securities can request that we register all or a portion of their shares on Form S-3 if we are eligible to 

file a registration statement on Form S-3 and the aggregate price to the public of the shares offered is at least $5 million. We are required to 
file no more than one registration statement on Form S-3 per 12-month period upon exercise of these rights, subject to certain exceptions. 
We may postpone the filing of a registration statement for up to 90 days once in any 12-month period if in the good faith judgment of our 
board of directors such registration would be seriously 



detrimental to us, and we do not register any other securities for our account or the account of any other stockholder during such 90-day 
period.

Additionally, we are required, once we become eligible to register securities on Form S-3, to use commercially reasonable efforts to 
qualify the registrable securities for registration on a delayed or continuous basis on Form S-3 pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act. 
Holders of registrable securities may, no more than twice in a 12-month period, elect to sell registrable securities pursuant to such registration 
on a delayed or continuous basis, including up to once in a 12-month period through an underwritten offering.

Registration Expenses
We will pay all expenses (other than underwriting discounts, selling commissions and stock transfer taxes) of the holders incurred in 

connection with each of the registrations described above, subject to certain limitations. However, we will not pay for any expenses of any
demand or Form S-3 registration if the request is subsequently withdrawn at the request of the holders of a majority of the registrable 
securities to be registered, subject to limited exceptions.

Termination of Registration Rights
The registration rights described above will terminate upon a liquidation event or as to any stockholder at such time as all of such 

stockholder’s securities (together with any affiliate of the stockholder with whom such stockholder must aggregate its sales) could be sold 
pursuant to Rule 144 of the Securities Act, but in any event no later than the third-year anniversary of our initial public offering.

Anti-Takeover Provisions
Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law

We are governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law regulating corporate takeovers. This 
section prevents some Delaware corporations from engaging, under some circumstances, in a business combination, which includes a 
merger or sale of at least 10% of the corporation’s assets with any interested stockholder, meaning a stockholder who, together with affiliates 
and associates, owns or, within three years prior to the determination of interested stockholder status, did own 15% or more of the 
corporation’s outstanding voting stock, unless:
  

   •    the transaction is approved by the board of directors prior to the time that the interested stockholder became an interested 
stockholder; or

  

  
•    subsequent to such time that the stockholder became an interested stockholder the business combination is approved by the 

board of directors and authorized at an annual or special meeting of stockholders by at least two-thirds of the outstanding voting 
stock which is not owned by the interested stockholder.

A Delaware corporation may “opt out” of these provisions with an express provision in its original certificate of incorporation or an 
express provision in its certificate of incorporation or amended and restated bylaws resulting from a stockholders’ amendment approved by a 
majority of the outstanding voting shares. We have not opted out of these provisions. As a result, mergers or other takeover or change in 
control attempts of us may be discouraged or prevented.
  
Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaw Provisions

Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws include a number of provisions that may have the effect of deterring hostile takeovers or 
delaying or preventing changes in control of our management team, including the following:
  
  

  

•    Supermajority Approvals. Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws provide that certain amendments to our Certificate of 
Incorporation and Bylaws by stockholders will require the approval of two-thirds of the combined vote of our then-outstanding 
shares of common stock. This will have the effect of making it more difficult to amend our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws to 
remove or modify certain provisions.

  

  

•    Board of Directors Vacancies. Our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws authorize only our board of directors to fill vacant 
directorships. In addition, the number of directors constituting our board of directors is set only by resolution adopted by a majority 
vote of our entire board of directors. These provisions restricting the filling of vacancies will prevent a stockholder from increasing 
the size of our board of directors and gaining control of our board of directors by filling the resulting vacancies with its own 
nominees.

  

  
•    Classified Board. Our board of directors is classified into three classes of directors with staggered three-year terms and directors 

will only be able to be removed from office for cause. The existence of a classified board could delay a successful tender offeror 
from obtaining majority control of our board of directors, and the prospect of that delay might deter a potential offeror.

  



  

•    Stockholder Action; Special Meeting of Stockholders. Our stockholder are unable to take action by written consent, and will only be 
able to take action at annual or special meetings of our stockholders. Stockholders are not be permitted to cumulate their votes for 
the election of directors.

  

•    Advance Notice Requirements for Stockholder Proposals and Director Nominations. Our Bylaws provide for advance notice 
procedures for stockholders seeking to bring business before our annual meeting of stockholders or to nominate candidates for 
election as directors at any meeting of stockholders. Our Bylaws also specify certain requirements regarding the form and content 
of a stockholder’s notice. These provisions may preclude our stockholders from bringing matters before our annual meeting of 
stockholders or from making nominations for directors at our meetings of stockholders.

  

  

•    Issuance of Undesignated Preferred Stock. Our board of directors will have the authority, without further action by the holders of 
common stock, to issue up to 100,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock with rights and preferences, including voting 
rights, designated from time to time by the board of directors. The existence of authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock 
will enable our board of directors to render more difficult or to discourage an attempt to obtain control of us by means of a merger, 
tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise.

Choice of Forum
Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware is the exclusive forum for any derivative 

action or proceeding brought on our behalf, any action asserting a breach of fiduciary duty, any action asserting a claim against us arising 
pursuant to the Delaware General Corporation Law, our Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws, any action to interpret, apply, enforce or 
determine the validity of our Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws, or any action asserting a claim against us that is governed by the internal 
affairs doctrine. Our Certificate of Incorporation also provides that the U.S. federal district courts are the exclusive forum for resolving any 
complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act. 

These choice of forum provisions do not apply to actions brought to enforce a duty or liability created by the Exchange Act. We intend 
for the choice of forum provision regarding claims arising under the Securities Act to apply despite the fact that Section 22 of the Securities 
Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for federal and state courts over all actions brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities 
Act or the rules and regulations thereunder. There is uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce such provision with respect to claims 
under the Securities Act, and our stockholders will not be deemed to have waived our compliance with the federal securities laws and the 
rules and regulations thereunder.
 
Transfer Agent and Registrar
 

The transfer agent and registrar for our Class A common stock and our Class B common stock is American Stock Transfer & Trust 
Company. The transfer agent and registrar’s address is 6201 15th Avenue, Brooklyn, NY 11219.



 
 
 

 
Exhibit 10.5

 

 
 
 

One Sansome St. 33rd Floor
San Francisco, CA 94104 

hr@wish.com
 

February 17, 2023
 
VIA EMAIL 
Jun (Joe) Yan
joeyan@wish.com
 

Dear Joe:

ContextLogic Inc. (the “Company” or “Wish”) is pleased to offer you continued employment in our San Francisco office, on 
the following terms:

1. Position and Appointment Date.  Your title will be Chief Executive Officer. In this role, you will report to the Company’s 
Board of Directors and you will be expected to perform such duties and exercise such responsibilities as are assigned to you 
from time-to-time. In carrying out these duties and responsibilities, you shall comply with all policies, procedures, rules and 
regulations, both written and oral, as are provided by the Company from time-to-time, and carry out said duties and 
responsibilities in a diligent, faithful and honest manner. The effective date of your appointment as Chief Executive Officer will 
be February 21, 2023 or such other date as may be mutually agreed upon by you and the Company (“Appointment Date”); 
this will also be your appointment date for external reporting purposes. You will also be appointed as a member of our Board 
of Directors, effective as of your Appointment Date. 

2. Superseding of Interim CEO Offer Letter. The terms contained in this Offer Letter fully replace and supersede the terms of 
your Interim Chief Executive Officer Offer Letter dated September 7, 2022 (the “Interim CEO Offer Letter”), with the exception 
of Sections 3, 5 and 6 of the Interim CEO Offer Letter. You will retain all benefits awarded to you in Sections 3, 5 and 6 of the 
Interim CEO Offer Letter. 

3. Compensation.  The Company will pay you a starting base salary of $550,000 per year, payable in accordance with the 
Company’s standard payroll schedule.  This salary will be subject to adjustment pursuant to the Company’s employee 
compensation policies and procedures in effect from time to time.  

4. Bonus: You will be eligible to participate in any Company-sponsored bonus plan for the Company’s executive officers, with a 
target bonus percentage set by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.  

5. Employee Benefits.  As a regular employee of the Company, you will be eligible to participate in a number of Company-
sponsored benefits, including our group health insurance plan, in accordance with the applicable plan documents and 
policies.  The Company reserves the right to modify or discontinue such benefit plans in its sole discretion.  In addition, you 
will be eligible for paid time off in accordance with the Company’s paid time off policy, as in effect from time to time. A copy of 
the current paid time off policy will be provided to you and any subsequent versions will be posted on the Company’s 
wiki/intranet.

 



 
 
 

 

   

6. Restricted Stock Units. Subject to the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors, you will be granted an award of 
Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”) for that number of shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock equal to $3,000,000 
divided by the average closing price of a share of the Company’s Class A Common Stock as reported on Nasdaq during the
full calendar month prior to the date of grant, rounded down to the nearest whole share. The date of grant is expected to be 
two (2) business days after the Company announces its earnings for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022.  RSUs will 
vest over time based on your continuous service with the Company, with the first 1/8th of the RSUs vesting on May 15, 2023. 
An additional 1/8th of the RSUs will vest on each Company Vesting Date thereafter, provided that you remain in continuous 
service through each such Company Vesting Date. For the avoidance of doubt, “service” for purposes of the RSUs shall 
include service as an employee, consultant, director or member of the Board of Directors. A “Company Vesting Date” means 
February 15th, May 15th, August 15th, or November 15th. The RSUs will be subject to the terms and conditions applicable to 
RSUs granted under the Company’s 2020 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), as amended, your Notice of Restricted Stock 
Unit Award and Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, which will all be distributed to you as soon as practicable after the date of 
grant of the RSUs . 

7. Stock Options. Subject to the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors, you will be granted an option to purchase that 
number of shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock equal to $5,390,000 divided by the average closing price of a 
share of the Company’s Class A Common Stock as reported on Nasdaq during the full calendar month prior to the date of 
grant, rounded down to the nearest whole share (the “Option”). The exercise price per share of the Option will be equal to the 
fair market value of the Company’s Class A Common Stock on the date of grant, which is expected to occur two (2) business 
days after the Company announces its earnings for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022. The Option will vest and 
become exercisable over time based on your continuous service with the Company, with the first 1/8th of the Option shares 
vesting on May 15, 2023. An additional 1/8th of the Option shares will vest on each Company Vesting Date thereafter, 
provided that you remain in continuous service through each such Company Vesting Date. For the avoidance of doubt, 
“service” for purposes of the Option shall include service as an employee, consultant, director or member of the board of 
directors.  A “Company Vesting Date” means February 15th, May 15th, August 15th, or November 15th. The Option will be 
subject to the terms and conditions applicable to options granted under the Plan, as amended, your Notice of Stock Option 
Grant and Stock Option Agreement, which will all be distributed to you as soon as practicable after the date of grant of the 
Option. 

8. Executive Severance and Change in Control. Attached as Exhibit A is the Executive Severance and Change in Control 
Agreement, pursuant to which you will be eligible for certain severance and acceleration benefits in connection with certain 
qualifying terminations of your employment with the Company.  

9. Confidential Information and Invention Assignment Agreement.  You are required to continue to abide by the terms of 
the Confidential Information and Invention Assignment Agreement, which you previously signed in connection with your 
Interim CEO Offer Letter.

 



 
 
 

 

  

10. Conflicts of Interest. During your employment, you agree not to engage in any employment, business, or activity that is in 
any way competitive with the business or proposed business of the Company, which materially interferes with the 
performance of your job duties, or creates a conflict of interest (this includes any other full-time employment arrangements); 
provided, however, that you may continue to provide services and/or continue to engage in the current business activities that 
you list on Exhibit B hereto during your employment with the Company. During your employment with the Company, you may 
request (and submit to Wish for approval) an Outside Activity Disclosure Form from hr@wish.com to disclose any other 
outside employment, business, or activity in which you intend to engage during employment with Wish. Failure to make 
disclosures is considered a material representation that you are not engaged or associated with any such outside activities at 
the beginning of employment. You will be responsible for complying with Wish’s Conflict of Interest Policy, including updated 
disclosures of such outside activities, at all times during employment.

11. Employment Relationship.  Employment with the Company is at-will. This means that you have the right to resign and the 
Company has the right to terminate your employment at any time, for any or no reason, with or without cause, and with or 
without notice. Any contrary representations that may have been made to you are superseded by this Offer Letter.  This, 
along with the Confidential Information and Invention Assignment Agreement, is the full and complete agreement between 
you and the Company on this term.  Although your job duties, title, responsibilities, compensation and benefits, as well as the 
Company’s personnel policies and procedures, may change from time to time, the “at will” nature of your employment may 
only be changed in an express written agreement signed by you and the Board of Directors of the Company. At the sole 
discretion of the Company, you agree to serve, without additional compensation, as a director, officer, or member of the board 
of directors (collectively, “officer positions”) of any of the Company’s subsidiaries, partnerships, joint ventures or other 
affiliates. If your employment with the Company is terminated for any reason, whether such termination is voluntary or 
involuntary, you agree to take all necessary actions, as reasonably requested by the Company, to resign from all officer 
positions.

12. Tax Matters.

(a) Withholding.  All forms of compensation referred to in this Offer Letter are subject to reduction to reflect applicable 
withholding and payroll taxes and other deductions required by law.

(b) Tax Advice.  You are encouraged to obtain your own tax advice regarding your compensation from the Company.  You 
agree that the Company does not have a duty to design its compensation policies in a manner that minimizes your tax 
liabilities, and you will not make any claim against the Company or its Board of Directors related to tax liabilities arising 
from your compensation.

13. Interpretation, Amendment and Enforcement.  Unless otherwise specified in this Offer Letter, this Offer Letter and the 
accompanying exhibits, including the Confidential Information and Invention Assignment Agreement, along with documents 
related to your equity grants, constitute the complete agreement between you and the Company, contain all of the terms of 
your employment with the Company and supersede any prior agreements between you and the Company. This Offer Letter 
may only be amended by an authorized officer of the Company.

 



 
 
 

 

   

14. Arbitration of Disputes.  The Company and I mutually consent to the resolution by arbitration, under the applicable rules of 
JAMS (which are available at jamsadr.com, or from the Company upon my request), of all claims (common law or statutory) 
that the Company might have against me, or that I may have against the Company, its affiliated companies, the directors, 
employees or agents of any such company, and all successors and assigns of any of them.  The Company and I waive the 
right to have a court or jury trial on any arbitrable claim.  The Federal Arbitration Act shall govern this arbitration agreement, 
or if for any reason the FAA does not apply, the arbitration law of the state in which I rendered services to the Company.  
Notwithstanding any provision of the JAMS Rules, arbitration shall occur on an individual basis only, and a court of competent 
jurisdiction (and not an arbitrator) shall resolve any dispute about the formation, validity, or enforceability of any provision of 
this arbitration agreement.  I waive the right to initiate, participate in, or recover through, any class or collective action.  To the 
maximum extent permitted by law, the arbitrator shall award the prevailing party its costs and reasonable attorney’s fees; 
provided, however, that the arbitrator at all times shall apply the law for the shifting of costs and fees that a court would apply 
to the claim(s) asserted.  Nothing in this arbitration agreement prevents me from filing or recovering pursuant to a complaint, 
charge, or other communication with any federal, state or local governmental or law enforcement agency.  This arbitration 
agreement shall remain in effect notwithstanding the termination of my association with the Company. To opt-out of this 
paragraph, you must complete an opt-out form prior to your Appointment Date. Please email hr@wish.com for the form. 

15. Contingencies. Your continued employment with the Company is contingent upon you remaining authorized to work in the 
United States for Wish. The Company reserves the right to conduct background, credit and/or reference checks on all of its
potential employees. Your offer of continued employment, therefore, is contingent upon clearance of such background, credit 
and/or reference checks, including satisfactory responses to a D&O questionnaire. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 

 

 
 
We hope that you will accept the offer to become the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.  You may indicate your 

agreement with these terms and accept this offer by signing and dating this Offer Letter and the enclosed exhibit, and returning them 
to me.  This offer, if not accepted, will expire at the end of day on February 24, 2023.  
	  

 
Very truly yours,

ContextLogic Inc.

 
 
	 	                                                                 /s/ Tanzeen Syed

Tanzeen Syed 
Chair of the Board of Directors & Compensation Committee 	

	 	  
 
Enclosures

 
 
 
 
I have read and accept this employment offer:
 
 
 
Name: Joe Yan
 

 

Signature: /s/ Jun Yan
 

 

Date (MM/DD/YYYY): 2/17/2023

 



Exhibit 10.7
 

 
 

One Sansome St. 40th Floor San Francisco, CA 94104
hr@wish.com

  
June 21,2021
  
Tarun Jain 
tarun.1.jain@gmail.com
  
Dear Tarun:
  

ContextLogic Inc. (the “Company” or “Wish”) is pleased to offer you employment in our San Francisco office, on the following terms:

1. Position and Start Date. Your initial title will be Chief Product Officer. In this role, you will report to the Company’s CEO and 
you will be expected to perform such duties and exercise such responsibilities as are assigned from time-to-time. In carrying out 
these duties and responsibilities, you shall comply with all policies, procedures, rules and regulations, both written and oral, as 
are provided by the Company from time-to-time and carry out said duties and responsibilities in a diligent, faithful and honest 
manner. Your employment start date with the Company will be August 2, 2021; this will also be your appointment date for 
external reporting purposes. This is a full-time position.

2. Compensation. The Company will pay you a starting base salary of $450,000 per year, payable in accordance with the 
Company’s standard payroll schedule. This salary will be subject to adjustment pursuant to the Company’s employee 
compensation policies and procedures in effect from time to time.

3. Employee Benefits. As a regular employee of the Company, you will be eligible to participate in a number of Company-
sponsored benefits, including our group health insurance plan, in accordance with the applicable plan documents and policies. 
The Company reserves the right to modify or discontinue such benefit plans in its sole discretion. In addition, you will be eligible 
to participate in the Company’s paid time off policy, as in effect from time to time. A copy of the current paid time off policy will be 
provided to you upon hire and any subsequent versions will be posted on the Company’s wiki/intranet.

4. Restricted Stock Units. Subject to the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors or its Compensation Committee, you will 
be granted an award of 1,475,361 Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”). The RSUs will be subject to the terms and conditions 
applicable to RSUs granted under the Company’s 2020 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), as amended, your Notice of 
Restricted Stock Unit Award, and the applicable Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, which will all be distributed to you as soon as 
practicable after your employment start date and the RSU grant date. The RSUs will vest over time based on your continuous 
service with the Company, with 25% of the RSUs vesting on the first Company Vesting Date following your completion of 12 
months of continuous service. An additional 1/12th of the remaining RSUs will vest on each Company Vesting Date thereafter, 
provided that you remain in continuous service through each such Company Vesting Date. A “Company Vesting Date” means 
February 15th, May 15th, August 15th, or November 15th.

5. Executive Severance and Change in Control. Attached as Exhibit A is the Executive Severance and Change in Control 
Agreement, pursuant to which you will be eligible for certain severance and acceleration benefits in connection with certain 
qualifying terminations of your employment with the Company.

6. Confidential Information and Invention Assignment Agreement. Like all Company employees, you will be required, as a 
condition of your employment with the Company, to sign the Company’s standard Confidential Information and Invention 
Assignment Agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B. We also want to make clear that we do not want you 
to, and we hereby direct you not to, bring with you any confidential or proprietary information of any former employer or other 
entity or to violate any other obligations you may have to any former employer or other entity. By signing this agreement, you 
confirm to the Company that you have no contractual commitments or other legal obligations that would prevent you from 
performing your duties for the Company.



7. Conflicts of Interest. During your employment, you agree not to engage in any employment, business, or activity that is in any 
way competitive with the business or proposed business of the Company, which materially interferes with the performance of 
your job duties, or creates a conflict of interest (this includes any other full-time employment arrangements); provided, however, 
that you may continue to provide services and/or continue to engage in the current business activities that you list on Exhibit C 
hereto during your employment with the Company. During your employment with the Company, you may request (and submit to 
Wish for approval) an Outside Activity Disclosure Form from hr@wish.com to disclose any other outside employment, business, 
or activity in which you intend to engage during employment with Wish. Failure to make disclosures is considered a material 
representation that you are not engaged or associated with any such outside activities at the beginning of employment. You will 
be responsible for complying with Wish’s Conflict of Interest Policy, including updated disclosures of such outside activities, at all 
times during employment.

8. Employment Relationship. Employment with the Company is at-will. This means that you have the right to resign and the 
Company has the right to terminate your employment at any time, for any or no reason, with or without cause, and with or 
without notice. Any contrary representations that may have been made to you are superseded by this letter agreement. This, 
along with the Confidential Information and Invention Assignment Agreement, is the full and complete agreement between you 
and the Company on this term. Although your job duties, title, responsibilities, compensation and benefits, as well as the 
Company’s personnel policies and procedures, may change from time to time, the “at will” nature of your employment may only 
be changed in an express written agreement signed by you and the CEO of the Company.

9. Tax Matters.

9.1. Withholding. All forms of compensation referred to in this letter agreement are subject to reduction to reflect applicable 
withholding and payroll taxes and other deductions required by law. 

9.2. Tax Advice. You are encouraged to obtain your own tax advice regarding your compensation from the Company. You 
agree that the Company does not have a duty to design its compensation policies in a manner that minimizes your tax 
liabilities, and you will not make any claim against the Company or its Board of Directors related to tax liabilities arising 
from your compensation.

10. Interpretation, Amendment and Enforcement. This letter agreement and the accompanying exhibits, including the 
Confidential Information and Invention Assignment Agreement, along with documents related to your equity grants, constitute 
the complete agreement between you and the Company, contain all of the terms of your employment with the Company and 
supersede any prior between you and the Company. This letter agreement may only be amended by an authorized officer of the 
Company.

11. Arbitration of Disputes. The Company and I mutually consent to the resolution by arbitration, under the applicable rules of 
JAMS (which are available at jamsadr.com, or from the Company upon my request), of all claims (common law or statutory) that 
the Company might have against me, or that I may have against the Company, its affiliated companies, the directors, employees 
or agents of any such company, and all successors and assigns of any of them. The Company and I waive the right to have a 
court or jury trial on any arbitrable claim. The Federal Arbitration Act shall govern this arbitration agreement, or if for any reason 
the FAA does not apply, the arbitration law of the state in which I rendered services to the Company. Notwithstanding any 
provision of the JAMS Rules, arbitration shall occur on an individual basis only, and a court of competent jurisdiction (and not an 
arbitrator) shall resolve any dispute about the formation, validity, or enforceability of any provision of this arbitration agreement. I 
waive the right to initiate, participate in, or recover through, any class or collective action. To the maximum extent permitted by 
law, the arbitrator shall award the prevailing party its costs and reasonable attorney’s fees; provided, however, that the arbitrator 
at all times shall apply the law for the shifting of costs and fees that a court would apply to the claim(s)asserted. Nothing in this 
arbitration agreement prevents me from filing or recovering pursuant to a complaint, charge, or other communication with any 
federal, state or local governmental or law enforcement agency. This arbitration agreement shall remain in effect notwithstanding 
the termination of my association with the Company. To opt-out of this paragraph, you must complete an opt-out form prior to 
your start date. Please email hr@wish.com for the form.

12. Contingencies. This offer is contingent upon proof of identity and work eligibility, which must be submitted to the Company 
within 72 hours of your start date. Your continued employment with the Company is contingent upon you remaining authorized to 
work in the United States for Wish. The Company reserves the right to conduct background, credit and/or reference checks on 
all of its potential employees. Your job offer, therefore, is contingent upon clearance of such background, credit and/or reference 
checks, including satisfactory responses to a D&O questionnaire.

 



We hope that you will accept our offer to join the Company. You may indicate your agreement with these terms and accept this offer 
by signing and dating this letter agreement and the enclosed exhibit, and returning them to me. This offer, if not accepted, will expire at the 
end of day on June 25, 2021.
 

Very truly yours, CONTEXTLOGIC INC.
/s/ Piotr Szulczewski

  
Piotr Szulczewski CEO

  
  
Enclosures
  
I have read and accept this employment offer:
  
Tarun Jain
  
Name
  
/s/ Tarun Jain
  
6/21/2021
  
Date (MM/DD/YYYY)



Exhibit 23.1
 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-251374, 333-262433, 333-263538, and 333-
264625) of ContextLogic Inc. of our report dated February 27, 2023 relating to the financial statements and the effectiveness of internal control over 
financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10-K.
  
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
San Francisco, California 
February 27, 2023
 
 



Exhibit 23.2
 
 

CONSENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
  
  
We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

1. Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-251374) pertaining to the 2020 Equity Incentive Plan, the 2020 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, 
and the 2010 Stock Plan of ContextLogic Inc., 

2. Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-262433) pertaining to the 2022 New Employee Equity Incentive Plan of ContextLogic Inc.,

3. Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-263538) pertaining to the 2020 Equity Incentive Plan and 2020 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of 
ContextLogic Inc., and

4. Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-264625) pertaining to the 2022 New Employee Equity Incentive Plan of ContextLogic Inc.;
  
of our report dated March 14, 2022, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of ContextLogic Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) 
of ContextLogic Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2022.
  
  

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

San Francisco, California

February 27, 2023



Exhibit 31.1
 

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jun Yan, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of ContextLogic Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to 
the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this 
report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under 
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made 
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on 
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the 
equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; 
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's 
internal control over financial reporting.

 

 
Date: February 27, 2023    By: /s/ Jun Yan
         Jun Yan

     
Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)
 



Exhibit 31.2
 

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Vivian Liu, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of ContextLogic Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary 
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to 
the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this 
report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under 
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made 
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on 
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the 
equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; 
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's 
internal control over financial reporting.

 
Date: February 27, 2023    By: /s/ Vivian Liu
         Vivian Liu

     
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)
 



 
Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ContextLogic Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 as 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; 
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations 
of the Company for the periods presented therein.

 
Date: February 27, 2023    By: /s/ Jun Yan
         Jun Yan

        
Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)
 
 



 
Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER 
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of ContextLogic Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022 as 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; 
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations 
of the Company for the periods presented therein.

 
Date: February 27, 2023    By: /s/ Vivian Liu
         Vivian Liu

     
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)
 
 




